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Our Company was originally incorporated as Galaxy Agrico Private Limited under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of
Companies, Ahmedabad and consequently a certificate of incorporation dated February 23, 1994. Later, the name of the company
was changedfrom “Galaxy Agrico Private Limited” to its present name “Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited” vide fresh certificate of
incorporation consequent upon change of name “ROC letter no 04-21368 of 1993-94.”

Registered Office: 236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate, Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024,
West Bengal, India. Tel: 7020558310; E-mail: info@galaxyagrico.com; Website: www.galaxyagrico.com ;

Contact Person: Utsavi Lalit Bhatia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

ISSUE OF UPTO 13658100 EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE X 10 EACH (“RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES”) OF
OURCOMPANY FOR CASH AT A PRICE OF % 35.87 /- PER EQUITY SHARE (INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF 3
25.87 /- PER EQUITY SHARE) (THE “ISSUE PRICE”), AGGREGATING UPTO % 4899.16 LAKHS ON A RIGHTS BASIS
TO THE EXISTING EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY IN THE RATIO OF 5:1 (5) RIGHTS EQUITY
SHARE(S) FOR EVERY 1 FULLY PAID-UP EQUITY SHARE(S) HELD BY THE EXISTING EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
ONTHE RECORD DATE, THAT IS ON 23%° JANUARY, 2026 (THE “ISSUE”). THE ISSUE PRICE FOR THE RIGHTS
EQUITY SHARES IS Rs. 35.87/-

TIMES OF THE FACE VALUE OF THE EQUITY SHARES. FOR FURTHER DETAILS, PLEASE REFER TO THE
CHAPTER TITLED “TERMS OF THE ISSUE” ON PAGE 84 OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER.

Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in this offer
unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their entire investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully
before taking an investment decision in the Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination
of our Company and the Issue, including the risks involved. The Rights Equity Shares in the Issue have not been recommended
or approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of the
contents of this Letter of Offer. Specific attention of the investors is invited to the section titled “Risk Factors” on page 24 of
this Letter of Offer

Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Letter of Offer contains
all information with regard to our Company and this Issue, which is material in the context of this Issue, that the information
contained in this Letter of Offer is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the
opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of

which makes this Letter of Offer as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions,
misleading in any material respect.

The existing equity shares are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”), (the “Stock Exchange”). Our Company has received ‘in-principle’
approvals from BSE for listing the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to this Issue vide their letter dated 04" December,
2025. For the purpose of this Issue, the Designated Stock Exchange is BSE.
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SECTION I - GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Letter of Offer uses certain definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when reading the information
contained herein. The following list of certain capitalized terms used in this Letter of Offer is intended for the convenience of the
reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.

Unless otherwise specified, the capitalized terms used in this Letter of Offer shall have the meaning as defined hereunder. References to
any legislations, acts, regulation, rules, guidelines, circulars, notifications, policies or clarifications shall be deemed to include all
amendments, supplements or re-enactments and modifications thereto notified from time to time and any reference to a statutory
provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under such provision.

Provided that terms used in the sections/ chapters titled “Industry Overview”, “Summary of this Letter of Offer”, “Financial
Information”, “Statement of Special Tax Benefits”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” and “Issue Related
Information” on pages 48,21, 68, 48,77 and 86 respectively, shall, unless indicated otherwise, have the meanings ascribed to such terms
in the respective sections/ chapters.

General Terms

Term Description

LIS

“Company”, “our Company”, | Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited a public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act,
“the Company”, “the Issuer” or | 1956, having its registered office at 236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate, Behind Murlidhar Weigh
“SIL” Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024
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we”, “us”, or “our” Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company.

Company Related Terms

Term Description
The audited financial statements of our Company, prepared as per Ind AS for Fiscal 2024 and for
“Audited Financial the period ended on June 30, 2024 prepared in line with Ind AS notified under the Companies Act,
Statements” 2013, as amended read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

“Articles” [ “Articles of

o Articles / Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time totime.
Association” / “AoA”

The Committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company’s audit committee in
accordance with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations

“Audit Committee” and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details, see “Our Management” on page 62 of this
Letter of Offer.

“Auditor” / “Statutory

Auditor”/ “Peer Review Statutory and Peer Review Auditor of Our Company, namely, H. B. Kalaria & Associates Chartered
Accountants.

Auditor”

“Board” / “Board of Directors” | Board of directors of our Company or a duly constituted committee thereof.

“Chief Financial Officer / _ ) o ]
Mr. Jayantilal Panchanbhai Kansagara, the Chief Financial Officer of our Company.
CFO”

“Company  Secretary and

. Ms. Utsavi Lalit Bhatia, the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of our Company.
Compliance Officer”

“Promoters(s)” KANTABEN RITABEN PARESH NATHABHAI
JAYANTILAL PATEL CHANDRAKANT SADARIA
SADARIA

2



MANOJHARSUKHLAL SUKETA SANJAY MAUSAMI PARESH

SHAH PATEL SADARIA

HEMALI SUDHIR AMRITAJITENDRA SADARIA

PATEL SHAH MANHARKUMAR
NATHALAL

ASHVIN MINAL JINESH HARSHABEN

HARSUKHLAL SHAH SANGHVI MANHARBHAI
SADARIA

SANJAY JAYANTILAL NAYANABEN MANOJKUMAR

PATEL ASHWINKUMAR HARSUKHLAL SHAH-

SHAH HUF

MALABEN NATHABHAI NALINI

RAJNIKANT SADARIA JERAMBHAI SADARIA MANOJKUMAR SHAH

GANGJI JERAM SUDHIRJAYANTILAL JAY ASHWINBHAI

SADARIYA PATEL SHAH

JAYESHBHAI TANUJ NANALAL PRASHANT SUDHIR

KISHORBHAI KALAVADIA KHAIRNAR

KALAVADIA

“Corporate Social
Responsibility

Committee/ CSR

The committee of the Board of directors constituted as our Company’s corporate social
responsibility committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details,
see “Our Management” on page 62 of this Letter of Offer

Committee”

“Director(s)” The director(s) on the Board of our Company, unless otherwise specified, as described in the
chapter titled “Our Management” on page 62 of this Letter of Offer

“Equity Shareholder” A holder of Equity Shares

“Equity Shares” Equity shares of our Company of face value of 10 each, unless otherwise specified in context

thereof.

“Executive Directors”

Executive Directors of our Company.

“Financial Information”

Collectively the Audited Financial Statements, unless otherwise specified in context thereof.

“Independent Director(s)”

The Independent Director(s) of our Company, in terms of Section 2(47) and Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

“Key  Management
Personnel” / “KMP”

Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
ICDR Regulations as described in the subsection titled “Our Management — Key Managerial
Personnel” on page 62 of this Letter of Offer.

“Memorandum  of
Association” / “MoA”

Memorandum of Association of our Company, asamended from time to time.

“Nomination and
Remuneration Committee”

The committee of the Board of directors reconstituted as our Company’s Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in accordance with Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details, see “Our Management” on page 62 of this
Letter of Offer.

“Non-Executive and
Independent Director”

Non-Executive and Independent Directors of our Company, unless otherwise specified.




“Non-executive Directors”

Non-executive Directors of our Company.

“Promoters Group”

Individuals and entities forming part of the Promoters and Promoters group in accordance with
SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The Registered and Corporate Office of our Company located at 236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate,

“Registered and . ) . . . . .
Corporate Office” Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024
“Registrar of Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad having its office at Registrar Of Companies, ROC

Companies”/ “RoC”

Bhavan , Opp Rupal Park Society, Behind Ankur Bus Stop, Naranpura,Ahmedabad-380013,
Gujarat Phone: 079-27438531, Fax 079-27438371 roc.ahmedabad@mca.gov.in

“Rights Issue

The committee of our Board constituted for purposes of the Issue and incidental matters thereof.

Committee”
“Shareholders/ Equity . . .
Shareholders” The Equity Shareholders of our Company, from time to time.

, . . The Committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company’s Stakeholders’ Relationship
“Stakehold Relationshi . . . . o . -
Co;riit(t)eesrs P Committee in accordance with Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. For details, see

“Our Management” on page 62 of this Letter of Offer.

Materiality Policy

Policy on determination of materiality of events adopted by our Company in accordance with
Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Issue Related Terms

Term

Description

ASBA Circular

Collectively, SEBI Circular bearing reference number SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated
December 30, 2009, SEBI circular bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29,
2011, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January
22,2020, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May
19, 2022 and any other circular issued by SEBI in this regard and any subsequent circulars or
notifications issued by SEBI in this regard.

Abridged Letter of Offer

Abridged Letter of Offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders with respect to the Issue in
accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Companies Act.

Allot/Allotment/Allotted

Allotment of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue.

Allotment Account

The account opened with the Banker(s) to the Issue, into which the Application Money lying to
the credit of the escrow account(s) and amounts blocked by Application Supported by Blocked
Amount in the ASBA Account, with respect to successful Applicants will be transferred on the
Transfer Date in accordance with Section 40(3) of the Companies Act.

Allotment Advice

Note, advice or intimation of Allotment sent to each successful Applicant who has been or isto be
Allotted the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue.

Allotment Date

Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to the Issue.

Allottee(s)

Person(s) who are Allotted Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Allotment.

Applicant(s) / Investor(s)

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee(s) who make an application for the Rights Equity
Shares pursuant to the Issue in terms of this Letter of Offer, including an ASBA Investor.
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Application

Application made through submission of the Application Form or plain paper Application to the
Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic application through the website of the
SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process, to subscribe to the Rights
Equity Shares at the Issue Price.

Application Form

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form (including online application form
available for submission of application though the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such
SCSBs) under the ASBA process) used by an Applicant to make an application for the Allotment
of Rights Equity Shares in this Issue.

Application Money

Aggregate amount payable in respect of the Rights Equity Shares applied for in the Issue at the
Issue Price.

Application  Supported
Blocked Amount/ASBA

by

Application (whether physical or electronic) used by ASBA Applicants to make an application
authorizing a SCSB to block the Application Money in the ASBA Account

“Director(s)” The director(s) on the Board of our Company, unless otherwise specified, as described in the
chapter titled “Our Management” on page 62 of this Letter of Offer

“Equity Shareholder” A holder of Equity Shares

“Equity Shares” Equity shares of our Company of face value of X 10 each, unless otherwise specified in context

thereof.

“Executive Directors”

Executive Directors of our Company.

“Financial Information”

Collectively the Audited Financial Statements, unless otherwise specified in context thereof.

“Independent Director(s)”

The Independent Director(s) of our Company, in terms of Section 2(47) and Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

“Key  Management
Personnel” / “KMP”

Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
ICDR Regulations as described in the subsection titled “Our Management — Key Managerial
Personnel” on page 62 of this Letter of Offer.

“Memorandum  of
Association” / “MoA”

Memorandum of Association of our Company, asamended from time to time.

“Nomination and
Remuneration Committee”

The committee of the Board of directors reconstituted as our Company’s Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in accordance with Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details, see “Our Management” on page 62 of this
Letter of Offer.

“Non-Executive and
Independent Director”

Non-Executive and Independent Directors of our Company, unless otherwise specified.

“Non-executive Directors”

Non-executive Directors of our Company.

“Promoters Group”

Individuals and entities forming part of the Promoters and Promoters group in accordance with
SEBI ICDR Regulations.

“Registered and The Registered and Corporate Office of our Company located at 236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate,
Corporate Office” Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024
“Registrar of Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad having its office at Registrar Of Companies, ROC

Companies™/ “RoC”

Bhavan , Opp Rupal Park Society, Behind Ankur Bus Stop, Naranpura,Ahmedabad-380013,
Gujarat Phone: 079-27438531, Fax 079-27438371 roc.ahmedabad@mca.gov.in
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“Rights Issue

The committee of our Board constituted for purposes of the Issue and incidental matters thereof.

Committee”

“Shareholders/ Equity | TheEquity Shareholders of our Company, from time to time.

Shareholders”

“Stakeholders’  Relationship | The Committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company’s Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee” Committee in accordance with Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. For details, see

“Our Management” on page 62 of this Letter of Offer.

Materiality Policy

Policy on determination of materiality of events adopted by our Company in accordance with
Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

ASBA Account

Account maintained with a SCSB and specified in the Application Form or plain paper application,
as the case may be, for blocking the amount mentioned in the Application Form or the plain paper
application, in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders, as the case may be.

ASBA Applicant / ASBA
Investor

As per the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, all
investors (including renounce) shall make an application for a rights issue only through ASBA
facility.

ASBA Bid

A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including all revisions and modifications thereto as permitted
under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Banker(s) to the Issue

Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank and the Refund Banks to the Issue.

Bankers to the Issue | Agreement to be entered into by and among our Company, the Registrar to the Issue, and the

Agreement Bankers to the Issue for collection of the Application Money from Applicants/Investors, transfer
of funds to the Allotment Account and where applicable, refunds of the amounts collected from
Applicants/Investors, on the terms and conditions thereof.

Basis of Allotment The basis on which the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted to the successful applicants in the
Issue and which is described in “Terms of the Issue” on page 84.

Consolidated Certificate The certificate that would be issued for Rights Equity Shares Allotted to each folio in case of
Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form.

Controlling Branches/ | Such branches of the SCSBs, which coordinate with the Registrar to the Issue and BSE Limited, a

Controlling Branches of the
SCSBs

list of which is available on the website of SEBI updated from time to time, or at such other
website(s) as may be prescribed by the SEBI from time to time.

Demographic Details

Details of Investors including the Investor’s address, name of the Investor’s father/ husband,
investor status, occupation and bank account details, where applicable.

Designated SCSB Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Applications, used by the Investors and a list

Branches of which is available on the website of SEBI and /or such other websites as may be prescribed by
SEBI from time to time.

Designated Stock BSE Limited.

Exchange

Depository(ies) NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time
read with the Depositories Act, 1996.

Letter of The Letter of Offer dated 19" January, 2026 filed with the Stock Exchange.

Offer/DLoF/DLOF

Escrow Account One or more no-lien and non-interest-bearing accounts with the Escrow Collection Bank(s) for the

purposes of collecting the Application Money from resident investors— eligible equity shareholders as
on record date making an application through the ASBA facility.
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Escrow Collection Bank

Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an issue and with whom
Escrow Account(s) will be opened, in this case being [Axis Bank].

Eligible Equity Shareholders

Existing Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date. Please note that the investors eligible to
participate in the Issue exclude certain overseas shareholders. For further details, see “Notice to
Investors” on page 14.

Fraudulent Borrowers(s)

Fraudulent Borrowers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(lll) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018.

Issue / Rights Issue

Issue of up to 13658100 (One Crores Thirty Six Lacs Fifty Eight Thousand One Hundred) Equity
Shares of face value of ¥ 10 each of our Company for cash at a price of X 35.87/- per Rights Equity
Share (including a premium of X 25.87/- per Rights Equity Share) aggregating up to X 4899.16 Lakhs
on arights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company in the ratio of 5 Rights Equity
Shares for every 1 Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company on the
Record Date.

Issue Opening Date

Monday, 02" February 2026

Issue Closing Date

Wednesday, 11" February 2026

Issue Period

The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both days,
during which Applicants/Investors can submit their applications, in accordance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

Issue Material

Collectively, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Common Application Form
and Rights Entitlement Letter.

Issue Price

% 35.87/- per Rights Equity Share.

Issue Proceeds

Gross proceeds of the Issue.

Issue Size

Amount aggregating up to ¥ 4899.16 Lakhs

Letter of Offer/LOF

The final Letter of Offer to be filed with the Stock Exchanges and SEBI.

Listing Agreement

The uniform listing agreement entered into between our Company and the Stock Exchanges in
terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations

Net Proceeds Proceeds of the Issue less our Company’s share of Issue related expenses. For further information
about the Issue related expenses, see “Objects of the Issue” on page 39 of this Letter of Offer.
Non-ASBA Investor/ Investors other than ASBA Investors who apply in the Issue otherwise than through the ASBA

Non-ASBA Applicant

process comprising Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form or who
intend to renounce their Rights Entitlement in part or full and Renouncees.

Non-Institutional Bidders

or NllIs

An Investor other than a Retail Individual Investor or Qualified Institutional Buyer as defined
under Regulation 2(1) (jj) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Off Market Renunciation

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring them through
off market transfer through a depository participant in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue
Circulars and the circulars issued by the Depositories, from time to time, and other applicable laws.

On Market Renunciation

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading them over the
secondary market platform of the Stock Exchange through registered stock broker in accordance
with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Stock Exchanges, from time
to time, and other applicable laws, on or before Thursday 5" February 2026.




QIBs or Qualified

Institutional Buyers

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Record Date

Designated date for the purpose of determining the Equity Shareholders eligible to apply for Rights
Equity Shares, being BSE Limited.

Refund Bank(s)

The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in this case being
“Axis Bank Limited”

“Registrar to the
Company”

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd,

“Registrar to the Issue” /

“Registrar”

Purva Sharegistry (1) Private Limited

CIN: U67120MH1993PTCO074079

Unitno. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 011.
Telephone: +91 22 4961 4132; Facsimile: +91 22 22 3570 0224;

Registrar Agreement

Agreement dated 22" December, 2025 entered into among our Company and the Registrar in
relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the Issue pertaining to the Issue.

Renouncee(s)

Person(s) who has/have acquired the Rights Entitlement from the Eligible Equity Shareholders on
renunciation.

Renunciation Period

The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights Entitlements which
shall commence from the Issue Opening Date. Such period shall close on Thursday 5" February
2026 in case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that
renunciation through off- market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements
are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

Retail  Individual
Bidders(s)/Retail

Individual
RII(s)/RIB(s)

Investor(s)/

An individual Investor (including an HUF applying through Karta) who has applied for Rights
Equity Shares and whose Application Money is not more than 200,000 in the Issue as defined
under Regulation 2(1)(vv) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

RE ISIN

ISIN for Rights Entitlement i,e, INES803L.20016

Rights Entitlement

The number of Rights Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled to in proportion
to the number of Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholder on the Record Date, being
5 Rights Equity Shares for every 1 Equity Shares held on 23" January, 2026.

The Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN: INE803L20016 will be credited to your demat
account before the date of opening of the Issue, against the equity shares held by the Equity
Shareholders as on the Record Date.

Rights Entitlement Letter

Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders.

Rights Equity Shares

Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue.

SEBI Rights Issue Circulars

SEBI circular, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22,
2020.

Self-Certified
Banks” or “SCSBs

Syndicate

Self-certified syndicate bank(s) registered with SEBI, which acts as a banker to the Issue and which
offers the facility of ASBA. A list of all SCSBs is available at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=3 4, or such
other website as updated from time to time.

Stock Exchange(s)

Stock Exchange where the Equity Shares are presently listed, being BSE.



http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=3

Transfer Date

The date on which the amount held in the escrow account(s) and the amount blocked in the ASBA
Account will be transferred to the Allotment Account, upon finalization of the Basis of Allotment,
in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.

Willful Defaulter
and Fraudulent Borrower

Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with
the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by RBI.

Working Day

All days other than second and fourth Saturday of the month, Sunday or a public holiday, on which
commercial banks in Ahmedabad are open for business; provided however, with reference to

(@)

announcement of Price Band; and (b) Bid/lssue Period, Term Description the term Working Day
shall mean all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial
banks in Ahmedabad are open for business; and (c) the time period between the Bid/Issue Closing
Date and the listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange. “Working Day” shall mean all
trading days of the Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per the circulars
issued by SEBI.

Business and Industryrelated Ter

ms or Abbreviations+

Term Description

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate
Covid-19 Coronavirus Disease 2019

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GNI Gross National Income

GVA Gross Value Added

P Index of Industrial Production

IMF International Monetary Fund

INR Indian Rupee (%)

IT Information Technology

QoQ Quarter on Quarter

ROHS Restriction on certain hazardous substances
RowW Rest of World

USA/US United States of America

USD/ US$ US Dollar

WEO World Economic Outlook

YoY Year over Year

TPA Tonne Per Annum

Conventional and General Terms

or Abbreviations

Term Description
Alc Account
AGM Annual General Meeting




AlF Alternative Investment Fund, as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012

AS Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

BSE BSE Limited

CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CIN Corporate Identification Number

CIT Commissioner of Income Tax

CLRA Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970

Companies  Act, 2013
Companies Act

/

Companies Act, 2013 along with rules made thereunder

Companies Act 1956

Companies Act, 1956, and the rules thereunder (without reference to the provisions thereof that
have ceased to have effect upon the notification of the Notified Sections)

CS Company Secretary
CSR Corporate Social Responsibility
Depository(ies) A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories

and Participants) Regulations, 1996

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996

DIN Director Identification Number

DPID Depository Participant’s Identification Number

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting

EPF Act Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

EPS Earnings per share

ESI Act Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non-Resident (Bank) account established in accordance with the FEMA
FEMA The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations there under
FEMA Regulations The Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside

India) Regulations, 2017

Financial Year/Fiscal

The period of 12 months commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and
ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year

FPIs

A foreign portfolio investor who has been registered pursuant to the SEBI FPI Regulations,
provided that any FII who holds a valid certificate of registration shall be deemed to be an FPI until
the expiry of the block of three years for which fees have been paid as per the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995

Fugitive Economic Offender

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive
Economic Offenders Act, 2018
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FVCI

Foreign Venture Capital Investors (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000) registered with SEBI

GDP

Gross Domestic Product

Gol / Government

The Government of India

GST Goods and Services Tax

HUF(s) Hindu Undivided Family(ies)

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
ICSI The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
IFSC Indian Financial System Code

Income Tax Act/ IT Act

Income Tax Act, 1961

Ind AS The Indian Accounting Standards referred to in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015, as amended
Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India

Insider Trading Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as
amended from time to time

Insolvency Code Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as amended from time to time
INRoror Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India.

ISIN International Securities Identification Number

IT Information Technology

MCA The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Gol

Mn/mn Million

Mutual Funds

Mutual funds registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual
Funds) Regulations, 1996

N.A. or NA Not Applicable

NAV Net Asset Value

Notified Sections The sections of the Companies Act, 2013 that have been notified bythe MCA and are currently in
effect.

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

OCB A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly to the extent
of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which not less than 60% of beneficial interest
is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly and which was in existence on October 3, 2003
and immediately before such date was eligible to undertake transactions pursuant to general
permission granted to OCBs under FEMA. OCBs are not allowed to invest in the Issue.

p.a. Per annum

P/E Ratio Price/Earnings Ratio

PAN Permanent Account Number
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PAT Profit After Tax

Payment of Bonus Act Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

Payment of Gratuity Act Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

RBI The Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

Regulation S Regulation S under the Securities Act

R&D Research and Development

SCRA Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956

SCRR The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act, as
Amended

SEBI Act The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended

SEBI AlF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds)

Regulations, 2012, as amended

SEBI FPI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, as
amended

SEBI ICDR Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended

SEBI Listing Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended

SEBI  Takeover
Regulations or SEBI
(SAST) Regulations

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011, as amended

SEBI VCF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (\Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996, since repealed
and replaced by the SEBI (AlIF) Regulations

SIPCOT

State Industries Promotion Corporation of Tamil Nadu

Securities Act

The United States Securities Act of 1933.

STT

Securities Transaction Tax

State Government

The Government of a state in India

Trademarks Act

Trademarks Act, 1999, as amended

TDS

Tax Deducted at Source

US$/ USD/ US Dollar

United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America

USA/U.S./ US United States of America, itsterritories and possessions, any state of the United States of America
and the District of Columbia
U.S. GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America
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VAT

Value Added Tax

VCFs Venture Capital Funds as defined in and registered with the SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012, as the case may be

w.e.f. With effect from
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of this Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter
and the issue of Rights Entitlement (collectively “Issue Material”) and Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain jurisdictions outside
India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Letter of Offer, the
Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our
Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will electronically dispatch through email and
physical dispatch through speed post the Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter
only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or who have provided an Indian address to our Company.
Further, the Letter of Offer will be provided, through email and speed post, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible
Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and
sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. Investors
can also access the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form from the websites of the
Registrar, our Company, and the Stock Exchanges.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose. Accordingly,
the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and this the Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any
jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Letter of Offer or the Abridged
Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those
circumstances, this the Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer must be treated as sent for information purposes only and should
not be acted upon for subscription to the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving
a copy of this Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights
Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send this Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer to any person outside
India where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations. If this Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of
Offer or Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe
to the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or the Application
Form.

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in the Issue will be deemed
to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorised to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity
Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in his jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar, or anyother
person acting on behalf of our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid where they believe that Application
Form is incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements and we shall not
be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form. Neitherthe delivery
of this Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in our
Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time
subsequent to the date of this Letter of Offer or the date of such information.

Neither the delivery of this Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights Entitlement
Letter nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in our Company’s
affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent
to the date of this Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter or the date of
such information.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX OR INVESTMENT
ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR
LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF THE OFFER RIGHTS OF EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS
ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY, EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR
AND TAX ADVISOR

AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE OFFER OF EQUITY SHARES.
IN ADDITION, NEITHER OUR COMPANY IS MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF
THE EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH
OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES
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The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or the securities
laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the United States of America or the territories or possessions
thereof (“United States™), except in a transaction not subject to, or exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and
applicable state securities laws. The offering to which this Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed
as, an offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein of an offer to
buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register any portion of the Issue or any of the securities
described herein in the United States or to conduct a public offering of securities in the United States. Accordingly, this Letter of Offer
/ Abridged Letter of Offer and the enclosed Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letters should not be forwarded to or transmitted
in or into the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry of 40 days after the commencement of the Issue, an offer or sale of
Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares within the United States by a dealer (whether or not it is participating in the Issue) may
violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any person, or the agent of
any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf has reason to believe is in the United States
when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the
United States or otherwise dispatched from the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all
persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form must provide an address
for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders and
the Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched only to Eligible
Equity Shareholders who have an Indian address. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares will be
deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that, (i) it is not and that at the time of subscribing for such Rights Equity
Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States, and (ii) it is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the
Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the certification set out in the
Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorised to acquire the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States;
(iii) where a registered Indian address is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is incomplete or
acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be bound to
allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.

The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “US SEC”), any state securities commission in the United States or any other US regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing
authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy
of this Letter of Offer. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our company are not liable for any amendments or
modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised
to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable
limits under laws or regulations.

THIS DOCUMENT 1S SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR COMPANY OR
FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER
PERSON.

ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The Company is a Public Limited (Listed) Company under the laws of India and all the Directors and all Executive Officers are residents
of India. It may not be possible or may be difficult for investors to affect service of process upon the Company or these other persons
outside India or to enforce against them in courts in India, judgments obtained in courts outside India. India is not a party to any
international treaty in relation to the automatic recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments.

However, recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Sections 13, 14 and 44A of the Code of Civil
Procedure, 1908, as amended (the “Civil Procedure Code”). Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code provides that where a certified
copy of a decree of any superior court (within the meaning of that section) in any country or territory outside India which the Government
of India has by notification declared to be a reciprocating territory, is filed before a district court in India, such decree may be executed
in India as if the decree has been rendered by a district court in India. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code is applicable only to
monetary decrees or judgments not being in the nature of amounts payable in respect of taxes or other charges of a similar nature or in
respect of fines or other penalties. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code does not applyto arbitration awards even if such awards are
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enforceable as a decree or judgment. Among others, the United Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong and the United Arab Emirates have
been declared by the Government of India to be reciprocating territories within the meaning of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code.

The United States has not been declared by the Government of India to be a reciprocating territory for the purposes of Section 44A of
the Civil Procedure Code. Under Section 14 of the Civil Procedure Code, an Indian court shall, on production of any document purporting
to be a certified copy of a foreign judgment, presume that the judgment was pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction unless the
contrary appears on the record; but such presumption may be displaced by proving want of jurisdiction.

A judgment of a court in any non-reciprocating territory, such as the United States, may be enforced in India only by a suit upon the
judgment subject to Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, and not by proceedings in execution. Section 13 of the Civil Procedure
Code, which is the statutory basis for the recognition of foreign judgments (other than arbitration awards), states that a foreign judgment
shall be conclusive as to any matter directly adjudicated upon between the same parties or between parties under whom they or any of
them claim litigating under the same title except where:

e  Thejudgment has not been pronounced bya court of competent jurisdiction;
The judgment has not been given on the merits of the case;

e The judgment appears on the face of the proceedings to be founded on an incorrect view of international law or a refusal to
recognize the law of India in cases where such law is applicable;

e The proceedings in which the judgment was obtained are opposed to natural justice;

e Thejudgment has been obtained by fraud; and/or

e The judgment sustainsa claim founded on a breach of any law in force in India.

A suit to enforce a foreign judgment must be brought in India within three years from the date of the judgment in the same manner as
any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. It is unlikely that a court in India would award damages on the same basis as a
foreign court if an action is brought in India. In addition, it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if it
considered the amount of damages awarded as excessive or inconsistent with public policy or if the judgments are in breach of or
contrary to Indian law. A party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval from the Reserve Bank
of India to repatriate any amount recovered pursuant to execution of such judgment. Any judgment in a foreign currency would be
converted into Rupees on the date of such judgment and not on the date of payment and any such amount may be subject to income tax
in accordance with applicable laws. The Company cannot predict whether a suit brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in a timely
manner or be subject to considerable delays.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

All references to “India” contained in this Letter of Offer are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions and all references
herein to the “Government”, “Indian Government”, “Gol”, Central Government” or the “State Government” are to the Government of
India, central or state, as applicable.

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Letter of Offer to the ‘US’ or ‘U.S.” or the ‘United
States’ are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time (“IST”). Unless indicated otherwise,
all references to a year in this Letter of Offer are to a calendar year.

Acreference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever applicable.
Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of this Letter of Offer.
Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this Letter of Offer has been
derived from our Financial Statements. For details, please see “Financial Information” on page 68. Our Company’s financial year
commences on April 01 and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year, unless stated
otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month period ended on March 31 of that year.

The Gol has adopted the Indian accounting standards (“Ind AS”), which are converged with the International Financial Reporting
Standards of the International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS”) and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (the “Ind AS Rules™).

The Audited Financial Statements of Our Company for the Financial Years ended March 2024 and for period ended 30" June, 2024
prepared in accordance with Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act read with the Ind AS Rules and other the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act and in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company
Prospectuses (revised), 2019, issued by the ICAI. Our Company publishes its financial statements in Rupees.

Inthis Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding off and
unless otherwise specified all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative figures. Our Company has presented all numerical
information in this Letter of Offer in “lakh” units or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to represent in lakh. One
lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000.

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation of the financial
information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to also explain those differences or quantify their impact on the
financial data included in this Letter of Offer, and you are urged to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact
on our financial data.

Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely
dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act and the SEBI
ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with these accounting principles and regulations on our financial disclosures
presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited. For further information, see “Financial Information” on page 68.

Certain figures contained in this Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to rounded off adjustments. All
figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two decimals. However, where any figures that may have
been sourced from third-party industry sources are rounded off to other than two decimal points in their respective sources, such figures
appear in this Letter of Offer rounded-off to such number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources. In this Letter of
Offer, (i) the sum or percentage change of certain numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the
numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. Any such
discrepancies are due to rounding off.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to:
“Rupees” or “T” or “INR” or “X” are to Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India;

“USD” or “US$” or “$” are to United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America; and
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“Euro” or “€” are to Euros, the official currency of the European Union.

Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Letter of Offer in “lakh” or “Lac” units. One lakh represents 1,00,000
and one million represents 1,000,000. All the numbers in the document have been presented in lakh or in whole numbers where the
numbers have been too small to present in lakh. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operation” and elsewhere in this Letter of Offer, unless otherwise
indicated, have been calculated based on our Audited Financial Information.

Exchange Rates

This Letter of Offer contains conversions of certain other currencyamounts into Indian Rupees that have been presented solelyto comply
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed as a representation that these currency amounts could have
been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and
other foreign currencies:

Currency Exchange rate as on

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 USD 83.30 82.22 75.81
1 Euro 89.94 89.61 84.66

(Source: www.rbi.org.in and https://www.fbil.org.in/#/home)

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived from publicly available
information as well as industry publications and sources.

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from publicly available
documents from various sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and their reliability
cannot be assured.

Although we believe the industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer isreliable, it has not been independently verified by us. The
data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes of presentation. Data from these sources may also not be
comparable. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors,
including those discussed in “Risk Factors” on page 24, this Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based
solely on such information.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on the reader’s familiarity with and
understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in
which the business of our Company is conducted, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.
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FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Letter of Offer contains certain “forward-looking statements”. Forward looking statements appear throughout this Letter of Offer,
including, without limitation, under the chapters titled “Risk Factors™, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Industry Overview”. Forward-looking statements include statements concerning
our Company’s plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenues or financial performance, capital expenditures,
financing needs, plans or intentions relating to acquisitions, our Company’s competitive strengths and weaknesses, our Company’s
business strategy and the trends our Company anticipates in the industries and the political and legal environment, and geographical
locations, in which our Company operates, and other information that is not historical information. These forward-looking statements
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generally can be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “continue”, “can”, “could”, “expect”, “estimate”,
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“intend”, “likely”, “may”, “objective”, “plan”, “potential”, “project”, “pursue”, “shall”, “seek to”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue”,
“forecast”, “target”, or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe the strategies, objectives, plans or
goals of our Company are also forward-looking statements. However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking

statements.

All statements regarding our Company’s expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and prospects are forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to our Company’s business strategy, planned projects,
revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any financial or operating projections or forecasts), new business and other
matters discussed in this Letter of Offer that are not historical facts. These forward-looking statements contained in this Letter of Offer
(whether made by our Company or any third party), are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions
and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to risks or uncertainties associated with
our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the industry in which our Company operates and
our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, the competition in our
industry and markets, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political conditions in India and
globally which have an impact on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation,
unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial
markets in India and globally, changes in laws, regulations and taxes, incidence of natural calamities and/or acts of violence. Important
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our Company’s expectations include, but are not limited to, the following:

Changes in government policies and the regulatory frameworks supporting renewable energy development;
Decline in market electricity prices;

We may not have adequate insurance to cover the hazards of our business;

We may be unable to keep pace with technical and technological developments in our industry;

Changes in weather conditions, which may affect wind patterns;

Economic, political and social developments in India and other jurisdictions in which we operate;

Risks arising from interest rate and currency rate fluctuations;

Changesin legislation governing the tax regimes under which we operate.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from our estimates and expectations, see “Risk Factors”,
“Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” beginning on pages 24,
55 and 69, respectively, of this Letter of Offer. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially
different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been
estimated.

We cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. Given these
uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and not to regard such statements
as a guarantee of future performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as of the date of this Letter of Offer and are not a guarantee of
future performance. These statements are based on the management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently
available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any
of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect.
Neither our Company, our Directors, Our Promoters and Promoters Group nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors have any
obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence
of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.
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In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Our Company will ensure that investors are informed of material developments from
the date of this Letter of Offer until the time of receipt of the listing and trading permissions from the Stock Exchange.
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SUMMARY OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of the terms of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is qualified by the more
detailed information appearing in this Letter of Offer, including the sections titled “Risk Factors”, “The Issue”, “Capital Structure”,
“Objects of the Issue”, “Our Business”, “Industry Overview”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” and “Terms of the
Issue” on pages 24, 30, 37, 39, 55, 51, 77 and 84 respectively.

Summary of primary Business

The company was established in the year 1992-93, and lately converted into a Public Limited Company (PLC) "Galaxy Agrico Export
Ltd." in short span of time has made its presence, felt globally among the industries of agriculture, gardening & industrial tools, with
highest installed capacity in India to Manufacture - Hoes, Picsk & Mattocks, Shovel & Spades, Forks, Garden tools, Diggers, Cultivator
blades, Bars, Tampers etc. In the brand name of "GALAXY" The company is exporting 100% of its production to more than 39 countries.
Such as Europe, USA, Central & Latin America, Africa, Saudi Arabia, UAE and other countries.

The company is producing execellent quality products by using evermore advanced technology such as single piece forged, induction &
continues conveyor hardening & tempering treatment, powder coating / apoxy coat & enamel paint finishing, export worthy packing &
an inspection is carried out of every stage of production. The growth of the company is the efforts of the entire dedicated, skilled
professionals team & the unflinching support of its customers around the universe.

The company has been awarded the certificate for achieving highest export performance and also Awarded the highest exporters trophy
in the category of the highest growth in exports from year 1997 & onward every year by engineering export promotion council,
(sponsored by Ministry of Commerce Govt. of India.)

For further details, please refer to the Chapter titled “Our Business” at page 55 of this Letter of Offer.

Objects of the Issue

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in the manner set out in the following table: (Z in Lakhs)
Sr. No. Particulars Amount (In Rs. Lakhs)
1 Gross Proceeds to be raised through this Issue Upto 4,900
Less: Issue Related Expenses 80.00
2 Net Proceeds from the lIssue 4,820
3 Utilization of Net Proceeds
A For purchase of property in Hyderabad 2,000
B Takeover/ acquisition of the Company 1,000
C Working Capital Requirement 620
D General Corporate Purposes 1,200
Total Net Proceeds 4,820

*The Issue size will not exceed 4,900.00 Lakh (Rupees Forty-Nine Crore Only Only). If there is any reduction in the amount on account
of or atthe time of finalization of Issue Price and Rights Entitlements Ratio, the same will be adjusted against General Corporate
Purpose.

SUBSCRIPTION TO THE ISSUE BY OUR PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP

Our Promoters and Promoter Group vide their letters dated September 05, 2025 have agreed that they may or may not: (a) subscribe,
jointly and/ or severally to the full extent of their Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlement that may
be renounced in their favour by any other Promoters, member(s) of the Promoter Group of our Company; (b) subscribe to, either
individually or jointly and/ or severally with any other Promoters or member of the Promoter Group, for additional Rights Equity Shares,
including subscribing to unsubscribed portion (if any) in the Issue; (c) subscribe to, either individually or jointly and/ or severally with
any other Shareholder for additional Rights Equity Shares, including subscribing to unsubscribed portion (if any) in the Issue; (d) the
eligible members of our Promoter Group reserve the right to subscribe either itself and/or through third party(ies) by renouncing their
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Rights Entitlement in the Issue, including in an event of under-subscription in this Issue, subject to the post issue aggregate shareholding
of our Promoter and members of our Promoter Group not resulting in the minimum public shareholding of the issuer falling below the
level prescribed under 25 under the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time; (e) Further, in accordance with
Regulation 86 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90% of the Issue Size, or
the subscription level falls below 90% of the Issue Size, after the Issue Closing Date.

Subject to provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act and other applicable laws, Our Company reserves the right not
to proceed with the Issue at any time before the Issue Opening Date without assigning any reason thereof. If our Company withdraws
the Issue any time after the Issue Opening Date, a public notice within two (2) Working Days of the Issue Closing Date or such other
time as may be prescribed by SEBI, providing reasons for not proceeding with the Issue shall be issued by our Company. The notice of
withdrawal will be issued in the same newspapers where the pre-Issue advertisement has appeared, and the Stock Exchange will also be
informed promptly. The Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts within one (1) working Day from
the day of receipt of such instruction. Our Company shall also inform the same to the Stock Exchange. If our Company withdraws the
Issue at any stage including after the Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to proceed with an Issue of the Equity Shares, our
Company will file a fresh offer document with the stock exchange where the Equity Shares may be proposed to be listed. However, if
Promoter of our Company; (i) subscribe to the full extent of its Rights Entitlement, and that if not renounce its Rights Entitlement to any
individual / entity outside the promoter group the Minimum Subscription of 90% of the Issue Size will not apply to the Company in
accordance with Regulation 86 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 as the object of the issue involves financing other than financing of
capital expenditure for a project.

Such subscriptions of Equity Shares over and above its Rights Entitlement, if allotted, may result in an increase in its percentage
shareholding above their current percentage shareholding. Any acquisition of additional Equity Shares shall not result in change of
control of the management of the Company in accordance with provisions of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011 and Promoters will continue to be the Promoter of the Company.

Any such increase in the shareholding of the Promoter will be exempt subject to fulfilment of the conditions of Regulation 10 of the
SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011.

In case the rights issue remains unsubscribed and / or minimum subscription is not achieved, the Board of Directors may dispose of such
unsubscribed portion in the best interest of the Company and in compliance with the applicable laws.

Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum
public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue.

Summary of Outstanding Litigation

A summary of the pending tax proceedings and other material litigations involving our Company, our Promoters, our Directors and our
Subsidiaries is provided below:

(Z in Lakhs)
Name of Entity | Criminal Tax Statutory or Disciplinary Material Civil Aggregate
Proceedings Proceedings Regulatory actions by the Litigations amount
Proceedings SEBI or Stock .
Exchanges Involved (Rs in
Lakhs)
Company
By the Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Company
Against the Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Company
Directors
Bythe Directors | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Against the Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors
Subsidiaries
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By the Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Subsidiaries

Against the Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Subsidiaries

Note: The Issuer Company does not have any subsidiaries.

For further details, please refer the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments™ on page 77 of this Letter of
Offer.

Risk Factors

Please see the chapter titled “Risk Factors™ beginning on page 24 of this Letter of Offer.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities

For details of contingent liabilities for the FY 2024-25, please see the section titled “Financial Information” beginning on page 68.

Summary of Related Party Transactions

For details of related partytransactions for the FY 2024-25, please see the section titled “Financial Information” beginning on page
68.

Issue of equity shares made in last one year for consideration other than cash

Our Company has not made any issuances of equity shares in the last one year for consideration other than cash.
Split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year

Our Company has not undertaken a split or consolidation of equity shares in the last one year.

Exemption from complying with any provisions of securities laws, if any, granted by SEBI

Our Company has not applied for or received any exemption from the SEBI from complying with any provisions of securities laws, as
on the date of this Letter of Offer.
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SECTION II - RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information in this Letter of
Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in the Equity Shares. In making an investment
decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of us and the terms of the Issue including the merits and risks involved.
The risks described below are not the only ones relevant to us, our equity shares, the industry or the segment in which we operate.
Additional risks and uncertainties, not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may arise or may become material in
the future and may also impair our business, results of operations and financial condition. If any of the following risks, or other risks
that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually occur, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition could be adversely affected, the trading price of our Equity Shares could decline, and as prospective investors, you may lose
all or part of your investment. You should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about particular consequences to you of an
investment in this Issue. The financial and other related implications of the risk factors, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in
the risk factors mentioned below. However, there are certain risk factors where the financial impact is not quantifiable and, therefore,
cannot be disclosed in such risk factors.

»

To obtain a complete understanding, you should read this section in conjunction with the sections “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” on pages 51, 55 and 69 of this Letter
of Offer, respectively. The industry-related information disclosed in this section has been derived from publicly available documents
from various sources believed to be reliable, but their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be
assured. Neither our Company, nor any other person connected with the Issue has independently verified the information in the industry
report or other publicly available information cited in this section.

This Letter of Offer also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, assumptions, estimates and uncertainties. Our actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the
considerations described below and, in the section titled “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 19 of this Letter of Offer.

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial or other implications
of any of the risks described in this section. Unless the context requires otherwise, the financial information of our Company has been
derived from the Audited Financial Information, prepared in accordance with Ind AS and the Companies Act and in accordance with
the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Materiality:

The Risk Factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered for determining
the materiality of Risk Factors:

. Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively;
. Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; and
. Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in future.

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable have been disclosed in the risk factors mentioned
below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable and hence, the same has not been disclosed in such risk
factors. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner indicate
the importance of one risk over another.

Inthis Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and sums of the amount listed are due to rounding off. In this section,
unless the context requires otherwise, any reference to “we”, “us” or “our” refers to Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited. The risk factors are
classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding.

NOTE:

The risk factors are disclosed as envisaged by the management along with the proposals to address the risk if any. Unless specified
or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial implication of any of the risks
described in this section. In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and the sums of the amount listed
are due to rounding off. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “RISK FACTORS” and elsewhere in this Letter of Offer unless
otherwise indicated, has been calculated on the basis of the amount disclosed in our audited financial statements. Unless
otherwise specifically provided in the respective Risk factors given below, the amounts of impact of risks specified hereunder,
on our financial conditions, are not quantifiable.
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INTERNAL RISK FACTORS
1.  We operate ina highly competitive industry.

We operate in a highly competitive industry. Any inability to compete effectively may lead to a lower market share or reduced operating
margins. The manufacturing and Exporter of agriculture gardening industrial tools is fiercely competitive, with numerous participants
engaging in similar activities, both within India and internationally. To maintain our competitiveness in the market, we must consistently
focus on optimizing our trading processes, reducing costs, enhancing distribution efficiency, and innovating our approach to commodity
trading. Failure to do so may negatively impact our market share and overall financial performance.

In the context of our trading activities, we may incur substantial expenses in preparing to meet anticipated customer requirements, which
may not be fully recoverable. For instance, the market for agriculture, gardening, and industrial tools is competitive, with customers
seeking innovative products that offer greater efficiency, durability, or ease of use. Failure to innovate and keep pace with industry trends
can result in loss of market share. Additionally, there is no guarantee that we will remain competitive in terms of technology, trading
strategies, and overall service quality to meet our customers' expectations. Future negotiations with significant customers may result in
less favorable pricing terms compared to our existing agreements.

Many of our competitors in manufacturing of agriculture, gardening, and industrial tools and trading industry may be larger and benefit
from greater economies of scale and operational efficiencies. There is no assurance that we can continue to effectively compete with
such entities in the future. High costs associated with research and development (R&D) may not always yield successful products.
Unsuccessful R&D efforts can result in sunk costs, impacting the company’'s financial performance.

2. Our insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against certain operating risks and this may have an adverse effect
on the results of our business.

We are insured for a risks associated with our business, through various policies. We believe that we have got our assets and stock
adequately insured, however our policy of covering these risks through insurance may not always be effective or adequate, there can be
no assurance that any claim under the insurance policies maintained by us will be honoured fully, in part or on time, to cover all material
losses. To the extent that we suffer any loss or damage that is not covered by insurance or exceeds our insurance coverage, our business
and results of operations could be adversely affected.

3. Ifwe are unable to source business opportunities effectively, we may not achieve our financial objectives.

Our ability to achieve our financial objectives will depend on our ability to identify, evaluate and accomplish business opportunities. To
grow our business, we will need to hire, train, supervise and manage new employees, expand our sales channel and to implement systems
capable of effectively accommodating our growth. However, we cannot assure that any such employees or marketing agents will
contribute to the success of our business or that we will implement such systems effectively. Our failure to source business opportunities
effectively could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. It is also possible that the
strategies used by us in the future may be different from those presently in use. No assurance can be given that our analysis of market
conditions and other data or the strategies that we may use in future to use will be successful under various market conditions.

4. The purposes for which the proceeds of the Issue are to be utilized have not been appraised by any bank or financial
institution. In the event of any upward revision in the estimates, our proposed expenditure would increase which could
adversely affect our results of operations, profitability and our ability to effectively implement our business plans.

We intend to use the proceeds that we receive from the Issue for the purposes described in section "Use of Proceeds" beginning on page
45 of the Letter of Offer. The estimated project cost has not been appraised by any bank or financial institution. The fund requirements
are based on management estimates and on current market conditions. In view of the competitive nature of our industry, we may have
to revise our management estimates from time to time and consequently our funding requirements may also change. This may result in
the rescheduling of our expenditure programs or increase in our proposed expenditure for our objects and which may adversely affect
our results of operations profitability and our ability to effectively implement our business plans. Further, the utilization of the proceeds
from the Issue will be monitored by our Board and is not subject to any monitoring by any independent agency.

5. Our sales are geographically concentrated.

Our sales are particularly concentrated in Rajkot. Any adverse developments or challenges in selling our products in Gujarat, or a decline
in demand from this key market, could disproportionately affect our overall revenue and financial stability. We recognize the importance
of diversifying our sales channels to reduce dependency on specific regions and mitigate the risks associated with geographical
concentration.
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6. We have high working capital requirements. If we experience insufficient cash flows to meet required payments on our debt
and working capital requirements, there may be an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our business requires a significant amount of working capital and financing. Presently the company is not availing any working capital
facilities from any banks and the same is being met by internal accruals and arrangements. Moreover, we may need to incur additional
indebtedness in the future to satisfy our working capital needs. The inability of our Company to obtain such financing, in a timely
manner, on commercially favourable terms to us, or at all may impair our business, results of operations, financial condition and
prospects. Presently company does not avail any credit facilities from any Banks or Financial Institutions.

7. Our success depends largely on our senior management and our ability to attract and retain our key personnel.

Our success depends on the continued services and performance of our senior management. Competition for senior employees in the
industry is intense and we may not be able to retain our existing team members or attract and retain new team members in the future.
The loss of any member of our key team may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. We do not
maintain key man’s life insurance for our Promoters, senior members of our management team or other key personnel.

8. Inaddition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of expenses, our Promoters, our Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel are interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding, and dividend entitlements etc.

Our Promoters, Directors and Key Management Personnel are deemed to be interested to the extent of the Equity Shares held by them,
or their relatives, dividend entitlements, and benefits deriving from the directorship in our Company.

9. We are exposed to the risk of delays or non-payment by our clients and other counterparties, which may also result in cash
flow mismatches.

We are exposed to counterparty credit risk in the usual course of our business dealings with our clients or other counterparties who may
delay or fail to make payments or perform their other contractual obligations. The financial condition of our clients, business partners,
suppliers and other counterparties may be affected by the performance of their business which may be impacted by several factors
including general economic conditions. We cannot assure you of the continued viability of our counterparties or that we will accurately
assess their creditworthiness. We also cannot assure you that we will be able to collect the whole or any part of any overdue payments.
Any material non-payment or non-performance by our clients, business partners, suppliers or other counterparties could affect our
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

10. Third party industry and statistical data in this Letter of Offer may be incomplete, incorrect or unreliable.

We have not independently verified data from industry and other publications contained herein and although we believe these sources to
be reliable, we cannot assure you that they are complete or reliable. Such data may also be produced on a different basisfrom comparable
information compiled with regard to other countries. Therefore, discussions of matters relating to India and its economy are subject to
the caveat that the statistical and other data upon which such discussions are based have not been verified by us and may be incomplete
or unreliable.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

11. Our business is dependent on the Indian economy.

The performance and growth of our business are necessarily dependent on economic conditions prevalent in India, which may be
materially and adversely affected by center or state political instability or regional conflicts, a general rise in interest rates, inflation, and
economic slowdown elsewhere in the world or otherwise. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of India. India’s
economic growth is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade movements, namely export
demand and movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty and liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates. Any
continued or future slowdown in the Indian economy or a further increase in inflation could have a material adverse effect on the price
of our raw materials and demand for our products and, as a result, on our business and financial results. The Indian financial market and
the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian
countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe, the U.S. and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although
economic conditions are differentin each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the
securities of companies in other countries, including India. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging
markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide
financial instability, including the financial crisis and fluctuations in the stock markets in China and further deterioration of credit
conditions in the U.S. or European markets, could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur
again and could harm our business and financial results.
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12. Regional hostilities, terrorist attacks, communal disturbances, civil unrest and other acts of violence or war involving India
and other countries may result in aloss of investor confidence and adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence or war may negatively affect the Indian markets on which our Equity Shares will
trade and also adversely affect the worldwide financial markets. In addition, the Asian region has from time-to-time experienced
instances of civil unrest and hostilities among neighboring countries. Hostilities and tensions may occur in the future and on a wider
scale. Military activity or terrorist attacks in India, may result in investor concern about stability in the region, which may adversely
affect the price of our Equity Shares. Events of this nature in the future, as well as social and civil unrest within other countries in the
world, could influence the Indian economy and could have an adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian companies, including
our Equity Shares.

13. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties in India, including adverse application of tax laws and
regulations, may adversely affect our business and financial performance.

Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by changes in law or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation
of new, laws, rules and regulations in India applicable to us and our business. For further details please refer to the chapter “Government
and Other Approvals” on page 78 for details of the laws currently applicable to us. There can be no assurance that the central or the state
governments in India may not implement new regulations and policies which will require us to obtain approvals and licenses from the
central or the state governments in India and other regulatory bodies or impose onerous requirements and conditions on our operations.
Any such changes and the related uncertainties with respect to the implementation of the new regulations may have a material adverse
effect on all our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, we may have to incur capital expenditures to comply
with the requirements of any new regulations, which may also materially harm our results of operations.

14. Instability in financial markets could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian economy and financial markets are significantly influenced by worldwide economic, financial and market conditions. Any
financial turmoil, especially in the United States of America or Europe, may have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Although
economic conditions differ in each country, investors’ reactions to any significant developments in one country can have adverse effects
on the financial and market conditions in other countries. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems, particularly in other
emerging markets, may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets. The global financial turmoil, an outcome of the sub-prime
mortgage crisis which originated in the United States of America, led to a loss of investor confidence in worldwide financial markets.
Indian financial markets have also experienced the contagion effect of the global financial turmoil, evident from the sharp decline in
SENSEX, BSE’s benchmark index. Any prolonged financial crisis may have an adverse impact on the Indian economy and us, thereby
resulting in a material and adverse effect on our business, operations, financial condition, profitability and price of our Equity Shares.

15. Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause Our Company’s business to suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. In recent years, the extent and severity of these natural
disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall or other natural calamities could have a
negative impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations as well as the price of the Equity Shares.

16. Government regulation of foreign ownership of Indian securities may have an adverse effect on the price of the Equity
Shares.

Foreign ownership of Indian securities is subject to government regulation. Under foreign exchange regulations currently in affect in
India, transfer of shares between non-residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the
pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, is not in
compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior
approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the rupees proceeds from the sale of shares in India
into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate from the Income Tax
authorities. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other government agency can be obtained.

17. Our performance is linked to the stability of policies and the political situation in India. The Government of India has
traditionally exercised, and continues to exercise, a significant influence over many aspects of the economy.
Our business, and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares, may be affected by interest rates, changes in government policy,
taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other developments in or affecting India. Since 1991, successive Indian
governments have pursued policies of economic liberalization and financial sector reforms. The current Government has announced its
general intention to continue India’s current economic and financial sector liberalization and deregulation policies. However, there can
be no assurance that such policies will be continued and a significant change in the government’s policies in the future could affect
business and economic conditions in India and could also adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations. Any political instability in India may adversely affect the Indian securities markets in general, which could also adversely
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affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Any political instability could delay the reform of the Indian economy and could have a
material adverse effect on the market for our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance to the investors that these liberalization policies
will continue under the newly elected government. Protests against privatization could slow down the pace of liberalization and
deregulation. The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting companies in the industrial
equipment manufacturing sectors, foreign investment, currency exchange rates and other matters affecting investment in our securities
could change as well. A significant change in India’s economic liberalization and deregulation policies could disrupt business and
economic conditions in India and thereby affect our business.

RISKS RELATING TO THE EQUITY SHARES

18. Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without compensation and
result in a dilution of shareholding.

The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and become null and void, and
Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The proportionate ownership and voting interest in our
Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who fail (or are not able) to exercise their Rights Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you
elect to sell your unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you receive for them may not be sufficient to fully compensate you
for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the equity share capital of our Company that may be caused as a result of the Issue.
Renouncee (s) may not be able to apply in case of failure in completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that
the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee (s) prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case, the Rights
Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will not be able to apply in this Issue with
respect to such Rights Entitlements.

19. Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, or convertible securities by our Company may dilute your future shareholding
and sales of the Equity Shares by our Promoters or other major shareholders of our Company may adversely affect the
trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, or convertible securities by our Company, including through exercise of employee stock
options or restricted stock units may lead to dilution of your shareholding in our Company, adversely affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. Further, any future sales of the Equity Shares by the
Promoters and members of our Promoters Group, or other major shareholders of our Company may adversely affect the trading price of
the Equity Shares.

20. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed in a timely manner or at all, and any trading closures at the
Stock Exchanges may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of the Equity Shares will not be granted by the Stock
Exchanges until after those Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Approval will require all relevant documents authorizing the
issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted. There could be a failure or delay in listing the Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges. Any failure
or delay in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares. Further, historical trading prices, therefore,
may not be indicative of the prices at which the Equity Shares will trade in the future. Secondary market trading in our Equity Shares
may be halted by a stock exchange because of market conditions or other reasons. Additionally, an exchange or market may also close
or issue trading halts on specific securities, or the ability to buy or sell certain securities or financial instruments may be restricted, which
may adversely impact the ability of our shareholders to sell the Equity Shares or the price at which shareholders may be able to sell their
Equity Shares at a particular point in time.

21. Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise preemptive rights under Indian law and could
thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares pre-emptive rights to subscribe and
pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing ownership percentages prior to the issuance of any new equity shares,
unless the pre-emptive rights have been waived by the adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted
on such resolution, unless our Company has obtained government approval to issue without such rights. However, if the law of the
jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of such pre-emptive rights without us filing an offering document or registration
statement with the applicable authority in such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre emptive rights unless we make such a
filing. We may elect not to file a registration statement in relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by Indian law to you. To the
extent that you are unable to exercise preemptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares, your proportional interests in us would be
reduced.

22. There may not be an active or liquid market for our Equity Shares, which may cause the price of the Equity Shares to fall
and may limit your ability to sell the Equity Shares.

The price at which the Equity Shares will trade after this Issue will be determined by the marketplace and may be influenced by many
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factors, including:
« our financial results and the financial results of the companies in the businesses we operate in;
« the history of, and the prospects for, our business and the sectors in which we compete;
« the valuation of publicly traded companies that are engaged in business activities similar to us; and
« significant developments in India’s economic liberalization and deregulation policies.

In addition, the Indian equity share markets have from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have
affected the market prices for the securities of Indian companies. As a result, investors in the Equity Shares may experience a decrease
in the value of the Equity Shares regardless of our operating performance or prospects.

23. No market for the Right Entitlements may develop and the price of the Right Entitlements may be volatile.

No assurance can be given that an active trading market for the Rights Entitlements will develop on the Stock Exchanges during the
Renunciation Period or that there will be sufficient liquidity in Rights Entitlements trading during this period. The trading price of the
Rights Entitlements will not only depend on supply and demand for the Rights Entitlements, which may be affected by factors unrelated
to the trading in the Equity Shares, but also on the quoted price of the Equity Shares, amongst others. Factors affecting the volatility of
the price of the Equity Shares, as described herein, may magnify the volatility of the trading price of the Rights Entitlements, and a
decline in the price of the Equity Shares will have an adverse impact on the trading price of the Rights Entitlements. Since the trading
of the Rights Equity Shares will be on a separate segment compared to the Equity Shares on the floor of the Stock Exchanges, the trading
of Rights Equity Shares may not track the trading of Equity Shares.

24. The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form (“Physical Shareholders™)
may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar.

In accordance with the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the credit of Rights Entitlement and
Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders
shall be credited in a suspense escrow demat account opened by our Company during the Issue Period. The Physical Shareholders are
requested to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date
to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights
Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders who do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two
Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse. Further, pursuant to a press release dated December 3, 2018 issued by the
SEBI, with effect from April 1, 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless the Equity Shares are held in
dematerialized form (except in case of transmission or transposition of Equity Shares).

25. Applicantsto the Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing Date.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Applicants in the Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing
Date. The Allotment in the Issue and the credit of such Equity Shares to the Applicant’s demat account with its depository participant
shall be completed within such period as prescribed under the applicable laws. There is no assurance, however, that material adverse
changes in the international or national monetary, financial, political or economic conditions or other events in the nature of force
majeure, material adverse changes in our business, results of operation or financial condition, or other events affecting the Applicant’s
decision to invest in the Rights Equity Shares, would not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in the Issue.
Occurrence of any such events after the Issue Closing Date could also impact the market price of our Equity Shares.

The Applicants shall not have the right to withdraw their applications in the event of any such occurrence. We cannot assure you that
the market price of the Equity Shares will not decline below the Issue Price. To the extent the market price for the Equity Shares declines
below the Issue Price after the Issue Closing Date, the shareholder will be required to purchase Rights Equity Shares at a price that will
be higher than the actual market price for the Equity Shares at that time. Should that occur, the shareholder will suffer an immediate
unrealized loss as a result. We may complete the Allotment even if such events may limit the Applicants’ ability to sell our Equity Shares
after the Issue or cause the trading price of our Equity Shares to decline.
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SECTION 111 - INTRODUCTION
THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on September 16, 2024, pursuant to
Section 62(1) (a) of the Companies Act. The terms of the Issue including the Record Date and Rights Entitlement ratio, have been
approved by a resolution passed by the Rights Issue Committee at its meeting held on 19" January, 2026.

The following is a summary of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is qualified entirely by, the information
detailed in the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 84 of this Letter of Offer.

Particulars

Details of Equity Shares

Equity Shares proposed to be issued

Up to 13658100 Equity Shares

Rights Entitlement

5 Equity Share(s) for every 1 fully paid-up Equity Share(s) held on the Record Date

Fractional Entitlement

For Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue, if the shareholding
of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than 1 (One) Equity Shares or is not
in multiples of 1 (One), the fractional entitlement of such Eligible Equity Shareholders
shall be ignored for computation of the Rights Entitlement. However, Eligible Equity
Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored earlier will be given
preference in the Allotment of one additional Equity Share each, if such Eligible Equity
Shareholders have applied for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights
Entitlement,

ifany.
Record Date 23 January, 2026
Face value per Equity Shares* 3 10/-
Issue Price per Rights Equity Shares 3 35.877-

Issue Size

Ug) to ¥ 13658100 Equity Shares of face value of X 10 each for cash at a price of X
35.87/- (Including a premium of % 25.87/-) per Rights Equity Share not exceeding an
amount of X 4899.16 Lakhs.

Voting Rights and Dividend

The Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall rank pari pasu in all
respects with the existing equity shares of our Company.

Equity Shares issued, subscribed and paid
up prior to the Issue

27,31,620 Equity Shares of % 10/- each.

Equity Shares subscribed and paid-up
after the Issue (assuming full subscription
for and allotment of the Rights
Entitlement)

Upto 16389720 Equity Shares

Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue

(assuming full subscription for
and Allotment of the Rights Entitlement)

16389720 Equity Shares

Money payable at the time of
Application

On Application, Investors will have to pay X 35.87/- (Thirty Five and Eighty Seven
Paise Only) per Rights Equity Share which constitutes 100% (Hundred percent) of the
Issue Price.

Security Codes for the Equity Shares

ISIN: INE803L01016
BSE: 531911

ISIN for Rights Entitlements

ISIN: INES03L.20016

Use of Issue Proceeds

For details, please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 39 of
this Letter of Offer.

Terms of the Issue

For detalls, please refer to the chapter titfled ~Terms of the ISSUE” on page 84 of this
Letter of Offer.

Please refer to the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue™ on page 84 of this Letter of Offer.

Issue Schedule

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking hours

on the dates mentioned below:

Event

Indicative Date

Issue Opening Date

Monday 02™ February 2026

Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights**

Thursday 5" February 2026

Issue Closing Date*

Wednesday 11" February 2026
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*The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may
determine from time to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue
Opening Date.

** Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in
such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue
Closing Date.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was originally incorporated as Galaxy Agrico Private Limited under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of
Companies, Ahmedabad and consequently a certificate of incorporation dated February 23, 1994. Later, the name of the company was
changed from “Galaxy Agrico Private Limited” to its present name “Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited” vide fresh certificate of

incorporation consequent upon change of name “ROC letter no 04-21368 of 1993-94.”

Registered Office of Our Company
236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate, Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024

TEL: +91-2827-252676, 254371

EMAIL: info@galaxyagrico.com

WEBSITE: www.galaxyagrico.com

CIN: L01110GJ1994PLC021368

Registration Number: 021368

Registrar of Companies

Our Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad.

Address : ROC Bhavan , Opp Rupal Park Society, Behind Ankur Bus Stop,
Naranpura, Ahmedabad-380013, Gujarat

Phone: 079-27438531, Fax 079-27438371
Email Id: roc.ahmedabad@mca.gov.in

Board of Directors of our Company

Set forth below are the details of our Board of Directors as on the date of this Letter of Offer:

Name

Designation

Address

DIN

Nathabhai Jerambhai Sadaria

Managing Director

A-7, Kasturi Appartment, Akshar Marg, Nr.
Bhaktidh, Unchehara, Rajkot, Gujarat- 360001

00167254

Ajay Ramjibhai Patel

Director

7102, Takshashila Society 2, Opp Star Plaza,
Phulc Unchehara, Rajkot, Gujarat- 360001

00167284

Mausamiben Pareshbhai Sadaria

Director

7 A Kasturi Appartment, Nr. Panchvati Society,
Aks, Unchehara, Rajkot, Gujarat- 360001

07046365

Jagdish Manshukhlal Shah

Director

7/A Milpara, Kanta Street Vikas Gruh Road,
Bhaktinagar Kotda Sangani, Rajkot, Gujarat-
360002

07158142

Manoj Harsukhlal Shah

Whole-Time Director

Raj Vaibhav Appartment, Block No. 1004,
Pradhyuman City, Vrundavan Society Road,
Kalawad Road, Sau Un Rajkot Gujarat — 360005

02173383

Sanjay Jayantilal Patel

Whole-Time Director

Hill Berg Appartment, Block No.- 601, Dr.
Dindayal Upadhyay Marg Snowhill Appartment,
Rajkot, Gujarat- 360002

01632620

Kiran Bavanjibhai Govani

Director

B - 302 Aamisha Grand, 150 Feet Ring Road, Bh.

Reliance Fresh, Shiv Sangam Plot, Raiya Road,
Rajkot, Gujarat -360007

01294557

Prashant Sudhir Khairnar

Additional Director

B-506, Patel Residency, Khoj Khuntavli, Near
Father Agnel School, Ambernath West,
Maharashtra- 421501

11434708

Abhay Vasantrao Galgate

Director

Plot no 17,18,19,Flat no 401, 4th Floor Universal
Majestic Wardha Road, Opp Cocacola Factory,
New Sneha Nagar, Khamla Nagpur Maharashtra -
440025

09596308

Richa Kachhawaha

Director

13/8, Durga Das Colony, Paota C Road
Jodhpur Rajasthan 342001

10702959
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For detailed profile of our directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” on page 62 of this Letter of Offer.

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Jayantilal Panchanbhai Kansagara, is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. His contact details are set forth hereunder.
236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate, Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024

Tel: 2827-252676, 254371,

E-mail: info@qgalaxyagrico.com;

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Ms. Utsavi Lalit Bhatia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company.His contact details are set forth hereunder.
236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate, Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024

Tel: 2827-252676, 254371,

E-mail: info@galaxyagrico.com;

Fax No.: N.A.

Investors may contact Compliance Officer or Registrar to the Issue for any pre-issue / post-issue related matters such as non-receipt of
letters of allotment / share certificates / refund orders, etc. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar
to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSBs for grievances related to ASBA, giving full details such as name, address of the applicant, e-mail
id of the first holder, folio number or demat account number, number of Rights Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of
ASBA process), ASBA account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the plain paper application was submitted by the
ASBA Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process). For further details on the ASBA process,
please refer to the section titled “Terms of the Issue” beginning on page 84 of this Final Letter of Offer.

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue of our Company:
Registrar to the Issue

PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PRIVATE LTD.
CIN: U67120MH1993PTC074079

Unitno. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 011.
Telephone: +91 22 4961 4132;

Facsimile: +91 22 22 3570 0224,

E-mail: support@purvashare.com;

Website: https://purvashare.com;

Contact person: Deepali Dhuri, Compliance Officer
Investor grievance: support@purvashare.com;

SEBI Registration No: INRO00001112

Validity of Registration: Permanent

Statutory and Peer Review Auditor of our Company
Name: M/s. H.B. KALARIA & Associates, Chartered Accountants.

Address: A- 601/602, The Imperial Heights , 150 Ft. Ring Road, Opp. Big Bazaar, Rajkot — 360004
Tel No. — 0281 — 2581501/02/03

Mobile - +91 9824042115, 9924132115

Email: info@hbkalaria.in

Website: www.hbkalaria.in

Membership No.: 042002

Firm Registration No.: 104571W

Peer Review Certificate No.: 017612
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Bankers to the Issue/ Refund Bank
The Banker to the Issue/ the Refund Bank are as under.

[Axis Bank Limited]*

Banker to the Issue shall be finalized prior to filing of the Letter of Offer with the Stock Exchange.
Designated Intermediaries

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided at the website of the SEBI
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=35 and updated from time to time. On
Allotment, the amount will be unblocked and the account will be debited only to the extent required to pay for the Rights Equity Shares
Allotted. For further details on the ASBA process, please refer to the details given in ASBA form and also please refer to the chapter
titled “Terms of the Issue” starting on page 84 of this Letter of Offer.

Expert Opinion

Except for the reports of the Auditor of our Company on the audited Financial Statements and Statement of Tax Benefits, included in
this Letter of Offer, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions.

Statement of inter se allocation of Responsibilities for the Issue

The Company has not appointed any merchant banker to the Issue and hence there is no inter-se allocation of responsibilities.
Monitoring Agency

Asthe issue size is below 2100 Crores, no monitoring agency has been appointed.

Investor grievances

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue/ post-Issue related matters such as non-receipt
of Letters of Allotment/ share certificates/ demat credit/ Refund Orders, etc.

Investors are advised to contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre- Issue or post-
Issue related problems such as non-receipt of Abridged Letter of Offer/ Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter/ Letter of
Allotment, Split Application Forms, Share Certificate(s) or Refund Orders, etc. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be
addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSBs, giving full details such as name, address of the applicant, ASBA
Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked, where the Application
Form and Rights Entitlement Letter or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Equity Shareholder, was submitted by the ASBA
Investors through ASBA process.

Credit Rating

As this isan Issue of Equity Shares, Credit Rating is not required.

Debenture Trustees

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, the appointment of Debenture trustees is not required.

Changes in Auditors during the last three years

There has been change in the Statutory Auditor of our Company in last three years. M/s. H.B. KALARIA & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, have been appointed as Statutory auditors of the Company in 27" Annual General Meeting held in the FY 2020-2021 for
a period of 5 years till the conclusion of the 32" Annual General Meeting

Underwriting Agreement
This Issue is not underwritten and our Company has not entered into any underwriting arrangement.
Issue Schedule

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking hours on the dates
mentioned below:
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Event Indicative Date

Issue Opening Date Monday 02" February 2026
Last Date for On Market Renunciation # Thursday 5 February 2026
Last Date for receiving requests for Application Form and Monday 9™ February 2026

Rights Entitlement Letter**

Issue Closing Date* Wednesday 11% February 2026

*The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from
time to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date.

#Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that
the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s)on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

**|nvestors are advised to ensure that the Application Forms are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our Company and/or
the Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of Application Forms or on before the Issue
Closing Date.

The above schedule is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date have not provided the details
of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide their demat account details to our Company or
the Registrar not later than two (2) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., Wednesday 11" February 2026 to enable the
credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts at least
one day before the Issue Closing Date, i.e., Wednesday 11" February 2026.

Investors are advised to ensure that the Applications are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Neither Our Company nor the
Registrar to the Issue will be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of Applications on or before the Issue Closing Date.
Further, it is also encouraged that the applications are submitted well in advance before Issue Closing Date. For details on submitting
Common Application Forms, see “Terms of the Issue” beginning on page 84 of this Letter of Offer.

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before Issue Closing Date,
such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights
Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased from market and purchaser will lose the amount paid to
acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an application to apply for Equity
Shares offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under Issue.

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such respective Eligible
Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar at https://www.purvashare.com/ after keying in their respective details along with
either security control measures implemented there at. For further details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 84 of this Letter of Offer.

Minimum Subscription

In accordance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90%
of the Issue Size, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue Closing
Date in accordance with SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021, read
with SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/0154 dated November 11, 2024. If there is any delay in the refund of the subscription amount
beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company and Directors who are “officers in defaults” shall pay interest
for the delayed period, at such rates as prescribed under the applicable laws. Underwriting

The Issue is not underwritten.

Filing

SEBI vide its circular bearing number SEBI/HO/CFD/CIR/CFD/DIL/67/2020 dated April 21, 2020 has granted certain relaxations with
respect to rights issues under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. One of those relaxations is the increase of threshold of the rights issue size
for filing of the Final Letter of Offer with SEBI. The threshold of the rights issue size under Regulation 3 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

has further been increased from ten crores to fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below the threshold, the Letter of Offer will
not be filed with SEBI. The Letter of Offer will be filed with the stock exchange.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Letter of Offer and after giving effect to the Issue is set forth below:

S. No. | Particulars Amount (in ¥ except share data)
Aggregate value Aggregate
at nominal value value at Issue

Price

A Authorized Share Capital

55,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 5,50,00,000 -

Total 5,50,00,000 -
B. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital before the Issue

27,31,620 Equity Shares of face value of X 10 each 2,73,16,200 -
C. Present Issue in terms of this Letter of Offer®

Up to 13658100 Equity Shares of % 10 each 13,65,81,000 48,99,16,047
D. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital after the Issue

16389720 Equity Shares of face value of X 10 each 16,38,97,200 48,99,16,047
E. Securities Premium Account

Before the Issue Nil

After the Issue 35,33,35,047

) The present Issue has been authorized vide a resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors dated November 29, 2024.
NOTESTO CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details of outstanding instruments as on the date of this Letter of Offer:

As on date of this Letter of Offer, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares under any employee stock option scheme or employee stock
purchase scheme. Further no convertible securities are outstanding for conversion as of date of this Letter of Offer.

Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoters Group in the Issue:

Our Promoters and Promoter Group vide their letters dated September 05, 2025 have agreed that they may or may not: (a) subscribe,
jointly and/ or severally to the full extent of their Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlement that may
be renounced in their favour by any other Promoters, member(s) of the Promoter Group of our Company; (b) subscribe to, either
individually or jointly and/ or severally with any other Promoters or member of the Promoter Group, for additional Rights Equity Shares,
including subscribing to unsubscribed portion (if any) in the Issue; (c) subscribe to, either individually or jointly and/ or severally with
any other Shareholder for additional Rights Equity Shares, including subscribing to unsubscribed portion (if any) in the Issue; (d) the
eligible members of our Promoter Group reserve the right to subscribe either itself and/or through third party(ies) by renouncing their
Rights Entitlement in the Issue, including in an event of under-subscription in this Issue, subject to the post issue aggregate shareholding
of our Promoter and members of our Promoter Group not resulting in the minimum public shareholding of the issuer falling below the
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level prescribed under 25 under the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time; (e) Further, in accordance with
Regulation 86 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90% of the Issue Size, or
the subscription level falls below 90% of the Issue Size, after the Issue Closing Date, Subject to provisions of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the Companies Act and other applicable laws, Our Company reserves the right not to proceed with the Issue at any time
before the Issue Opening Date without assigning any reason thereof.

If our Company withdraws the Issue any time after the Issue Opening Date, a public notice within two (2) Working Days of the Issue
Closing Date or such other time as may be prescribed by SEBI, providing reasons for not proceeding with the Issue shall be issued by
our Company. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same newspapers where the pre-Issue advertisement has appeared, and the
Stock Exchange will also be informed promptly. The Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts
within one (1) working Day from the day of receipt of such instruction. Our Company shall also inform the same to the Stock Exchange.
If our Company withdraws the Issue at any stage including after the Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to proceed with an
Issue of the Equity Shares, our Company will file a fresh offer document with the stock exchange where the Equity Shares may be
proposed to be listed. However, if Promoter of our Company; (i) subscribe to the full extent of its Rights Entitlement, and that if not
renounce its Rights Entitlement to any individual / entity outside the promoter group the Minimum Subscription of 90% of the Issue
Size will not apply to the Company in accordance with Regulation 86 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 as the object of the issue
involves financing other than financing of capital expenditure for a project.

Such subscriptions of Equity Shares over and above its Rights Entitlement, if allotted, may result in an increase in its percentage
shareholding above their current percentage shareholding. Any acquisition of additional Equity Shares shall not result in change of
control of the management of the Company in accordance with provisions of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011 and Promoters will continue to be the Promoter of the Company.

Any such increase in the shareholding of the Promoter will be exempt subject to fulfilment of the conditions of Regulation 10 of the
SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011.

In case the rights issue remains unsubscribed and / or minimum subscription is not achieved, the Board of Directors may dispose of such
unsubscribed portion in the best interest of the Company and in compliance with the applicable laws.

Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum
public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue.

Shareholding pattern of our Company as per the last quarterly filing with the Stock Exchange in compliance with the SEBI
Listing Regulations

The shareholding pattern of our Company can be accessed on the website of the BSE at:

https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/galaxy-agrico-exports-ltd/galagex/531911/shareholding-pattern/

Shareholding of Promoters and Promoters Group:

The details of Equity Shares held by the Promoters and Promoters Group including the details of lock-in, pledge and encumbrance on
such Equity Shares can be accessed on the website of the BSE at:

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPromoterNGroup.aspx?scripcd=531911&atrid=122.00&0tr Name=June%202024

Details of specified securities acquired by the Promoters and Promoters group in the last one year immediately preceding the
date of filing of the Letter of Offer:

Our Promoters and members of Promoters Group have acquired Equity Shares in the last one year immediately preceding the date of
filing of the Letter of Offer and the details of the same are as under:

Sr. No. Name of Promoters and Number of Shares Percentage to Total Mode of Acquisition
Promoters Group Acquired Capital

Details of the shareholders holding more than 1% of the issued and paid-up Equity Share capital:

The details of shareholders of our Company holding more than 1% of the issued and paid -up Equity Share capital of our Company,
are available on the website of BSE at:
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpdrPercnt.aspx?scripcd=531911&qtrid=122.00&CompName=GALAXY%20AGRICO%?2
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OEXPORTS%20LTD.&0QtrName=June%202024&Type=TM

Declarations:
The ex-rights price of the Rights Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations is X [e]/- per equity share. At
any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company.

All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on the date of this Letter of Offer. Further,the Equity
Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue, shall be fully paid up.

There will be no further issue of equity shares whether by way of a public issue, qualified institutions placement, issue of bonus shares,
preferential allotment, rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from filing of this Letter of Offer with Stock
Exchange until the Equity Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchanges, or all application monies have been refunded, as the case
may be.
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OBJECTSOF THE ISSUE

We intend to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (the “Gross Proceeds™) after deducting the Issue related expenses (“Net
Proceeds”) for the following objects (collectively, referred to as the “Objects™):

The Objects of the Issue are: -
1. ToPurchase the property in Hyderabad for commercial purpose

2. For Takeover of the Company for expansion of business
3. Working Capital requirements;
4. General Corporate Purposes and

The main objects clause of our Memorandum enables our Company to undertake the activities for which funds are being raised in the
Issue. The existing activities of our Company are within the objects clause of our Memorandum. The fund requirement and deployment
is based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised by any bank or financial institution.

FUND REQUIREMENTS

Our funding requirements are dependent on a number of factors which may not be in the control of our management, changes in our
financial condition and current commercial conditions. Such factors may entail rescheduling and / or revising the planned expenditure
and funding requirement and increasing or decreasing the expenditure for a particular purpose from the planned expenditure.

We intend to utilize the proceeds of the Fresh Issue, in the manner set forth below:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (In Rs. Lakhs)
1 Gross Proceeds to be raised through this Issue Upto 4900
Less: Issue Related Expenses 80.00
2 Net Proceeds from the Issue 4820
3 Utilization of Net Proceeds
A To Purchase the property in Hyderabad for commercial purpose 2000
B. For Takeover of the Company for expansion of business 1000
C. Working Capital requirements; 620
D. General Corporate Purposes and 1200
Total Net Proceeds 4820

*The Issue size will not exceed T4900.00. Lakh (Rupees Forty-Nine Crore Only). If there is any reduction in the amount on account of
or atthe time of finalization of Issue Price and Rights Entitlements Ratio, the same will be adjusted against General Corporate Purpose.

The requirements of the objects detailed above are intended to be funded from the Proceeds of the Issue. Accordingly, we
confirm that there is no requirement for us to make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means towards at least
75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised from the proposed Issue.

The fund requirement and deployment are based on internal management estimates and have not been appraised by any bank
or financial institution. These are based on current conditions and are subject to change in light of changes in external
circumstances or costs, other financial conditions, business or strategy, as discussed further below.

In case of variations in the actual utilization of funds allocated for the purposes set forth above, increased fund requirements for a
particular purpose may be financed by surplus funds, if any, available in respect of the other purposes for which funds are being raised
in this Issue. If surplus funds are unavailable, the required financing will be through our internal accruals and/or debt.

We may have to revise our fund requirements and deployment as a result of changes in commercial and other external factors, which
may not be within the control of our management. This may entail rescheduling, revising or cancelling the fund requirements and
increasing or decreasing the fund requirements for a particular purpose from its fund requirements mentioned below, at the discretion of
our management. In case of any shortfall or cost overruns, we intend to meet our estimated expenditure from internal accruals and/or
debt. In case of any such re-scheduling, it shall be made by compliance of the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Details of Utilization of Issue Proceeds

1. Purchase of Property in Hyderabad:

The Company proposes to utilize a portion of the proceeds from the Rights Issue towards the acquisition of a property situated at
Mallepally, Asifnagar Mandal, Hyderabad, Telangana admeasuring 3030 square yards.

The proposed acquisition is aligned with the Company’s long-term strategic objectives of expanding its asset base and strengthening its
operational capabilities. After due consideration, the Board believes that this investment will add significant value to the Company’s
business and benefit the shareholders in the long run.

The subject property forms part of a larger land parcel admeasuring 15,730 square yards, owned by Mr. Mohammed Ziauddin Ghori.
Based on the independent valuation report obtained by the Company, the fair value of the land parcel has been determined at 98,750
per square yard, aggregating to %1,55,33,37,500/- (Rupees One Hundred Fifty-Five Crore Thirty-Three Lakh Thirty-Seven Thousand
Five Hundred only).

Accordingly, the Company has shown interest and agreed to purchase 3030 square yards at an aggregate value of 329,92,12,500/-
(Rupees Twenty-Nine Crore Ninety-Two Lakh Twelve Thousand Five Hundred only), subject to proceeds received from Right Issue.

The funding of the said acquisition shall be made as under:

e 320,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crore only) shall be met from the proceeds of the Rights Issue.

e  The balance %9,92,12,500/- (Rupees Nine Crore Ninety-Two Lakh Twelve Thousand Five Hundred only) shall be funded through
the Company’s internal accruals, primarily from the proposed sale of its existing land/plot recorded in the books, which has a realizable
value of approximately 39 Crore.

e  The Company will use the balance if any from its reserves and surplus.

The proposed utilization of the Rights Issue proceeds is strictly in line with the objectives as set out in the DLOF. All statutory costs,
including registration, stamp duty, and legal fees, will be met as part of the acquisition from General Corporate Purpose funds of Right
Issue. Further, the Company shall ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, and obtain necessary approvals as
may be required.

The status of the transaction is that the commercial terms already discussed and negotiations has been done, the company will execute
MOU/Agreement after receipt of In-Principle approval of Right Issue, and the Agreement for Sale will be doe post right issue fund will
be received by company. The acquisition is expected to be completed in accordance with the payment schedule which will be mutually
agreed with the seller.

Details of Proposed Property Acquisition — Mallepally, Asifnagar Mandal, Hyderabad

Particulars Details

Name of .

Asset/Property Land Parcel at Mallepally, Asifnagar Mandal, Hyderabad
Location Mallepally, Asifnagar Mandal, Hyderabad, Telangana
Total Area of Property 15,730 Square Yards

Area proposed to be

purchased 3,030 Square Yards

Total Purchase Price %29,92,12,500/-

Name of Seller

Mr. Mohammed Ziauddin Ghori

Valuation Basis

Rate: 398,750 per sg. yard; Value of 15,730 sq. yards = %1,55,33,37,500/-

Legal and Statutory
Costs

Excluded — registration, stamp duty, legal fees, taxes, this additional cost will be utilised
from General Corporate Purpose of this Issue

Funding Source

%20 Crore from Rights Issue proceeds; balance 39.92 Crore from internal accruals (via sale
of existing land/plot valued at approx. 9 Crore) and Reserves and surplus.

Percentage of Rights
Issue Utilization

67% of total consideration to be funded from Rights Issue proceeds

Status of Purchase

Negotiation has been done, we are under process to execute MOU subject to receipt of In-
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Particulars Details

principle approval of Right Issue
Nature of Property Land

2. For Takeover of the Company

The formal propose for the utilization of proceeds from our rights issue is to facilitate the takeover up to 83.33% paid-up Equity
Shares of M/s. Earth Capital Finvest Limited. The primary intent of funding strategic acquisitions is align with our growth objectives.
After thorough analysis, we have identified M/s. Earth Capital Finvest Limited as an optimal candidate for acquisition, given its
complementary strengths and the potential for significant synergies with our existing operations.

The proposed takeover of Equity Shares involves an investment of Up to Rs. 1000 Lakhs, which will be allocated from the rights
issue proceeds to cover the acquisition cost and associated expenses, such as legal fees, due diligence, and integration costs. This
strategic acquisition is expected to enhance our market position, expand our product offerings, and ultimately drive long-term value
for our shareholders. We have ensured that all regulatory and compliance requirements will be met throughout the acquisition process,
and we will seek the necessary approvals from our shareholders and relevant authorities as required.

a) Establishing new Business through:

Creating subsidiaries or wholly owned subsidiaries.
Forming associate companies.

Entering into joint ventures.

b) Exploring Business Opportunities:

Expanding the business by acquiring other businesses through the purchase of equity shares from existing shareholders or through
other means.

¢) Investing in Financial Instruments:
Dealing in and investing in shares, debentures, and other securities as part of the strategic business expansion.

d) Benefits to the Company by this acquisition:
This Object of fund raising is to explore and expand business opportunities through strategic acquisitions and investments.

We believe that the successful completion of this takeover will position us for continued growth and success in our industry. We
look forward to your favorable consideration of this proposal and are available to discuss any further details or provide additional
information as needed, by adding this new business venture as a subsidiary of the company, the growth and earning of the company
on consolidated basis will be increased accordingly.

The company has obtained the valuation report from Registered Valuer JHA PRABHAKAR PRAMOD IBBI Registered Valuer
(SFA)IBBI/RV/16/2021/14342 for evaluation the acquisition price pf per share of M/s. Earth Capital Finvest Limited., the company
is going to acquire 83.33 % of paid up share capital (1,27,648 Equity shares) of Earth Capital for a total aggregated amount up to
Rs. 1000 Lakhs.

3. To Meetthe working Capital Requirement

The proceeds from the rights issue will be strategically utilized to meet the working capital requirements and to support the expansion
plans of the company. A portion of the funds will be allocated to ensure a smooth manufacturing process by providing adequate
working capital. This will involve purchasing raw materials, maintaining inventory levels, covering operational expenses, and ensuring
timely payment to suppliers and employees, thereby supporting the seamless continuation of production activities.

Additionally, a significant part of the proceeds will be directed towards the acquisition of new machinery for a newly taken-over
company in Hyderabad. The purchase of advanced machinery is essential to enhance production capacity, improve efficiency, and
reduce costs, aligning with the company's growth strategy. This investment in new machinery will not only bolster the manufacturing
capabilities of the newly acquired entity but also ensure that it meets the quality standards and production timelines expected by the
market.

Our Company proposes to utilize an estimated amount of up to 620.00 Lakhs to meet the working capital requirements.

Working Capital Requirements
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Details of Estimation of Working Capital requirements are as follows:

(2 in Lakhs)
30-06-2024 31-03-2025 31-03-2026
Particulars
Unaudited Projected Projected
(Quaterly) (Yearly) (Yearly)

Current Assets 9.74 39.10 43.05
Trade Receivables 12.37 54.28 59.72
Inventories 6.17 26.73 29.82
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.26 4.96 513
Short term Loans and Advances 25.69 112.37 123.09
Other Current Assets 55.23 237.44 260.81
Total (A)
Current Liabilities 16.27 71.57 78.26
Borrowings 1.18 5.22 5.74
Trade payables 2.63 11.36 12.47
Inventories 11.17 24.42 26.81
Provisions 2.08 9.18 10.04
Currenttax liabilities 33.33 121.75 133.32
Other current liabilities 21.90 115.69 127.49
Total (B) 9.74 39.10 43.05
Total Working Capital Gap 12.37 54.28 59.72
Key assumptions for working capital projections made by the Company:
Particulars 30/09/2024 31/03/2025 31/03/2026

Audited Projected Projected
Debtors (in days) 60 Days 90 Days 120 Days
Creditors (in days) 60 Days 45 Days 30 Days
Inventories (in days) 60 Days 90 Days 120 Days

Key assumptions for working capital projections made by the Company:

Particulars Justification

Trade Receivables The increase in trade receivables reflects a proactive sales strategy, including extendedcredit terms to
support projected revenue growth and foster customer loyalty.

The progression in trade payables signifiesa deliberate extension of payment cycles, optimizing cash
Trade Payables flows, negotiating favorable terms, and potentiallycapitalizing on early payment discounts.
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The rise in inventory levels aligns withanticipated production and sales growth,ensuring the company
Inventories maintains adequate stock levels to meet demand and support operational efficiency.

Expanded Rationale:

1.1 Increase in Revenue Growth: The anticipated fourfold surge in revenue is underpinned by strategic initiatives and operational
improvements led by the new management team. These efforts are expected to unlock previously untapped market potential, driving
substantial top-line expansion.

1.2 Increase in Debtor Days and Receivables: The extension of debtor days from 90 to 120 is a strategic move to accommaodate diverse client
payment cycles, fostering stronger customer relationships. This adjustment aligns with industry norms, providing flexibility while
ensuring sustained revenue growth.

1.3 Change in Creditor Days and Payables: The reduction in creditor days from 45 to 30 is a tactical adjustment aimed at optimizing
cash flows. By negotiating favorable terms with suppliers, the company seeks to leverage early payment discounts, thereby enhancing
liquidity and improving overall working capital efficiency.

1.4 Increase in Inventory Days and Inventory: The extension of inventory days from 90 to 120 is a deliberate measure to align stock
levels with the anticipated increase in sales. This strategic adjustment ensures the company is well-positioned to meet heightened
demand, preventing stockouts and potential disruptions in the supply chain.

1.5 Change in Trade Receivables: The increase in trade receivables from X 9.74 Lakhs (Un-Audited as of 30-Sept-23) to % 39.10 Lakhs
(Projected as of 31-Mar-25) and further to X 43.05 Lakhs (Projected as of 31-Mar-26) reflects a proactive sales strategy, including
extended credit terms. This strategic decision is aimed at fostering customer loyalty and accommodating varied payment preferences
while supporting the projected revenue growth.

1.6 Change in Trade Payables: The progression in trade payables from X 1.18 Lakhs (Un-Audited as of 30-Sept-23) to X 5.22 Lakhs
(Projected as of 31-Mar-25) and further to X 5.74 Lakhs (Projected as of 31-Mar-26) signifies a deliberate extension of paymentcycles
with suppliers. This strategy is designed to optimize cash flows, negotiate favorable terms, and potentially capitalize on early payment
discounts, contributing to improved liquidity management.

1.7 Change in Inventories: Therise in inventory levels from %12.37 Lakhs (Un-Audited as of 30-Sept-23) to % 54.28 Lakhs (Projected
as of 31-Mar-25) and further to % 59.72 Lakhs (Projected as of 31-Mar-26) aligns with the anticipated increase in production and sales.
Thisstrategic adjustment ensures that the company maintains adequate stock levels to meet growing demand, preventing potential
stockouts,and supporting operational efficiency.

4. General Corporate Purpose

Our Company intends to deploy the balance Net Proceeds for General Corporate Purposes subject to such utilization not exceeding 25%
of the Net Proceeds, in compliance with the SEBI Regulations, including but not limited including but not restricted to, strategic
initiatives, strengthening our marketing network & capability, meeting exigencies, brand building exercises in order to strengthen our
operations. Our management, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility in utilizing the proceeds earmarked for
General Corporate Purposes.

Legal and Statutory Costs towards to purchase of Land in Hyderabad like registration, stamp duty, legal fees, taxes, this additional cost
will be utilized from General Corporate Purpose of this Issue.

5. Issue Expenses

The estimated expenses for this Issue include issue management fees, underwriting fees, registrar fees, legal advisor fees, printing and
distribution expenses, advertisement expenses, depository charges, and listing fees to the Stock Exchange, among others. The total
expenses for this Issue are estimated not to exceed X 80.00 Lakh.

The break-up of the same is as follows:

Z In Lakh)
% of total
[0)
Particulars Amount estimated S{; :f total Issue
expenses
Fee to the professional service providers 5.00 6.25 0.10%
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Advertising, marketing expenses, shareholder outreach, etc. 7.00 8.75 0.14%

Fees payable to regulators, including. depositories and Stock 20.00 25.00 0.41%
Exchanges. ' ' '
Other expenses {including miscellaneous expenses(printing 48.00 60.00 0.98%

of LOF, Abridge letter of offer, application form , Right
Entitlement letter , Dispatch of documents, Registrar to Issue
and stamp duty on purchase of land and stamp duty on new
Issue of Shares, ROC Form Challan)

Total estimated Issue expenses* 80.00 100.00 1.63%

*Includes applicable taxes. Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment. In case of any difference between the estimated Issue related
expenses and actual expenses incurred, the shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with the amount allocated towards general corporate
purposes.

Note: Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment. In case of any difference between the estimated Issue related expenses and actual
expenses incurred, the shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with the amount allocated towards general corporate purposes.

DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS

As estimated by our management, the entire proceeds from the Issue shall be utilized as follows:

(Z in Lakhs)
Particul Total Funds
Lol required Proposed Schedule for Deployment
FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

To Purchase the property in Hyderabad for 2000 1500 500
commercial purpose
For Takeover of the Company for expansion of 1000 1000 -
business
Working Capital requirements; 620 93 527
General Corporate Purposes and 1200 1200 -
Issue Expenses 80 80.00 -
Total*** 4,900.00 3873.00 1027

*Any portion of the Net Proceeds not deployed for the stated Objects in a particular Financial Year will be deployed by our Company
in next Financial Year and/ or ahead of the estimated schedule of deployment.

** Subject to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment and the Allotment. While the amount is subject to adjustment upon finalization of
Issue related expenses, however, in no event, shall general corporate purposes exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.

*** Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted per the Rights
Entitlement ratio.

The fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and our company’s current business plan is subject to
change in light of changes in external circumstances or costs, other financial conditions, business or strategy. These estimates have not
been appraised by any bank or financial institution. Any amount, deployed by our Company out of internal accruals towards the
aforementioned objects till the date of receipt of Issue Proceeds shall be recouped by our Company from the Issue Proceeds of the Issue.
In case of delays in raising funds from the Issue, our company may deploy certain amounts towards any of the above - mentioned Objects
through a combination of Internal Accruals or Loans (Bridge Financing) and in such case the Funds raised shall be utilized towards
repayment of such Loans or recouping of Internal Accruals. However, we confirm that no bridge financing has been availed as on date,
which is subject to being repaid from the Issue Proceeds.

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, our Company intends to invest the funds in with scheduled commercial banks
included in the second schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Our management, in accordance with the policies established by
our Board of Directors from time to time, will deploy the Net Proceeds. Further, our Board of Directors hereby undertake that full
recovery of the said interim investments shall be made without any sort of delay as and when need arises for utilization of process for
the objects of the issue.

MONITORING UTILIZATION OF FUNDS

As the Net Proceeds of the Issue will be less than ¥ 4899.16 Lakhs, under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations it is not mandatory for us to
appoint a monitoring agency.
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Our Board and the management will monitor the utilization of the Net Proceeds through its audit committee. Pursuant to Regulation 32
of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, our Company shall on quarterly basis disclose to the
Audit Committee the applications of the proceeds of the Issue. On an annual basis, our Company shall prepare a statement of funds
utilized for purposes other than stated in this Letter of Offer and place it before the Audit Committee. Such disclosures shall be made
only until such time that all the proceeds of the Issue have been utilized in full. The statement will be certified by the Statutory Auditors
of our Company.

No part of the Issue Proceeds will be paid by our Company as consideration to Our Promoters, Our Directors, Key Management
Personnel or companies promoted by the Promoters, except as may be required in the usual course of business.

APPRAISAL BY APPRAISING AGENCY

The fund requirement and deployment are based on internal management estimates and have not been appraised by any bank or financial
institution.

SHORTFALL OF FUNDS

Any shortfall in meeting the fund requirements will be met by way of internal accruals and or unsecured Loans.

INTERIM USE OF FUNDS

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, our Company intends to invest the funds in a fixed/term deposit with scheduled
commercial banks included in the second schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Our management, in accordance with the policies
established by our Board of Directors from time to time, will deploy the Net Proceeds. Further, our Board of Directors hereby undertake
that full recovery of the said interim investments shall be made without any sort of delay as and when need arises for utilization of
process for the objects of the issue.

BRIDGE FINANCING FACILITIES

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, which
are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds. However, depending on business exigencies, our Company may consider raising bridge financing
for the Net Proceeds for Object of the Issue.

VARIATION INOBJECTS

In accordance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, except in circumstances of business
exigencies, our Company shall not vary the Objects of the Issue without our Company being authorized to do so by the Shareholders by
way of a special resolution through postal ballot. In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such
special resolution (the ‘Postal Ballot Notice’) shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and applicable
rules. The Postal Ballot Notice shall simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one in English and one in Hindi, the vernacular
language of the jurisdiction where the Registered Office is situated.

INTEREST OF PROMOTERS, PROMOTERS GROUP AND DIRECTORS, AS APPLICABLE TO THE OBJECTS
OF THE ISSUE
The Promoters, Promoters Group and Directors are not interested in any objects of the Issue.
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STATEMENT OF TAXBENEFITS

To,

The Board of Directors,

GALAXY AGRICO EXPORTSLIMITED
236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate,

Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge,

Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024

Sub: Statement of possible special tax benefits available to Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited and its shareholders under the
applicable direct and indirect taxation laws in India (“the Statement”)

Re: Proposed rights issue of equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each (“Equity Shares”) by Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited (the
“Company” and such offering, the “Issue”)

Dear Sirs,

We hereby report that the enclosed annexure prepared by the management of Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited, states the special tax
benefits available to the Company and the shareholders of the Company under the Income-Tax Act, 1961, the Central Goods and Services
Tax Act, 2017, the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, respective
State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (collectively the "GST Act") presentlyin force in India. Several of these benefits are dependent
on the Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Act. Hence, the ability of the
Company or its shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon fulfilling such conditions which, based on business imperatives
which the Company may face in the future, the Company may or may not choose to fulfil.

This statement of possible special tax benefits is required as per Schedule VI (Part A) (9)(L) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended (‘SEBI ICDR Regulations’). While the term “special
tax benefits’ has not been defined under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, it is assumed that with respect to special tax benefits available to
the Company, its shareholders and its subsidiary and the same would include those benefits as enumerated in the statement. The benefits
discussed in the enclosed statement cover the possible special tax benefits available to the Company, its Shareholders and do not cover
any general tax benefits available to them. Any benefits under the Taxation Laws other than those specified in the statement are
considered to be general tax benefits and therefore not covered within the ambit of this statement. Further, any benefits available under
any other laws within or outside India, except for those specifically mentioned in the statement, have not been examined and covered
by this statement.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexure cover only special tax benefits available to the Company and do not cover any general
tax benefits available to the Company. Further, the preparation of enclosed statement and the contents stated therein is the responsibility
of the Company's management. We are informed that this Statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and
is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences
and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications
arising out of their participation in the proposed initial public offering of Equity shares ("the Issue™) by the Company.

We do not express any opinion or provide anyassurance as to whether:

a. The Companyor its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or

b. The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met

c. Therevenue authorities courts will concur with the views expressed herein.

The contents of the enclosed statement are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the Company and on
the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.

46



No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/Courts will concur with the view expressed herein. Our views are based on existing
provisions of law and its implementation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do not assume any responsibility to updates
the views consequent to such changes.

Our views are based on facts and assumptions indicated to us and the existing provisions of tax law and its interpretations, which are
subject to change or modification from time to time by subsequent legislative, regulatory, administrative, or judicial decisions. Any such
changes, which could also be retrospective, could have an effect on the validity of our views stated herein.

We assume no obligation to update this statement on any events subsequent to its issue, which may have a material effect on the
discussions herein. This report including enclosed annexure are intended solely for your information and for the inclusion in the
Prospectus/ Prospectus or any other issue related material in connection with the proposed initial public offer of the Company and is not
to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

HB Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 104571W

Sd/-

Hasmukh Kalaria
Membership No.: 042002
UDIN: 24042002BKBMEU2745

Place: Rajkot
Dated: 23.09.2024
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS

The information provided below sets out the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and the Equity Shareholder sunder
the Income Tax Act 1961, the Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Union
Territory Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (collectively the "GST Act") presently
in force in India. It is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to be a substitute for professional advice. Investors are advised
to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications of an investment in the Equity Shares particularly in view of the
fact that certain recently enacted legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may have a different interpretation on the benefits,
which an investor can avail.

YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE INDIAN TAX IMPLICATIONS AND
CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF EQUITY SHARES IN YOUR PARTICULAR
SITUATION.

A. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY: NIL
B. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE SHAREHOLDER: NIL
Note:

All the above benefits are as per the current tax laws and will be available only to the sole / first name holder where the shares are held
by joint holders.

The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover any indirect tax law benefits or benefit
under any other law.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on the
existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to
update the views consequent to such changes. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We
shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment,
as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to any other
person in respect of this statement.
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SECTION IV: ABOUT OUR COMPANYINDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Indian Economy Review and Outlook

Strong economic growth in the first quarter of FY23 helped India overcome the UK to become the fifth-largest economy after it
recovered from the COVID-19 pandemic shock. Nominal GDP or GDP at Current Prices in the year 2023-24 is estimated at Rs. 295.36
lakh crores (US$ 3.54 trillion), against the First Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the year 2022-23 of Rs. 269.50 lakh crores (US$
3.23 trillion). The growth in nominal GDP during 2023-24 is estimated at 9.6% as compared to 14.2% in 2022-23. Strong domestic
demand for consumption and investment, along with Government’s continued emphasis on capital expenditure are seen as among the
key driver of the GDP in the second half of FY24. During the period April-June 2025, India’s exports stood at US$ 109.11 billion, with
Engineering Goods (25.35%), Petroleum Products (18.33%) and electronic goods (7.73%) being the top three exported commodity.
Rising employment and increasing private consumption, supported by rising consumer sentiment, will support GDP growth in the
coming months.

Future capital spending of the government in the economy is expected to be supported by factors such as tax buoyancy, the streamlined
tax system with low rates, a thorough assessment and rationalisation of the tariff structure, and the digitization of tax filing. In the
medium run, increased capital spending on infrastructure and asset-building projects is set to increase growth multipliers. The contact-
based services sector has demonstrated promise to boost growth by unleashing the pent-up demand. The sector's success is being captured
by a number of HFIs (High-Frequency Indicators) that are performing well, indicating the beginnings of a comeback.

India has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three economic powers in the
world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong partnerships.

India's appeal as a destination for investments has grown stronger and more sustainable because of the current period of global
unpredictability and volatility, and the record amounts of money raised by India-focused funds in 2022 are evidence of investor faith in
the "Invest in India" narrative.

MARKET SIZE

Real GDP or GDP at Constant (2011-12) Prices in the year 2023-24 is estimated at Rs. 173.82 lakh crores (US$ 2.08 trillion), against the
First Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the year 2022-23 of Rs. 160.71 lakh crores (US$ 1.92 trillion). The growth in real GDP during
2023-24 is estimated at 8.2% as compared to 7.0% in 2022-23. There are 113 unicorn startups in India, with a combined valuation of over
US$ 350 billion. As many as 14 tech startups are expected to list in 2024 Fintech sector poised to generate the largest number of future
unicorns in India. With India presently has the third-largest unicorn base in the world. The government is also focusing on renewable sources
by achieving 40% of its energy from non-fossil sources by 2030. India is committed to achieving the country's ambition of Net Zero
Emissions by 2070 through a five-pronged strategy, ‘Panchamrit’. Moreover, India ranked 3rd in the renewable energy country attractive
index

According to the McKinsey Global Institute, India needs to boost its rate of employment growth and create 90 million non-farm jobs between
2023 to 2030 in order to increase productivity and economic growth. The net employment rate needs to grow by 1.5% per annum from 2023
to 2030 to achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth between same time periods. India’s current account deficit (CAD) narrowed to 0.7% of GDP in
FY24. The CAD stood at US$ 23.2 billion for the 2023-24 compared to US$ 67.0 billion or 2.0% of GDP in the preceding year. This was
largely due to decrease in merchandise trade deficit.

Exports fared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engines were losing steam in terms of their
contribution to GDP. Going forward, the contribution of merchandise exports may waver as several of India’s trade partners witness an
economic slowdown. According to Minister of Commerce and Industry, Consumer Affairs, Food and Public Distribution and Textiles Mr.
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Piyush Goyal, Indian exports are expected to reach US$ 1 trillion by 2030..
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

India is primarily a domestic demand-driven economy, with consumption and investments contributing to 70% of the economic activity. With
an improvement in the economic scenario and the Indian economy recovering from the Covid-19 pandemic shock, several investments and
developments have been made across various sectors of the economy. According to World Bank, India must continue to prioritise lowering
inequality while also putting growth-oriented policies into place to boost the economy. In view of this, there have been some developments that
have taken place in the recent past. Some of them are mentioned below.

» According to HSBC Flash India PMI report, business activity surged in April to its highest level in about 14 years as well as sustained
robust demand. The composite index reached 62.2, indicating continuous expansion since August 2021, alongside positive job growth and
decreased input inflation, affirming India’s status as the fastest-growing major economy.

As of July 5, 2024, India’s foreign exchange reserves stood at US$ 657.15 billion.
In May 2024, India saw a total of US$ 6.9 billion in PE-VC investments.

Merchandise exports in June 2024 stood at US$ 35.20 hillion, with total merchandise exports of US$ 109.96 billion during the period of
April 2024 to June 2024.

» Indiawas also named as the 48th most innovative country among the top 50 countries, securing 40th position out of 132 economies in the
Global Innovation Index 2023. India rose from 81st position in 2015 to 40th position in 2023. India ranks 3rd position in the global number
of scientific publications.

»  InJune 2024, the gross Goods and Services Tax (GST) stood at highest monthly revenue collection at Rs. 1.74 lakh crore (US$ 20.83
billion) vs Rs. 1.73 lakh crore (US$ 20.71 billion)

Between April 2000-March 2024, cumulative FDI equity inflows to India stood at US$ 97 hillion.

In May 2024, the overall 1IP (Index of Industrial Production) stood at 154.2. The Indices of Industrial Production for the mining,
manufacturing and electricity sectors stood at 136.5, 149.7 and 229.3, respectively, in May 2024.

»  According to data released by the Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation (MoSPI), India’s Consumer Price Index (CPI) based
retail inflation reached 5.08% (Provisional) for June 2024.

»  Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) inflows between April-July (2023-24) were close to Rs. 80,500 crore (US$ 9.67 hillion), while
Domestic Institutional Investors (DII) sold Rs. 4,500 crore (US$ 540.56 million) in the same period. As per depository data, Foreign
Portfolio Investors (FPIs) invested (US$ 13.89 billion) in India during January- (up to 15th July) 2024.

»  The wheat procurement during Rabi Marketing Season (RMS) 2024-25 (till May) was estimated to be 266 lakh metric tonnes (LMT) and
the rice procured in Kharif Marketing Season (KMS) 2024-25 was 400 LMT.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Over the years, the Indian government has introduced many initiatives to strengthen the nation's economy. The Indian government has been
effective in developing policies and programmes that are not only beneficial for citizens to improve their financial stability but also for the
overall growth of the economy. Over recent decades, India's rapid economic growth has led to a substantial increase in its demand for exports.
Besides this, a number of the government's flagship programmes, including Make in India, Start-up India, Digital India, the Smart City
Mission, and the Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban Transformation, is aimed at creating immense opportunities in India. In this regard,
some of the initiatives taken by the government to improve the economic condition of the country are mentioned below:

» In February 2024, the Finance Ministry announced the total expenditure in Interim 2024-25 estimated at Rs. 47,65,768 crore (US$ 571.64
billion) of which total capital expenditure is Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.27 billion).

» On January 22, 2024, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced the 'Pradhan Mantri Suryodaya Yojana'. Under this scheme, 1 crore
households will receive rooftop solar installations.

» On September 17, 2023, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Central Sector Scheme PM-VISHWAKARMA in New Delhi.
The new scheme aims to provide recognition and comprehensive support to traditional artisans & craftsmen who work with their hands
and basic tools. This initiative is designed to enhance the quality, scale, and reach of their products, as well as to integrate them with MSME
value chains.

» On August 6, 2023, Amrit Bharat Station Scheme was launched to transform and revitalize 1309 railway stations across the nation. This
scheme envisages development of stations on a continuous basis with a long-term vision.

> On June 28, 2023, the Ministry of Environment, Forests, and Climate Change introduced the ¢ Carbon Credit Trading Scheme, 2023°.

» From April 1, 2023, Foreign Trade Policy 2023 was unveiled to create an enabling ecosystem to support the philosophy of ‘Aatmanirbhar
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Bharat’ and ‘Local goes Global’.

To enhance India’s manufacturing capabilities by increasing investment and production in the sector, the government of India has
introduced the Production Linked Incentive Scheme (PLI) for Pharmaceuticals.

Prime Minister’s Development Initiative for North-East Region (PM-DevINE) was announced in the Union Budget 2022-23 with a
financial outlay of Rs. 1,500 crore (US$ 182.35 million).

Prime Minister Mr Narendra Modi has inaugurated a new food security scheme for providing free food grains to Antyodaya Ann Yojna
(AAY) & Primary Household (PHH) beneficiaries, called Pradhan Mantri Garib Kalyan Ann Yojana (PMGKAY) from January 1, 2023.

The Amrit Bharat Station scheme for Indian Railways envisages the development of stations on a continuous basis with a long-term vision,
formulated on December 29, 2022, by the Ministry of Railways.

On October 7, 2022, the Department for Promotion of Industry, and Internal Trade (DPIIT) launched Credit Guarantee Scheme for Start-
ups (CGSS) aiming to provide credit guarantees up to a specified limit by start-ups, facilitated by Scheduled Commercial Banks, Non-
Banking Financial Companies and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) registered Alternative Investment Funds (AIFS).

Telecom Technology Development Fund (TTDF) Scheme was launched in October 2022 by the Universal Service Obligation Fund
(USOF), a body under the Department of Telecommunications. The objective is to fund R&D in rural-specific communication technology
applications and form synergies among academia, start-ups, research institutes, and the industry to build and develop the telecom
ecosystem.

Home & Cooperation Minister Mr. Amit Shah laid the foundation stone and performed Bhoomi Pujan of Tanot Mandir Complex Project
under Border Tourism Development Programme in Jaisalmer in September 2022.

In August 2022, Mr. Narendra Singh Tomar, Minister of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare inaugurated four new facilities at the Central
Arid Zone Research Institute (CAZRI), which has been rendering excellent services for more than 60 years under the Indian Council of
Agricultural Research (ICAR).

In August 2022, a Special Food Processing Fund of Rs. 2,000 crore (US$ 242.72 million) was set up with National Bank for Agriculture
and Rural Development (NABARD) to provide affordable credit for investments in setting up Mega Food Parks (MFP) as well as
processing units in the MFPs.

In July 2022, Deendayal Port Authority (DPA) announced plans to develop two Mega Cargo Handling Terminals on a Build-Operate-
Transfer (BOT) basis under Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Mode at an estimated cost of Rs. 5,963 crore (US$ 747.64 million).

In July 2022, the Union Cabinet chaired by Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi, approved the signing of the Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) between India & Maldives. This MoU will provide a platform to tap the benefits of information technology for court digitization
and can be a potential growth area for IT companies and start-ups in both countries.

India and Namibia entered a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) on wildlife conservation and sustainable biodiversity utilization on
July 20, 2022, for establishing the cheetah into the historical range in India.

In July 2022, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) approved international trade settlements in Indian rupees (Rs.) to promote the growth of
global trade with emphasis on exports from India and to support the increasing interest of the global trading community.

The Agnipath Scheme aims to develop a young and skilled armed force backed by an advanced warfare technology scheme by providing
youth with an opportunity to serve Indian Army for a 4-year period. It is introduced by the Government of India on June 14, 2022.

In June 2022, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi inaugurated and laid the foundation stone of development projects worth Rs. 21,000
crore (US$ 2.63 billion) at Gujarat Gaurav Abhiyan at Vadodara.

Rajnath Singh, Minister of Defence, launched 75 newly developed Artificial Intelligence (Al) products/technologies during the first-ever
‘Al in Defence’ (AlDef) symposium and exhibition organized by the Ministry of Defence in New Delhi on July 11, 2022.

In June 2022, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi laid the foundation stone of 1,406 projects worth more than Rs. 80,000 crore (US$ 10.01
billion) at the ground-breaking ceremony of the UP Investors Summit in Lucknow. The Projects encompass diverse sectors like Agriculture
and Allied industries, 1T and Electronics, MSME, Manufacturing, Renewable Energy, Pharma, Tourism, Defence & Aerospace, and
Handloom & Textiles.

The Indian Institute of Spices Research (IISR) under the Indian Council for Agricultural Research (ICAR) inked a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) with Lysterra LLC, a Russia-based company for the commercialization of bio capsule, an encapsulation technology
for bio-fertilization on June 30, 2022.

As of April 2022, India signed 13 Free Trade Agreements (FTAs) with its trading partners including major trade agreements like the India-
UAE Comprehensive Partnership Agreement (CEPA) and the India-Australia Economic Cooperation and Trade Agreement (IndAus

51



ECTA).

'Mission Shakti' was applicable with effect from April 1, 2022, aimed at strengthening interventions for women’s safety, security, and
empowerment.

The Union Budget of 2022-23 was presented on February 1, 2022, by the Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs, Ms. Nirmala
Sitharaman. The budget had four priorities PM GatiShakti, Inclusive Development, Productivity Enhancement and Investment, and
Financing of Investments. In the Union Budget 2022-23, effective capital expenditure is expected to increase by 27% at Rs. 10.68 trillion
(US$ 142.93 hillion) to boost the economy. This will be 4.1% of the total Gross Domestic Production (GDP).

Strengthening of Pharmaceutical Industry (SPI) was launched in March 2022 by the Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilisers to provide credit
linked capital and interest subsidy for Technology Upgradation of MSME units in pharmaceutical sector, as well as support of up to Rs.
20 crore (US$ 2.4 million) each for common facilities including Research centre, testing labs and ETPs (Effluent Treatment Plant) in
Pharma Clusters, to enhance the role of MSMEs.

Under PM GatiShakti Master Plan, the National Highway Network will develop 25,000 km of new highways network, which will be worth
Rs. 20,000 crore (US$ 2.67 billion). In 2022-23. Increased government expenditure is expected to attract private investments, with a
production-linked incentive scheme providing excellent opportunities. Consistently proactive, graded, and measured policy support is
anticipated to boost the Indian economy.

In February 2022, The Ministry of Social Justice & Empowerment launched the Scheme for Economic Empowerment of
Denotified/Nomadic/SemiNomadic tribal communities (DNTs) (SEED) to provide basic facilities like good quality coaching, and health
insurance. livelihoods initiative at a community level and financial assistance for the construction of houses.

In February 2022, Minister for Finance and Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman said that productivity linked incentive (PLI)
schemes would be extended to 14 sectors to achieve the mission of Aatmanirbhar Bharat and create 60 lakh jobs with an additional
production capacity of Rs. 30 trillion (US$ 401.49 billion) in the next five years.

In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government announced funding for the production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme for domestic solar
cells and module manufacturing of Rs. 24,000 crore (US$ 3.21 billion).

In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government announced a production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme for Bulk Drugs which was an
investment of Rs. 2,500 crore (US$ 334.60 million).

In the Union Budget of 2022, Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman announced that a scheme for design-led
manufacturing in 5G would be launched as part of the PLI scheme.

In September 2021, Union Cabinet approved major reforms in the telecom sector, which are expected to boost employment, growth,
competition, and consumer interests. Key reforms include rationalization of adjusted gross revenue, rationalization of bank guarantees
(BGs), and encouragement of spectrum sharing.

In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government has allocated Rs. 44,720 crore (US$ 5.98 billion) to Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited
(BSNL) for capital investments in the 4G spectrum.

Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman allocated Rs. 650 crore (US$ 86.69 million) for the Deep Ocean mission
that seeks to explore vast marine living and non-living resources. Department of Space (DoS) has got Rs. 13,700 crore (US$ 1.83 billion)
in 2022-23 for several key space missions like Gaganyaan, Chandrayaan-3, and Aditya L-1 (sun).

In May 2021, the government approved the production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme for manufacturing advanced chemistry cell (ACC)
batteries at an estimated outlay of Rs. 18,100 crore (US$ 2.44 billion); this move is expected to attract domestic and foreign investments
worth Rs. 45,000 crore (US$ 6.07 billion).

Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman announced in the Union Budget of 2022-23 that the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) would issue Digital Rupee using blockchain and other technologies.

In the Union Budget of 2022-23, Railway got an investment of Rs. 2.38 trillion (US$ 31.88 billion) and over 400 new high-speed trains
were announced. The concept of "One Station, One Product" was also introduced.

To boost competitiveness, Budget 2022-23 has announced reforming the 16-year-old Special Economic Zone (SEZ) act.

In June 2021, the RBI (Reserve Bank of India) announced that the investment limit for FPI (foreign portfolio investors) in the State
Development Loans (SDLs) and government securities (G-secs) would persist unaffected at 2% and 6%, respectively, in FY22.

In November 2020, the Government of India announced Rs. 2.65 trillion (US$ 36 billion) stimulus package to generate job opportunities
and provide liquidity support to various sectors such as tourism, aviation, construction, and housing. Also, India's cabinet approved the
production-linked incentives (PLI) scheme to provide ~Rs. 2 trillion (US$ 27 billion) over five years to create jobs and boost production
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in the country.

» Numerous foreign companies are setting up their facilities in India on account of various Government initiatives like Make in India and
Digital India. Prime Minister of India Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Make in India initiative with an aim to boost the country’s
manufacturing sector and increase the purchasing power of the average Indian consumer, which would further drive demand and spur
development, thus benefiting investors. The Government of India, under its Make in India initiative, is trying to boost the contribution
made by the manufacturing sector with an aim to take it to 25% of the GDP from the current 17%. Besides, the government has also come
up with the Digital India initiative, which focuses on three core components: the creation of digital infrastructure, delivering services
digitally, and increasing digital literacy.

» OnJanuary 29, 2022, the National Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd (NARCL) will acquire bad loans worth up to Rs. 50,000 crore (US$
6.69 billion) about 15 accounts by March 31, 2022. India Debt Resolution Co. Ltd (IDRCL) will control the resolution process. This will
clean up India’s financial system, help fuel liquidity, and boost the Indian economy.

» National Bank for Financing Infrastructure and Development (NaBFID) is a bank that will provide non-recourse infrastructure financing
and is expected to support projects from the first quarter of FY23; it is expected to raise Rs. 4 trillion (US$ 53.58 billion) in the next three
years.

» By November 1, 2021, India, and the United Kingdom hope to begin negotiations on a free trade agreement. The proposed FTA between
these two countries is likely to unlock business opportunities and generate jobs. Both sides have renewed their commitment to boost trade
in a manner that benefits all.

> In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced an initiative to start a national mission to reach the US$ 400 billion
merchandise export target by FY22.

» In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched a digital payment solution, e-RUPI, a contactless and cashless instrument
for digital payments.

> In April 2021, Dr. Ahmed Abdul Rahman AlBanna, Ambassador of the UAE to India and Founding Patron of IFIICC, stated that trilateral
trade between India, the UAE and Israel is expected to reach US$ 110 billion by 2030.

» Indiais expected to attract investment of around US$ 100 billion in developing the oil and gas infrastructure during 2019-23.
» The Government of India is expected to increase public health spending to 2.5% of the GDP by 2025.
ROAD AHEAD

In the second quarter of FY24, the growth momentum of the first quarter was sustained, and high-frequency indicators (HFIs) performed well
in July and August of 2023. India's comparatively strong position in the external sector reflects the country's positive outlook for economic
growth and rising employment rates. India ranked 5th in foreign direct investment inflows among the developed and developing nations listed
for the first quarter of 2022.

India's economic story during the first half of the current financial year highlighted the unwavering support the government gave to its capital
expenditure, which, in 2023-24, stood 37.4% higher than the same period last year. In the budget of 2023-24, capital expenditure took lead by
steeply increasing the capital expenditure outlay by 37.4 % in BE 2023-24 to Rs.10 lakh crore (US$ 120.12 billion) over Rs. 7.28 lakh crore
(US$ 87.45 billion) in RE 2022-23. The ratio of revenue expenditure to capital outlay increased by 1.2% in the current year, signalling a clear
change in favour of higher-quality spending. Stronger revenue generation because of improved tax compliance, increased profitability of the
company, and increasing economic activity also contributed to rising capital spending levels. In February 2024, the Finance Ministry
announced the total expenditure in Interim 2024-25 estimated at Rs. 47,65,768 crore (US$ 571.64 billion) of which total capital expenditure
is Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.27 billion).

Since India’s resilient growth despite the global pandemic, India's exports climbed at the second-highest rate with a year-over-year (YoY)
growth of 8.39% in merchandise exports and a 29.82% growth in service exports till April 2023. With a reduction in port congestion, supply
networks are being restored. The CPI-C inflation reduction from June 2022 already reflects the impact. In September 2023 (Provisional), CPI-
C inflation was 5.02%, down from 7.01% in June 2022. With a proactive set of administrative actions by the government, flexible monetary
policy, and a softening of global commodity prices and supply-chain bottlenecks, inflationary pressures in India look to be on the decline
overall.

(Source:  https://www.ibef.org/economy/indian-economy-overview)

AGRICULTURAL, GARDENING AND INDUSTRIAL TOOL INDUSTRY REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
INDIA
Market Trends:

o Domestic Growth: The Indian market for agricultural and gardening tools is expected to grow steadily, driven by increasing mechanization
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in agriculture. With government initiatives like the Pradhan Mantri Krishi Sinchai Yojana (PMKSY) and the focus on doubling farmers'
income, demand for efficient tools is set to rise.

Sustainability and Innovation: Indian manufacturers are increasingly focusing on producing eco-friendly and energy-efficient tools,
catering to both domestic needs and global demand. The adoption of green technologies in manufacturing is gaining momentum, partly
due to rising environmental awareness and government regulations.

Export Opportunities: India’s export of agricultural tools is expected to grow as it becomes a hub for affordable yet high-quality products.
The country’s competitive pricing, coupled with increasing quality standards, positions it well in markets like Africa, Southeast Asia, and
Latin America.

Challenges:

Supply Chain Disruptions: The Indian manufacturing sector is still grappling with supply chain challenges, particularly in the
procurement of raw materials and components. This could impact production timelines and costs.

Technology Adoption: While there is a push towards modernization, many small and medium enterprises (SMESs) in India still lag in
adopting advanced manufacturing technologies like automation and Al, which could slow down overall industry growth.

Outlook: The Indian market is expected to grow at a healthy pace, supported by government policies, increased mechanization in
agriculture, and expanding export markets. However, overcoming challenges related to supply chain and technology adoption will be
crucial for sustaining growth.

GLOBAL

Market Trends:

Automation and Industry 4.0: Globally, the manufacturing of agricultural, gardening, and industrial tools is being revolutionized by
Industry 4.0 practices. Automation, real-time data analytics, and Al are enhancing production efficiency and product quality. These trends
are particularly strong in developed markets like the U.S., Europe, and Japan.

Sustainability: There is a significant global push towards sustainable manufacturing practices. Companies are adopting greener production
methods and focusing on reducing carbon footprints. This trend is especially prominent in Europe, where stringent environmental
regulations are driving change.

Market Diversification: As developed markets become saturated, manufacturers are increasingly targeting emerging markets in Asia,
Africa, and Latin America. These regions offer significant growth potential due to rising disposable incomes and a growing focus on
agricultural efficiency.

Challenges:

Global Trade Tensions: Ongoing trade tensions, particularly between major economies like the U.S. and China, continue to impact global
supply chains and market access. Manufacturers may face higher tariffs and non-tariff barriers, which could affect profitability.

Supply Chain Disruptions: The global manufacturing sector is still recovering from disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, with
challenges such as shipping delays, raw material shortages, and fluctuating costs persisting into 2024.

Outlook:

The global outlook for the manufacturing and export of agricultural, gardening, and industrial tools remains positive. Growth will be driven
by technological advancements, increasing demand for sustainable products, and the expansion of emerging markets. However, companies
will need to navigate challenges related to trade tensions and supply chain disruptions to capitalize on these opportunities.

MAJOR EXPORT DESTINATIONS

United States: The U.S. is one of the largest markets for Indian agricultural and industrial tools. Indian manufacturers cater to the U.S.
market with competitively priced, high-quality products.

European Union:Indian exports of tools to the EU are significant, with the UK, Germany, and the Netherlands being key markets. The
demand is driven by the EU's robust agricultural sector and stringent quality standards, which Indian manufacturers are increasingly
meeting.

Africa: African countries are emerging as significant markets for Indian agricultural tools, particularly in regions like East Africa (Kenya,
Tanzania) and West Africa (Nigeria, Ghana). The affordability and durability of Indian tools make them popular in these growing
markets.

Middle East:The Middle East is another important region for Indian exports, with countries like the UAE, Saudi Arabia, and Iran
importing a range of agricultural and industrial tools from India.
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e  Southeast Asia:Countries like Indonesia, Malaysia, and Thailand import a considerable volume of agricultural tools from India. The
geographical proximity and growing agricultural sectors in these countries drive the demand for Indian products.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES
INDIA

Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme:

The PLI scheme, which was extended to various sectors, aims to boost domestic manufacturing by providing financial incentives to companies
that meet certain production targets. Although it initially focused on sectors like electronics and automotive, there are discussions about
expanding it to include agricultural tools and machinery. This would help boost the production and export capabilities of Indian manufacturers
in this sector.

Atmanirbhar Bharat (Self-Reliant India):

As part of the broader Atmanirbhar Bharat initiative, the Indian government has been promoting local manufacturing across various sectors,
including agricultural and industrial tools. This initiative includes subsidies, easier access to credit, and tax incentives for domestic
manufacturers, aiming to reduce dependency on imports and enhance export potential.

Agricultural Infrastructure Fund (AIF):

The AIF scheme, which provides a medium-long term debt financing facility for investment in viable projects for post-harvest management
infrastructure and community farming assets, indirectly supports the demand for agricultural tools and equipment. This, in turn, boosts
manufacturing and export opportunities for Indian companies in this sector.

Export Promotion Initiatives:

The Indian government has launched several export promotion initiatives under schemes like the Merchandise Exports from India Scheme
(MEIS) and the newly launched Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products (RODTEP) scheme. These initiatives aim to make
Indian products more competitive in the global market by offsetting various taxes and duties.

GLOBAL INITIATIVES
Trade Agreements and Tariff Reductions:

Various countries are engaging in trade agreements that lower tariffs on industrial goods, including agricultural and gardening tools. For
example, the European Union and countries like Japan and Canada have entered into free trade agreements that benefit manufacturers by
reducing export costs and opening up new markets.

Sustainability Initiatives:

Governments around the world, particularly in Europe, are pushing for sustainable manufacturing practices. This includes the adoption of
cleaner technologies and processes in the production of industrial tools. These initiatives are often supported by grants and subsidies for
manufacturers that invest in green technologies, which can enhance their export appeal in environmentally-conscious markets.

Industry 4.0 and Digitalization:

Many governments, especially in advanced economies like Germany and Japan, are promoting the adoption of Industry 4.0 practices through
subsidies and grants. This includes the use of automation, Al, and digital twin technologies in manufacturing. By enhancing production
efficiency and reducing costs, these initiatives help manufacturers remain competitive globally.

U.S. Manufacturing Extension Partnership (MEP) Program:

In the United States, the MEP program supports small and medium-sized manufacturers by providing them with access to services that can
help improve productivity, enhance technology adoption, and boost export capabilities. This program is particularly beneficial for
manufacturers of specialized industrial tools.

These initiatives, both in India and globally, are geared toward enhancing the manufacturing and export potential of companies involved in
the production of agricultural, gardening, and industrial tools. They provide financial incentives, technological support, and market access
opportunities that are critical for growth in 2023-2024.

Source: (StartUs Insights)
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our plans and strategies, contain forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in the Equity Shares, Shareholders should read thisentire Letter
of Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. For a discussion of certain risks in connection with investment
in the Equity Shares, you should read “Risk Factors” on page 24, for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties relatedto those
statements, as well as “Financial Statements” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resultsof
Operations” on pages 68 and 69, respectively, for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial condition or
results of operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements.
Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this section is derived from our Financial Statements.

OVERVIEW

Our Company was originally incorporated as Galaxy Agrico Private Limited under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of
Companies, Ahmedabad and consequently a certificate of incorporation dated February 23, 1994. Later, the name of the company was
changed from “Galaxy Agrico Private Limited” to its present name “Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited” vide fresh certificate of
incorporation consequent upon change of name “ROC letter no 04-21368 of 1993-94.

The Company is a well-established player in the agricultural tools and equipment manufacturing sector. Founded with a mission to
provide high-quality agricultural tools, the company has grown to become a prominent exporter of a wide range of products, including
hand tools, agricultural implements, and other related items. The Company specializes in the production of a diverse array of agricultural
tools, such as hoes, sickles, pickaxes, spades, and more. The company’s product line is designed to meet the needs of farmers and
agricultural workers globally, focusing on durability, ease of use, and efficiency. The company operates state-of-the-art manufacturing
facilities equipped with modern machinery and technology. These facilities are designed to ensure high-quality production standards
while maintaining cost efficiency. The Company emphasizes precision engineering and stringent quality control measures to produce
tools that meet international standards. Quality is a cornerstone of Company operations. The company adheres to strict quality control
protocols at every stage of production, from raw material inspection to the final product testing. The Company products are designed to
withstand rigorous usage, and the company ensures that each item meets the required specifications before it reaches the market.

Currently, Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited, headquartered in Rajkot, focusing on the manufacturing and trading of agricultural.
Gardening and industrial tools. The company, led by an experienced management team, capitalizes on extensive industry connections
to facilitate transactions within Gujarat market. Engaging in bulk trading, the company maintains an offline presence, predominantly
dealing with prominent merchants in the region. Transactions are executed with precision, leveraging the established network to
streamline sourcing, trading, and distribution processes. The business strategy prioritizes localized operations, emphasizing relationships
and efficiency within the Gujarat market. Compliance with organic certification standards ensures adherence to quality and ethical
practices. Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited market approach centers on reliability, transparency, and leveraging its Promoters's industry
experience to sustain a prominent position in the agro commodities trading sector. The company's operations are oriented toward
practicality, responsiveness to market demands, and maintaining a stronghold in the competitive Gujarat spices market.

SWOT ANALYSIS

Strengths: Weaknesses:

1. Growing Global Demand: There is a consistent global 1. Supply Chain Vulnerabilities: The industry is heavily
demand for agricultural and gardening tools, driven by dependent on global supply chains for raw materials and
the need for increased agricultural efficiency and the components. Disruptions, such as those seen during the
rising popularity of home gardening. This ensures a COVID-19 pandemic, can lead to production delays and
steady market for manufacturers and exporters. increased costs.

2. Cost-Competitive Production: Many manufacturers, 2. Quality and Standardization Issues: In some regions,
especially those in countries like India and China, benefit particularly among smaller manufacturers, there may be
from lower labor and production costs. This cost inconsistencies in product quality and adherence to
advantage enables them to offer competitive pricing in international standards. This can lead to a lack of trust
international markets, making their products attractive to among global buyers and limit market access.

a wide range of buyers. 3. Limited R&D Capabilities: Smaller companies,

3. Technological Advancements: The adoption of particularly in developing countries, may have limited
Industry 4.0 practices, such as automation and Al, resources for research and development. This restricts
enhances production efficiency and product quality. their ability to innovate and keep pace with global trends,
Companies that have integrated these technologies can potentially leading to a loss of competitive advantage.
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4.

produce more innovative and higher-quality tools, giving
them an edge over competitors.

Diverse Product Range: The industry typically offers a
wide variety of products catering to different needs, from
basic gardening tools to sophisticated industrial
machinery. This diversity allows companies to target
multiple market segments, reducing dependency on any
single product line.

Environmental Regulations: As global regulations
around sustainability and environmental impact tighten,
companies that do not invest in greener manufacturing
practices may face penalties or lose access to key
markets.

Opportunities:

Expansion into Emerging Markets: There is significant
growth potential in emerging markets in Africa, Latin
America, and Southeast Asia, where agricultural
modernization is increasing demand for tools and
equipment. Companies can capitalize on these expanding
markets.

Government Initiatives and Support: Various
government initiatives, such as subsidies, tax incentives,
and export promotion schemes, provide opportunities for
growth. These initiatives can help companies enhance
production capacity and expand their global footprint.
Rising Trend of Home Gardening: The increasing
popularity of home gardening, especially in developed
countries, presents an opportunity for manufacturers to tap
into the consumer market for gardening tools and
equipment.

Innovation in Sustainable Practices: With a growing
global focus on sustainability, companies that innovate in
eco-friendly manufacturing processes and products can
differentiate themselves and capture a larger share of
environmentally conscious consumers.

Threats:

Intense Global Competition: The industry faces stiff
competition from manufacturers in countries like China,
Germany, and the United States. This intense competition
can lead to price wars, squeezing profit margins.

Trade Barriers and Tariffs: Trade tensions and the
imposition of tariffs between major economies can disrupt
exports and increase costs. Companies exporting to
multiple regions may face varying regulatory and tariff
challenges.

Technological Disruption: Rapid advancements in
technology can lead to obsolescence of existing tools and
equipment. Companies that fail to keep up with
technological changes risk losing market share to more
innovative competitors.

Economic Fluctuations: Economic downturns or
fluctuations in key markets can lead to reduced demand
for industrial tools and equipment. Additionally, currency
exchange rate volatility can impact export profitability.

OURBUSINESS STRATEGY

1. Exploiting Promoters's Industry Connections:

Leveraging Established Relationships: Utilize the extensive industry connections of the experienced promoters to strengthen
relationships with key players in the agro commodities market, including farmers, suppliers, and prominent merchants in Gujarat.

Strategic Partnerships: Collaborate with industry stakeholders to create strategic partnerships that enhance the company's position

in the market and provide access to a wider range of commadities.

2. Focus on Offline B2B Trading in Gujarat Markets:

w

Localized Presence: Maintain a strong physical presence in Gujarat markets to foster direct relationships with local
merchants. This localized approach helps in understanding market dynamics, ensuring timely transactions, and building trust.

Tailored Offerings: Customize product offerings based on the specific needs and preferences of the local market. This personalized
approach enhances customer satisfaction and loyalty among B2B clients.

Efficient Supply Chain Management: Streamline the supply chain by establishing efficient logistics and distribution channels within
Ahmedabad. Timely deliveries and reliable services contribute to the company's reputation in the market.

. Strengthening Operational Excellence:

Quality Assurance: Implement rigorous quality control measures to ensure that the agro commodities meet industry standards. This



commitment to quality enhances the company's credibility and fosters long-term relationships with buyers.

e  Optimized Inventory Management: Implement efficient inventory management practices to minimize holding costs and respond
quickly to market demands. This agility is crucial in a dynamic market like agro commodities.

e Risk Management: Develop robust risk management strategies to navigate market fluctuations, including pricing risks and changes
in commodity supply. Regular market analysis and proactive decision-making are essential components of risk management.

SN

. Marketing Initiatives:

o Word-of-Mouth Marketing: Leverage positive relationships and experiences with existing clients to generate word-of-mouth
referrals within the industry. This organic form of marketing can significantly contribute to business growth.

e Participation in Local Trade Events: Actively participate in local trade events, exhibitions, and industry conferences to showcase
the company's products and services. Networking at such events can lead to new business opportunities and partnerships.

e Promotional Materials: Develop informative and visually appealing promotional materials, such as brochures and business cards,
to leave a lasting impression with potential clients and collaborators.

DETAILSOF THE MARKET

The Indian market for agricultural, gardening, and industrial tools is substantial, driven by the country’s vast agricultural sector and growing
industrial base. The agricultural tools market is particularly significant, as agriculture contributes around 17-18% to India's GDP and
employs about 50% of the workforce. The increasing mechanization of farming and the expansion of small-scale farming practices have
led to a steady demand for agricultural tools.

Agricultural Tools: The demand for agricultural tools such astillers, plows, sprayers, and seed drills has been rising due to the push towards
mechanization. The market is projected to grow steadily as the government continues to promote modern farming techniques through
various schemes and subsidies.

Gardening Tools: The gardening tools market in India is growing, albeit at a slower pace compared to agricultural tools. The rise in urban
gardening and landscaping, along with increased consumer interest in home gardening, has driven demand. This segment includes products
like pruners, shears, and lawnmowers.

Industrial Tools: India’s industrial tools market is growing due to the expansion of the manufacturing sector, infrastructure development,
and the “Make in India” initiative. Tools such as wrenches, drills, and cutting instruments are in demand across various industries, including
automotive, construction, and heavy machinery.

PLACE OF BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY
We operate our business from the following location:
Registered Office

236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate, Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024
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OUR PRODUCTS

Product Product Sample Description
:;'OE‘Z H » Forged Hoes: Sturdy and durable, these hoes are forged from high-
S?arr?]?ae d E'ise s quality steel, ideal for heavy-duty agricultural and gardening tasks.

» Stamped Hoes: Lightweight and easy to handle, these hoes are
stamped from steel sheets, suitable for light weeding and soil aeration.

PICKS & MATTOCKS
Forged Pick Axe

Pick & Cutter Mattock
Beater

» Forged Pick Axe: A versatile tool with a pointed end for breaking
rocky surfaces and a flat end for digging or chopping.

» Pick & Cutter Mattock: Combines the functionality of a pick and a
cutter, designed for breaking tough soil and cutting roots.

> Beater: A heavy-duty tool used for compacting and breaking dense
materials.

SHOVELS & SPADES
Forged Spades
Stamped Shovels

» Forged Spades: Heavy-duty spades forged from high-grade steel for
digging and moving heavy soil.

» Stamped Shovels: Lightweight shovels stamped from steel sheets,
suitable for moving loose soil or sand.

FORKS
Forged Forks
Welded Forks

» Forged Forks: Robust forks forged from solid steel, perfect for turning
soil, composting, and moving bulky materials.

» Welded Forks: Made by welding steel components together, providing
a balanced combination of strength and lightness for various gardening
tasks.

GARDEN TOOLS
Cultivators

Leaf Rakes

Garden Rakes

Dutch Hoe

Draw Hoe

Scarapers

Edging Knife

Small Garden & Hand
Tools

» Cultivators: Designed for loosening soil and removing weeds, these
cultivators are perfect for garden maintenance.

> Leaf Rakes: Ideal for gathering leaves and debris, these rakes feature
flexible tines for easy collection.

» Garden Rakes: Used for leveling and spreading soil or mulch, with
strong tines for added durability.

» Dutch Hoe: A specialized hoe for precise weeding with minimal soil
disturbance.

» Draw Hoe: A versatile tool for shaping soil, digging, and cutting
through roots.

» Scrapers: Handy tools for scraping off weeds and unwanted growth.
» Edging Knife: Perfect for creating clean and defined garden edges.

» Small Garden & Hand Tools: Includes a variety of compact tools for
detailed gardening work.

DIGGERS

> Durable tools designed for digging and trenching, suitable for both
heavy and light-duty tasks.

CULTIVATOR BLADES

> High-quality blades designed for use with cultivators, offering
effective soil tilling and mixing.

BARS

Tampers

Heavy Bars

Bars

Pullers & Rippers

B
) }

> Stampers: Heavy tools used for compressing soil and materials.

> Heavy Bars: Strong, solid bars designed for breaking hard ground or
concrete.

> Pullers & Rippers: Tools engineered for pulling out roots or ripping
through tough materials.
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AXES & WOOD » Forged Axes: Heavy-duty axes forged from high-quality steel, ideal

WEDGE i
for chopping wood.

Forged Axes PPing W .

Forged Wood Wedge > Forged Wood Wedge: Used for splitting logs, crafted from strong steel
to withstand repeated use.

HAMMERS

» Forged Hammer: Durable and well-balanced hammers forged from

Forged Hammer steel, suitable for various construction and demolition tasks.

COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE

The competitive dynamics are influenced by factors such as pricing strategies, supply chain efficiencies, technological adoption, and the
ability to navigate regulatory frameworks. As the market evolves, participants must adapt to changing consumer preferences, globaltrade
dynamics, and advancements in agtech to maintain a competitive edge in India's agro commaodity trading landscape.

1. Traditional Mandis:
e Local agricultural markets or mandis continue to play a crucial role, serving as hubs for farmers and traders to engage
in physical transactions.

2. Exportersand Importers:
e Established and emerging exporters and importers actively participate in the market, facilitating the cross-border
movement of agro commodities.

3. Online Trading Platforms:
e Digital platforms and marketplaces have gained prominence, offering a convenient and transparent avenue for farmers,
traders, and buyers to conduct transactions. Examples include platforms that provide real-time pricing information and
facilitate online auctions.

4. Government Agencies:
e  Government bodies and agencies contribute significantly through policies, subsidies, and market interventions aimed
at stabilizing prices and supporting farmers.

5. Warehousing and Logistics Providers:
e Companies specializing in warehousing and logistics play a critical role in ensuring the efficient storage and
transportation of agro commaodities.

6. Financial Institutions:
e Banks and financial institutions provide funding and financial services, facilitating smooth transactions and offering
risk management tools to participants in the agro commodity market.

7. Agtech Companies:
e Technology-driven firms focusing on agriculture (Agtech) contribute with innovations such as farm management
systems, supply chain solutions, and data analytics, enhancing overall efficiency.

8. Traditional Traders and Brokers:
e Traditional traders and brokers continue to be key intermediaries, utilizing their industry experience and networks to
facilitate transactions and negotiations.

PLANT AND MACHINERY

As of the date of this Letter of Offer, the Company does not currently possess any plant and machinery, as it operates solely as a
trading business.

COLLABORATIONS
The Company has so far not entered into any technical or financial collaboration agreement.

INSTALLED CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILISATION
Since our Company is not involved in any manufacturing activities, installed capacity and capacity utilisation is not applicable to us.
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REVENUE BREAK-UP

Our revenue break-up on financial statements which the years ending March 31, 2024 and unaudited limited review period June

30. 2024 is as follows:

(2 in Lakhs)
S. No. | Particular Period June 30,2024 Year Ending March 31, 2024
1. Income From Operations 96.96 732.40
2. Other Income 6.46 15.33
Total 103.42 747.73

SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiaries or associate companies, as on date of this Letter of Offer.

EXPORT AND EXPORT OBLIGATION
The Company does not have any export sales or export obligations, as on date of this Letter of Offer.

UTILITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES
Infrastructure Facilities

Our registered office is situated 236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate, Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024
and is well equipped with adequate equipment and other facilities which are required for our business operations.

Power

Our Company requires power for the normal requirement of the factory and for lighting, Computer systems etc. Adequate power is
available which is met through the commercial electric supply by Brihanmumbai Electric Supply and Transport.

Water

The Company does not require water facilities required for business purposes. The requirements are fully met for human consumption
at the existing premises.

HUMAN RESOURCES

We have a qualified and professional employee base of 3 fulltime employees as on date of this Letter of Offer. Our majority workforce
are skilled workmen. Many of our employees, particularly the senior management, have been working with our Company since inception.
Our manpower is a prudent mix of the experienced and young people which gives us the dual advantage of stability and growth, execution
of services within time and quality, we believe human capital is one of the most valuable assets of our Company as their technical know-
how and skill sets position us at a competitive advantage over our competitors in providing some of our services.

Job profile wise employee break up as following:

Job Profile Number of Employees
Accounts 2

Compliance 2

Management 15

Total 19

INSURANCE

No insurance is required by the Company for its current business activities.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Our Company has intellectual property as under:
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S. No. Nature of IP Particular Status
. https://galaxyagrico.com/index.html

L Not Applied De.eeag NA

INDEBTEDNESS

For details of indebtedness please refer to “Financial Information” on page 68 of this Letter of Offer.
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OUR MANAGEMENT
Our Board of Directors

Our Articles of Association require us to have not less than three (03) and not more than fifteen (15) Directors. As on date of this Letter
of Offer, we have Nine (09) Directors on our Board, which includes, three (03) Executive Director and (04) Independent Director and one
(1) Women Director.

Sr. Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Qualification, Designation, Occupation, Address,

No. Nationality and Term Other Directorship(s)

1.| NATHABHAIJERAMBHAI SADARIA (DIN: 00167254)
Father Name; Jerambhai Nanjibhai Sadaria

Designation; Managing Director

Address: A-7, Kasturi Appartment, Akshar Marg, Nr. Bhaktidh, Unchehara, NA
Rajkot, Gujarat- 360001

Date of Birth: 05/02/1944

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment: 30/09/2013

2. | AJAY RAMIJIBHAI PATEL (DIN: 00167284)

Father Name; Ramjibhai Bhagwanjibhai Patel

Designation; Director

Address: 7102, Takshashila Society 2, Opp Star Plaza, Phulc Unchehara, Rajkot,
Gujarat- 360001

Date of Birth: 26/12/1974

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment; 23/03/2003

NA

MAUSAMIBEN PARESHBHAI SADARIA (DIN: 07046365)

Father Name; Dineshbhai Damjibhai Patel

Designation; Director

Address: 7 A Kasturi Appartment, Nr. Panchvati Society, Aks, Unchehara, Rajkot,
Guijarat- 360001 NA
Date of Birth: 19/08/1974

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment; 05/01/2015

4. | JAGDISH MANSHUKHLAL SHAH (DIN: 07158142)

Father Name; Manshukhlal Tarachand Shah

Designation; Director

Address: 7/A Milpara, Kanta Street Vikas Gruh Road, Bhaktinagar Kotda Sangani,
Rajkot, Gujarat- 360002 NA
Date of Birth: 11/05/1948

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment: 20/04/2015

5. | MANOJHARSUKHLAL SHAH (DIN: 02173383)

Father Name; Harsukhalal Gokaldas Shah

Designation; Whole-Time Director

Address: Raj Vaibhav Appartment, Block No. 1004, Pradhyuman City,
Vrundavan Society Road, Kalawad Road, Sau Un Rajkot Gujarat — 360005 Accumax Rings Limited
Date of Birth: 15/06/1964
Occupation: Business
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Nationality: Indian
Date of First Appointment: 01/07/2008

SANJAY JAYANTILAL PATEL (DIN: 01632620)

Father Name; Jayantilal Devjibhai Patel

Designation; Whole-Time Director

Address: Hill Berg Appartment, Block No.- 601, Dr. Dindayal
Upadhyay Marg Snowhill Appartment, Rajkot, Gujarat- 360002
Date of Birth: 28/07/1964

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment: 01/07/2008

Anuradha Realty Private
Limited

Accumax Rings Limited

KIRAN BAVANJIBHAI GOVANI (DIN: 01294557)

Father Name; Bavanjibhai Muljibhai Govani

Designation; Director

Address: B - 302 Aamisha Grand, 150 Feet Ring Road, Bh. Reliance Fresh, Shiv
Sangam Plot, Raiya Road, Rajkot, Gujarat -360007

Date of Birth: 07/10/1966

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment: 30/09/2014

Diamond Tools Private
Limited

MASUKHLAL NATHABHAI GOVANI (DIN: 02167809)

Father Name; Nathabhai Muljibhai Govani

Designation; Director

Address: 7102 Takshashila Society 2, Opp : Star Plaza, Phulchhab Chowk
Rajkot Gujarat 360001

Date of Birth:

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment: 30/09/2014

NA

MR. ABHAY VASANTRAO GALGATE (DIN: 09596308)

Father Name; Vasantrao Rambhau Galgate

Designation; Director

Address: Plot no 17,18,19,Flat no 401, 4th Floor Universal Majestic Wardha Road,
Opp Cocacola Factory, New Sneha Nagar, Khamla Nagpur Maharashtra -440025
Date of Birth: 17/10/1971

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment: 11/07/2024

Shree Aanjney Dal Mill Private
Limited

10.

MR. RICHA KACHHAWAHA (DIN: 10702959)

Father Name; Rajesh Kachhawaha

Designation; Director

Address: 13/8, Durga Das Colony, Paota C Road Jodhpur Rajasthan 342001
Date of Birth: 07/08/1994

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

NA
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Date of First Appointment: 11/07/2024

11} MR.SATISH CHANDER NOTIYAL (DIN: 06381387)
Father Name; Bhawani Dutt Notiyal Globe Connexions And
Designation; Director Services Private Limited
Address: G No 12/1, H No-9 Vill Wazirabad Delhi 110084
Date of Birth: 14/07/1984

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment: 11/07/2024

Brief Profile of our Directors

Nathabhai Jerambhai Sadaria aged 80 years, is a seasoned professional with vast experience in accounting and financial management.
With decades of dedicated service in handling the accounts of the company, he has played a pivotal role in ensuring the company’s
financial stability and compliance. His deep understanding of financial strategies, coupled with his meticulous attention to detail, has
been instrumental in guiding the company’s fiscal policies. Mr. Sadaria's leadership in the finance department reflects his commitment
to the company’s growth and long-term sustainability. His wealth of knowledge and experience continues to be a valuable asset to the
company.

Manoj Harsukhlal Shah, aged 60 years, is an accomplished leader with extensive experience in factory administration and operational
management. Over the years, he has been responsible for overseeing the efficient functioning of the company’s manufacturing units,
ensuring that production processes are streamlined and aligned with the company’s objectives. Mr. Shah’s hands-on approach to factory
administration, combined with his deep understanding of operational workflows, has been key to maintaining high productivity and
quality standards. His proactive leadership in managing factory operations continues to drive the company’s success and operational
excellence.

Sanjay Jayantilal Patel aged 60 years, is an experienced professional specializing in production management. With a strong technical
background and hands-on experience in overseeing the company's production department, Mr. Patel has been instrumental in optimizing
manufacturing processes and ensuring efficient, high-quality output. His leadership in the production unit has contributed significantly
to meeting production targets, maintaining product standards, and improving operational efficiency. His keen eye for innovation and
quality control ensures that the company remains competitive in the market while delivering consistent results.

Ajay Ramijibhai Patel aged 50 years, is a highly skilled professional with extensive expertise in machinery management and
maintenance. As the head of the machinery department, he has been responsible for ensuring the smooth operation, upkeep, and
modernization of the company’s equipment and technological infrastructure. Mr. Patel's focus on efficiency and innovation has played
a crucial role in minimizing downtime, optimizing production capabilities, and maintaining the highest standards of operational
reliability. His strategic approach to machinery management continues to contribute significantly to the company's productivity and
growth.

Mausamiben Pareshbhai Sadaria aged 50 years, is a dynamic leader with comprehensive expertise in the overall management of the
company. With a focus on strategic planning, organizational development, and operational excellence, she oversees the company’s day-
to-day functions and long-term objectives. Her visionary leadership has been instrumental in driving the company’s growth, fostering
a culture of innovation, and ensuring alignment across departments. With a strong commitment to operational efficiency and corporate
governance, Mrs. Sadaria continues to guide the company toward sustained success and competitive advantage in the industry.

Jagdish Manshukhlal Shah aged 76 years, isa seasoned professional with decades of experience in managing the financial and accounts-
related functions of the company. His extensive knowledge in accounting practices and financial management has been pivotal in
ensuring the company’s fiscal responsibility and regulatory compliance. With a meticulous approach to handling financial records and
budgeting, Mr. Shah has consistently contributed to the company’s financial stability and transparency. His expertise in accounts-
related work continues to be a valuable asset, supporting the company’s growth and financial integrity.

Kiran Bavanjibhai Govani aged 76 years, is an experienced professional specializing in procurement and supply chain management.
As the head of the purchase department, he has been responsible for overseeing the sourcing of high-quality materials and negotiating
cost-effective procurement deals. Mr. Govani’s expertise in vendor management and supply chain optimization has been instrumental
in maintaining strong supplier relationships while ensuring timely availability of materials critical for the company’s operations. His
strategic approach to purchasing continues to enhance the company’s cost efficiency and operational effectiveness.

Masukhlal Nathabhai Govani aged 69 years, is a seasoned professional with extensive experience in sales and business development.
As the head of the sales department, he has been pivotal in driving the company’s revenue growth and expanding its market presence.
With a deep understanding of market dynamics and customer needs, Mr. Govani has successfully developed and implemented sales
strategies that have strengthened the company’s competitive position. His leadership in managing client relationships and exploring
new business opportunities continues to contribute to the company’s sustained success in the marketplace.
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Mr. Abhay Vasantrao Galgate is a seasoned professional with over two decades of experience in the banking, finance, and taxation
sectors. Holding a Master's Degree in Commerce, he has developed a deep understanding of these fields, contributing significantly to
their growth. His expertise spans various aspects of financial management, including strategic planning, risk management, regulatory
compliance, and tax planning. His extensive knowledge and strategic approach have been crucial in driving business growth and
maintaining robust financial health in the organizations he has been associated with.

Ms. Richa Kachhawaha holds a Master's Degree Commerce and is a practicing Company Secretary with three years of experience in
corporate law and financial services. Throughout her career, she has developed a deep understanding of regulatory frameworks and
financial compliance, making her a valuable asset to any organization. Ms. Kachhawaha's expertise in corporate governance and legal
matters will significantly benefit Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited as we strive to expand our presence in the agrico market and enhance
our export services. Her proficiency in financial management and corporate law will ensure that the company adheres to the highest
standards of compliance and operational efficiency. In recognition of her strong dedication, professional accomplishments, and potential
to drive growth, the Management has decided to induct Ms. Kachhawaha as a Director of the Company. This appointment also aligns
with our goal of providing representation to employees at the Board level, further strengthening our commitment to inclusive and
balanced governance.

Mr. Satish Chander Notiyal holds a Master's Degree in Commerce with a specialization in export-related areas. With three years of
experience in the field, he has acquired extensive knowledge of export regulations, international trade policies, and financial
compliance. His expertise enables him to navigate complex regulatory environments effectively ensuring that all export activities, meet
the required standards and contribute to the company's global growth.

Confirmations

e None of our Directors of our Company have held or currently hold directorship in any listed company whose shares have been
or were suspended from being traded on any of the stock exchanges in the five years preceding the date of filing of this Letter
of Offer, during the term of his/ her directorship in such company.

e  Further, none of our Directors of our Company are or were associated in the capacity of a director with any listed company
which has been delisted from any stock exchange(s) at any time in the past.

Our Key Managerial Personnel

We are providing below herewith the details of our Key Managerial Personnel as on the date of filing of this Letter of
Offer:

Sr. Name of Key Managerial Personnel Associated withthe Current Designation
No. and SeniorManagement Personnel Company Since

1 Nathabhai Jerambhai Sadaria 30/09/2013 Managing Director

2 Manoj Harsukhlal Shah 01/07/2008 Whole-time director

3 Sanjay Jayantilal Patel 01/07/2008 Whole-time director

4 Jayantilal Panchanbhai Kansagara 09/10/2018 Chief Financial Officer
5 Utsavi Lalit Bhatia 11/04/2019 Company Secretary
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Organization Structure

Board Of Directors

Company Secretary
Managing Director Officer and ((I)of;ppliance
icer

Chief Financial

67



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transactions, during the last three Fiscals as per the requirements under the relevant accounting
standards and as reported in the Audited Financial Information, see section titled “Financial Information” at page 68 of this
Letter of Offer.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividends will be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the Shareholders,
at their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and applicable law, including the Companies Act.
The dividend, if any, will depend on a number of factors, including but not limited, consolidated net operating profit after tax,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, cash flow required to meet contingencies, outstanding
borrowings, and applicable taxes payable by our Company. In addition, our ability to pay dividends may be impacted by a
number of factors, including restrictive covenants under loan or financing arrangements our Company is currently availing of
or may enter into to finance our fund requirements for our business activities.

Dividends paid on Equity Shares:

Our Company has not declared dividends on the Equity Shares in each of the Financial Years ending 2023, 2022 and 2021.
The amount paid as dividends in the past is not necessarily indicative of our dividend policy or dividend amount, if any, in the
future and there is no guarantee that any dividends will be declared or paid or that the amount thereof will not be decreased
in future.

68



SECTION V - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Details

Page Number

Independent Auditors’ Report and Standalone Annual Financig
Results for the year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2025, of the Company pursuant to the Regulation 33 of th¢
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulatior
2015 (as amended).
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H. B. KALARIA & ASSOCIATES A-601/802, The Imperial Heights, 150 Ft. Ring Road,
Chartered Accountants Opp. Big Bazaar, Rajkot - 360 004.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON AUDIT OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND
REVIEW OF QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS

To the Board of Directors of Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Report on Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Results

Opinion

We have (a) audited the accompanying Ind AS financial results for the year then ended
March 31, 2025 (b) reviewed the Ind AS Financial Results for the quarter ended March 31,
2025 (refer 'Other Matters' section below), which were subject to limited review by us, both
included in the accompanying "Statement of Ind AS Financial Results for the Quarter and
Year ended March 31, 2025 of Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited (“the Company”), ("the
Statement"), being submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation
33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended ("the Listing Regulations").

(a) Opinion on Annual Financial Ind AS Results
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial results for the year ended March 31, 2025:

I.  Are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
and

Il.  Gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India of the net profit and total comprehensive
income and other financial information of the Company for the year then ended.

(b) Conclusion on Unaudited Ind AS Financial Results for the quarter ended March 31,
2025

With respect to the Ind AS Financial Results for the quarter ended March 31, 2025 based on
our review conducted as stated in paragraph (b) of Auditor's Responsibilities section below,
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Ind AS Financial Results
for the quarter ended March 31, 2025, prepared in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be
disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, including the manner in which it is to be
disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

F-1
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H. B. KALARIA & ASSOCIATES A-601/602, The Imperial Heights, 150 Ft. Ring Road,
Chartered Accountants Opp. Big Bazaar, Rajkot - 360 004.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial
Results section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial results under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

The Company's management is responsible for carrying out the inspection of its fixed assets
on a regular basis. We have not independently verified the fixed assets of the Company
during the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of the fixed assets as appearing
in the balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on the profit and net assets of the
Company for the period and year ended March 31, 2025.

The Company's management is responsible for carrying out the inspection of its inventories
on a regular basis. We have not independently verified the inventories of the Company
during the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of inventories as appearing in
the balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on the profit and net assets of the
Company for the period and year ended March 31, 2025.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Results

This Statement which includes the Ind AS Financial Results is the responsibility of the
Company’s Board of Directors and has been approved by them for the issuance. The Ind AS
Financial Results for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been compiled from the related
audited interim financial information. This responsibility includes the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS Financial Results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2025
that give a true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income and other
financial information in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India
and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Results that give a true and fair view

and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. --/”IARIA : A§30¢7};~ F-2
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H. B. KALARIA & ASSOCIATES A-601/602, The Imperial Heights, 150 Ft. Ring Road,
‘Chartered Accountants Opp. Big Bazaar, Rajkot - 360 004.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Results, the Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability, to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Results

(a) Audit of the Ind AS Financial Results for the year ended March 31, 2025

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
results as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS

financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial results,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board of

Directors in terms of the requirements specified under Regulation 33 of the Listing
Regulations.

F-3

Tel.:0281-2581501 /02 /03 M: +91 98240 421866/09241 32115 E-mail: info@hbkalaria.in



H. B. KALARIA & ASSOCIATES A-801/602, The Imperial Heights, 150 Ft. Ring Road,
Chartered Accountants Opp. Big Bazaer, Rajkot - 360 004.

5. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the Ind AS financial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

6. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial results,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial results represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

7. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Annual Ind AS Financial
Results of the Company to express an opinion on the Annual Financial Results.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Annual Ind AS Financial Results that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Annual Ind AS Financial Results may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Annual Ind AS Financial Results.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

(b) Review of the Ind AS Financial Results for the quarter ended March 31, 2025

We conducted our review of the Ind AS Financial Results for the quarter ended March 31,
2025 in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements ("SRE") 2410 'Review of
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued
by the ICAI. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily
of the Company's personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs specified under section 143(10) of the Act and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an

audil opimon.
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H. B. KALARIA & ASSOCIATES A-801/602, The Imperial Heights, 150 Ft. Ring Road,
Chartered Accountants Opp. Big Bazaar, Rajkot - 360 004.

Other Matters

The Statement includes the results for the Quarter ended March 31, 2025 being the
balancing figure between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the
published year to date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year which
were subject to limited review by us. Our report on the Statement is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Place: Rajkot For,

Date: 13/05/2025 HB Kalaria and Associates
Firm Reg. No. 104571W
Chartered Accountants
Hasmukh Kalaria

Partner

Mem. No. 042002
UDIN: 25042002BMJEYP8771
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In lacs)
As at 31st March As at 31st March,
Particulars Note No. 2025 2024
I ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, plant & equipment 3 207.61 235.63

(b) Investment Properties 4 74.88 81.57
(c) Intangible Assets
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 5 0.24 0.24

(i) Loans, Advances & Others 6 77.44 76.44

(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 18 23.80 21.18

[Total Non-Current Assets 383.96 415.06)

Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 60.91 49.35
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments - -

(i) Trade Receivables 8 34.75 35.41
(iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 9 24.89 4.12
(iv) Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivelants 10 - 19.85
(v) Loans & Advances 11 457 4.24
(vi) Other Financial Assets 12 32.36 9.12
(c) Other Current Assets 13 93.23 92.60
[Total Current Assets 250.70 214.70
TOTAL ASSETS 634.67 629.76
. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 14 391.36 391.36
Other Equity 15 10.97 21.62
Total Equity 402.33 412.98
Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Long-Term Borrowings 16 165.25 98.39
(i) Trade Payable - -
(i) Other Financial Liabilities - -

(b) Long term Provisions 17 5.41 8.12
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilites (Net) 18 - -
Sub-Total (Non-Current Liabilities) 170.66 106.51
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Short-term Borrowings 19 17.54 64.85
(i) Trade Payables 20 6.34 4,70
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 21 19.27 22.14
(b) Other Current Liabilities 22 6.75 8.29
(c) Short term Provisions 23 11.78 10.28
| Sub-Total (Current Liabilities) 61.67 110.27
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 634.67 629.76

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes
As per our Report of even date
For H B Kalaria & Associates

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner
Membership No.: 042002

FRN : 104571W

Sd/-

Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director
DIN-00167254

Sd/-

Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Sd/-

Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

Sd/-

Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M

Rajkot May 13,2025

Shapar (Veraval)

May13,2025
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In lacs)
Sr } Note For the year ended For the year
Particulars No. ended 31st March,
No 31st March,2025 2024
l. [Revenue from Operations 24 359.04 732.40
IIl. |Other Income 25 24.54 15.33
lll. [Total Income (1 + 1) 383.58 747.73
IV. |Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 26 - -
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 27 - 257.62
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-trade 28 (15.57) (18.75)
Employee Benefits Expense 29 131.43 185.12
Finance Costs 30 4.00 8.49
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 29.78 52.34
Other Expenses 31 229.72 334.11
Total Expenses 379.35 818.93
V. |Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (llI-IV) 4.23 (71.21)
VI. |Exceptional Items -
VIL. | Profit/(Loss) after exceptional items and before tax (V - VI) 4.23 (71.21)
VIII. | Tax expense: 32
(1) Current Tax - -
(2) Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) (3.93) (15.61)
(3) Prior Period Tax - 0.34
IX. [Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIII) 8.16 (55.93)
X. | Profit/(loss) for the Period (IX+XI1) 8.16 (55.93)
Xl. [|Other Comprehensive Income 33
A. (i) Items that will not be Reclassifled to Proflt or Loss 5.22 7.34
(i) Income-tax relating to Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss (1.31) (1.85)
XIl. | Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XI11+XIV) (Comprising Profit/(Loss)
. A 12.07 (50.43)
and Other comprehensive Income for the period)
Paid-up Equity Share Capital (weighted Average) (face value Rs. 10 each) 273.16 273.16
XIll |Earnings per equity share : 34
(1) Basic 0.30 (2.05)
(2) Diluted 0.30 (2.05)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes

As per our Report of even date
For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner
Membership No.: 042002

FRN : 104571W

Rajkot May 13,2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Nathabhai Sadaria

Managing Director
DIN-00167254

Sd/-

Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

Sd/-
Manojbhai Shah

Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

Sd/-

Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M

May 13,2025
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
A. [Cash Flow from Operating Activity
Net Profit Before Tax 4.23 (71.21)
Adjustments For:
Depreciation 29.78 52.34
Interest & Financial Expenses 4.00 8.49
Provision to gratuity fund 373 5.06
(Profit)/Loss on Investments (6.49) (2.47),
(Gain)/Loss on Sales of Assets 0.00 -0.13
Gain on Sale of Plot/Workshop (12.66) (3.80)
Interest Received on Deposits (5.13) (1.20)
Employee Loan Written Off 0.00 0.94
Creditors w/back 0.00 (1.07),
Rent Income
13.23 58.17
Operation profit before Working Capital Changes 17.46 (13.03)
Adjustment For:
Inventories (11.57) (11.39)
Trade Receivables 0.66 36.27|
Other Assets (25.18), (57.66)
Trade Payables & Other Liabilities and Provisions (2.78) (17.83)
Taxes Paid ] -0.34
(38.87) (50.95)
Net Cash Generated from Operations (21.42) (63.98)
B. | Cash Flow from Investment Activities
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipments g 0.22
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments (1.65) (2.71)
Changes in capital creditors 0.00 (1.51)
Gain on sale of current investments 6.49 -
Sale of Investment Properties 19.25 4.15
Provision for F & O 0.27 0.00
Purchase of Investments 0.00 8.71
Bank Balances not considered as Cash Equivelant 19.85 (1.08)
Interest Received 5.13 1.20
Net Cash Flow from Investment Activities 49.34 8.98
C. |Cash Flow from Financial Activities:
Changes in Long-term borrowings (net) 66.86 41.13
Changes in Short-term borrowings (net) (47.31) 16.51
Share Issue Expense (22.72) 0.00]
Interest & Financial Expenses (4.00) (8.49)
Net Cash Flow from Financial Activities (7.17) 49.14
Total of Cash Flow (A+B+C) 20.76 (5.85)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 4.12 9.98
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the ending of the year 24.89 412
Cash & Cash Equivalent compriging of
Cash on Hand 0.30 0.66
Balances with Scheduled Banks 24.59 3.46
24.89 4.12

Note: 1. The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes

2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm this year's classification.

As per our Report of even date
For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner

Membership No.: 042002
FRN : 104571W

Rajkot May 13,2025

Sd/-

Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director
DIN-00167254

Sd/-

Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

Sd/-

Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

Sd/-

Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In lacs)
Equity Share Capital Amount
Balance as at 31st March 2023 391.36
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 391.36
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2025 391.36
Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Suplus
General Reserve Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 1st April 2023 2.50 69.55 72.05
Profit for the year - (55.93) (55.93)
Other Comprehensive Income - 5.49 5.49
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (50.43) (50.43)
Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 2.50 19.12 21.62
] Reserves and Suplus
Particulars - -
General Reserve Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 1st April 2024 2.50 19.12 21.62
Profit for the year - 8.16 8.16
Other Comprehensive Income - 391 391
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 12.07 12.07
Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2025 2.50 31.19 33.69

As per our Report of even date

For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner
Membership No.: 042002

FRN : 104571W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Nathabhai Sadaria

Managing Director
DIN-00167254

Sd/-

Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary

Sd/-

Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

Sd/-

Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
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Rajkot May 13,2025 Shapar (Veraval) May 13,2025



Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note 3 :Property, Plant & Equipment

(Rs. In Lacs)
. e Plant and Electrical Furniture and Motor Office
Particulars Land Buildings . . . . Computer i Total
Equipment Installations Fixtures Vehicles Equipments

Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1st April, 2023 6.91 149.71 532.25 21.98 16.61 75.06 247 3.21 808.21
Additions - - 271 - - - - - 2.7125
Disposals - - - - - 0.62 - - 0.62
Other Deduction - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 6.91 149.71 534.96 21.98 16.61 74.44 2.47 3.21 810.30
Additions - - 1.65 - - - - - 1.64785
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 6.91 149.71 536.61 21.98 16.61 74.44 2.47 3.21 811.95
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2023 - 102.82 365.02 20.09 16.33 13.98 2.15 2.58 522.98
Depreciation - 4.47 30.78 0.49 0.07 15.92 0.21 0.29 52.22028
Disposals - - - - - 0.53 - - 0.52833
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 - 107.29 395.80 20.58 16.40 29.38 2.35 2.87 574.67
Depreciation - 4.03 13.28 0.36 0.05 11.72 0.08 0.16 29.67175
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 - 111.32 409.08 20.94 16.46 41.09 243 3.02 604.34
Net Carrying Amount
As at 1st April, 2023 6.91 46.89 167.22 1.89 0.27 61.08 0.33 0.63 285.23
As at 31st March, 2024 6.91 42.42 139.16 1.40 0.20 45.07 0.12 0.35 235.63
As at 31st March,2025 6.91 38.39 127.53 1.04 0.15 33.35 0.04 0.19 207.61

F-10




Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note: 4 Investment properties

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

Gross Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 85.71 86.06
Add: addition during the year 0.00, 0.00]
Add: Transfer from land 0.00 0.00|
Less : deduction during the year 6.59 0.35
Gross Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 79.12 85.71
Less : Opening depreciation 4.14 4.02
Addition during the year 0.10 0.12

4.24 4.14

Net Carrying Amount at the end of the year 74.88 81.57

Note: 5 Non Current Investments

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Nos of units Amount Nos of units Amount
Investment in Equity Instruments:
(In fully paid shares)
Unquoted:
At Cost
Equity Shares of Rajkot Nagarik Sahakari 460 024 460 0.24]
Bank Ltd of Rs. 50 each
Total 460.00 0.24 460.00 0.24
Note: 6 Other Non-Current Financial Assets
(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits 77.44 76.44
77.44 76.44
Note: 7 Inventories
(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
Raw Materials 1137 11.37
Finished Goods 42.42 26.85
Stores and Spares 7.12 1113
Total 60.91 49.35
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

7.1 Details of Raw Materials

As at 31st
March, 2025

As at 31st
March, 2024

Indigeneous:
Round bar (Steel) 11.37] 11.37
Total 11.37| 11.37
As at 31st As at 31st
7.2 Details of Finished Goods
March, 2025 March, 2024
Scrap 42.42 26.85
Total 42.42 26.85
Note: 8 Trade Receivables
(Rs. In lacs)
particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2025

March, 2024

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for
payment
Unsecured, considered good

Sub total

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are due for
payment

Unsecured, considered good 34.75 3541
Total 34.75 35.41
Note: 8.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule
(Rs. In lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2025

March, 2024

(Outstanding for the following periods from the date of
transaction)

Unsecured
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good

Less than 6 months 34.75 3541
6 months-1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
34.75 3541
Total 34.75 35.41
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note: 9 Cash and Cash Equivelants

(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Balances with bank:-
In Current Account 24.59 3.46
Cash on hand 0.30 0.66
Total 24.89 4.12
Note: 10 Other Bank Balances
(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2025

March, 2024

Margin Money
Fixed Deposit Account (having maturity period within 12 months)

19.85

Total

19.85

Note: 11 Loans - Currents (Unsecured and Considered Good)

(Rs. In Lacs)

. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Loans to Employees 4.57 4.24
Total 4.57 4.24
Note: 12 Other Financial Assets-Current
(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Interest and Dividend Receivables on Investments 452 E
Income accured but not received 27.84] 9.12
Total 32.36 9.12
Note: 13 Other Current Assets
(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Statutory receivables 5.14] 6.38
Advances to suppliers 87.27 65.89
Advances for capital assets 0.00 20.00
Prepaid expenses 0.82 0.34]
Total 93.23 92.60
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note: 14 Equity Share Capital

(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Authorised
5,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each - 550.00
3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,000.00 -
3,000.00 550.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
27,31,620 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 273.16 273.16
Add : Forfeited Equity Shares 118.20 118.20
[ Total 391.36 391.36
14.1 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:-
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars No. of Shares March, 2025 No. of Shares March, 2024
Shares outstanding at beginning of the year 2,731,620 273.16 2,731,620 273.16
Shares outstanding at end of the year 2,731,620 273.16 2,731,620 273.16
Note: The Forfieted Equity Capital of Rs. 118.20 lacs represents 22,68,400 forfieted equity shares of Rs. 10 partly paid.
14.2 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
held held
Manoj H. Shah 149,600 5.48% 149,600 5.48%
Kantaben J. Patel 204,000 7.47% 204,000 7.47%
Hemali S. Patel 139,500 5.11% 139,500 5.11%
Jitendra H. Shah - E 189,910 6.95%
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14.3 Details of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:

Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Name of the Promoter No. of Shares % of % change No. of Shares % of Holding % change
held Holding held
Kantaben Jayantilal Patel 2,04,000 7.47% 0.00% 2,04,000 7.47% 0.00%
Manoj Harsukhlal Shah 1,49,600 5.48% 0.00% 1,49,600 5.48% 0.00%
Jayesh Kishorbhai Patel 102,509 3.75% 0.00% 1,43,000 3.75% 0.00%
Hemali Sudhir Patel 1,39,500 5.11% 0.00% 1,39,500 5.11% 0.00%
Jitendra Harsukhlal Shah - 0.00% -6.95% 189,910 6.95% 0.00%
Ashvin Harsukhlal Shah 1,22,750 4.49% 0.00% 1,22,750 4.49%)| 0.00%
Sanjay Jayantilal Patel 1,11,250 407% 0.00% 1,11,250 4.07%) 0.00%
Malaben Rajnikant Sadaria 1,08,000 3.95% 0.00% 1,08,000 3.95% 0.00%
Gangji Jeram Sadariya 1,03,000 3.77% 0.00% 1,03,000 3.77% 0.00%
Ritaben Chandrakant Sadaria 89,000 3.26% 0.00% 89000 3.26% 0.00%
Suketa Sanjay Patel 84,750 3.10% 0.00% 84750 3.10%| 0.00%
Nayanaben Ashwinkumar Shah 74,750 2.74% 0.00% 74750 2.74%| 0.00%
Harshaben Manharbhai Sadaria 10,500 0.38% -2.20% 70500 2.58% 0.00%
Nathabhai Jerambhai Sadaria 65,010 2.38% 0.00% 65010 2.38% 0.00%
Sudhir Jayantilal Patel 60,500 2.21% 0.00% 60500 2.21% 0.00%
Tanuj Nanalal Kalavadia 57,000 2.09% 0.00% 57000 2.09%| 0.00%
Paresh Nathabhai Sadaria 55,500 2.03% 0.00% 55500 2.03% 0.00%
Mausami Paresh Sadaria 44,500 1.63% 0.00% 44500 1.63%| 0.00%
Nalini Manojkumar Shah 7,475 0.27% -1.21% 40300 1.48% 0.00%
Devkuvarben Nathabhai Sadaria - 0.00% -1.28% 35000 1.28%| 0.00%
Sadaria Manharkumar Nathalal 29,500 1.08% 0.00% 29500 1.08%| 0.00%
Jitendra Harsukhlal Shah-Huf - 0.00% -0.37% 10100 0.37% 0.00%
Manojkumar Harsukhlal Shah-Huf 10,100 0.37% 0.00% 10100 0.37% 0.00%
Jay Ashwinbhai Shah 2,500 0.09% 0.00% 2500 0.09% 0.00%
Amrita J Shah 74,955 2.74% 2.74% E 0.00%
Minal J Sanghvi 74,955 2.74% 2.74% - 0.00%

14.4 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their

shareholding.

Note: 15 Other Equity

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2025

As at 31st
March, 2024

a. General Reserve

Opening Balance 2.50 2.50
(+) Current Year Transfer - -
(-) Transfer to other Reserves - -
Balance as at year end 2.50 2.50
b. Retained Earnings

Opening Balance 19.12 69.55
(+) Net Profit for year 8.16 (55.93)
(+) Other Comprehensive Income for the year 391 5.49
(-)Capital Expenditure- Share Issue Expense 22.72 -
Balance as at year end 8.47 19.12
Total 10.97 21.62
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Note: 16 Long Term Borrowings:

Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Secured
Vehicle loan from banks 15.25 33.39
Unsecured
Loans from directors 150.00 65.00
Total 165.25 98.39
16.1 Terms of Repayment of Loans:
. " . . Rate of
Particulars(Name of financier) Nature of Security Terms of Repayment Interest

Vehicle Loan from Banks (Axis Bank)

Hypothecation of the respective vehicle

Repayable in 60 and 48
Monthly Instaliments

9.25% -9.50%

Repayment schedule not

Loans from Directors Unsecured specified -
Note: 17 Long term provisions
(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 | March, 2024
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity Provision 541 8.12
Total 541 8.12
Note: 18 Deferred Tax Assets
(Rs. In Lacs)
particulars As at 31st Charge during As at 31st Charge during As at 31st
March, 2025 the year March, 2024 the year March, 2023
Deferred Tax Liability on account of :
(1) Depreciation 2.20 0.45 1.74 (3.90) 5.64
2.20 0.45 1.74 (3.90) 5.64
Deferred Tax Assets on account of :
(1) Gratuity 4.26 (0.37) 4.63 0.57 (5.20)
(ii) Unabsorbed Depreciation 17.47 0.77 16.70 (8.85) (7.85)
(iii)Unrealised/Carried Forward Losses 427 2.68 1.59 (1.59) 0.00
26.00 3.07 22.92 (9.87) (13.05)
23.80 (2.62) 21.18 (13.77) (7.41)
Note: 19 Short-term Borrowings- Current
(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2025 March, 2024
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 17.54 15.37
Secured
Cash Credit 0.00 49.47
(Cash credits from Bank against hypothecation of raw materials, stores, spare parts, finished
goods, work-in-porgress and receivables)
Total 17.54 64.85
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note: 20 Trade Payables

(Rs. In Lacs)
. Asat31st |Asat 31st
Particulars
March, 2025 | March, 2024

Micro, Small and Medium Entreprises 2.00 344
Other than Micro, Small and Medium Entreprises
Sundry Creditors for goods 0.07 093
Sundry Creditors for services/expenses 4.26 0.34

Total 6.34 4.70

Note: Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 certain disclosure are required to be made for enterprises which

are covered under the Act. We had disclosed to the extent such information is available with the company.

Note: 20.1 Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2025

As at 31st
March, 2024

(Outstanding for the following periods from the date of
transaction)

Undisputed trade payables - MSMEs

Not due - -
Less than 1 year 2.00 3.44
1-2 years . -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
2.00 3.44
Undisputed trade payables - other than MSMEs
Not due e -
Less than 1 year 433 1.27
1-2 years - 0
2-3 years - 0
More than 3 years -
433 1.27
Total 6.34 4.70
20.2 The details of amounts outstanding to Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises based on available information with the co. is as under.
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
Principal amount due and remaining unpaid at the year end 2.00 344
Interest due on above and remaining unpaid interest at the year end - -
Interest paid other than sec 16 beyond the appointed day during the year - -
Principal amount paid beyond the appointed day during the year 0.04 -

Interest piad under sec 16 beyond appoint day during the year
Interest due and payable for payment already made
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note: 21 Other Financial Liabilities

(Rs. In Lacs)

particul As at 31st As at 31st
articufars March, 2025 | March, 2024
Accured Expenses Payable 7.00 6.18
Employee related liabilities 12.27 15.96
Total 19.27 22.14

21.1 There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31st March,2025 &
2024.

Note: 22 Other Current Liabilities

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
Statutory dues (including withholding taxes) 6.75 8.29
Total 6.75 8.29
Note: 23 Short Term Provisions
(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
e March, 2025 March, 2024
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity 11.51 10.28
Short Term Provision 0.27 g
Total 11.78 10.28
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note: 24 Revenue from Operations

Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March | ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Sale of products 131.60 278.26
Sale of services 226.84 294.57
358.44 572.83
Less: Rate difference/discounts/credit notes/quality difference - 1.61
358.44 571.23
Other Operating Revenue 0.60 161.17
Total 359.04 732.40
Note: 25 Other Income
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Interest on Financial Assets
On Bank Fixed Deposits - 1.20
On Income Tax Refund 0.26 0.34
On PGVCL Deposits 5.13 -
Other Gain and Losses
Gain on Sales Of Current Investments 6.49 6.06
Profit on Revaluation of Investments - 2.73
Creditors Written Back - 1.07
Gain on sale of Plot 5.84 3.80
Gain on sale of Workshop 6.82 -
Net gain on disposal/discarding of tangible assets - 0.13
Total 24.54 15.33
Note: 26 Cost of Materials Consumed
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Opening Inventory 11.37 11.37
Add : Purchase 0.00 0.00
|Less : Closing Inventory 11.37 11.37
[ Total - -
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note: 27 Purchase of Stock in Trade

(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March | ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Purchase (stock in trade) 257.62
Note: 28 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2025 31,2024
Inventories (at close):
Finished Goods 42.42 26.85
42.42 26.85
Inventories (at commencement):
Finished Goods 26.85 8.10
26.85 8.10
Total (15.57) (18.75)
Note: 29 Employee Benefits Expense
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Salaries and Wages 119.92 168.86
Contributions to:-
Provident Fund, Superannuation Scheme & Other Funds 10.65 15.16
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.86 1.10
Total 131.43 185.12
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

29.1 Employee Benefits, the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standards are given below:-

Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
(1) Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet
Present value of unfunded obligations 16.92 18.40
Present value of funded obligations - -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net Liability (asset) 16.92 18.40
(1) Amounts to be recognised in Profit and Loss Account
Service Cost:
Current service cost 394 417
Past Service Cost - -
Curtailment and settlement - -
Net interest cost 0.94 1.17
Total included in Exployees Expenses 4.88 534
Expenses deducted from the fund - -
Total Charged to profit and loss 4.88 534
(1) Other Comprehensive Income for the period
Components of acturial gain/loss on obligation - -
Due to change in financial assumption 0.20 0.07
Due to change in demographic assumption - -
Due to experience adjustments (5.42) (7.41)
Return on planed assets excluding amounts included in interest income - -
Amount Recognised in other comprehensive income (5.22) (7.34)
(IV) Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 18.40 20.68
Transfer in/(out) obligation - -
Current service cost 3.94 417
Interest cost 0.95 117
Components of acturial gain/loss on obligtion - -
Due to change in financial assumption 0.20 0.07
Due to change in demographic assumption - -
Due to experience adjustments (5.42) (7.41)
Past Service Cost - -
Loss/Gain on Curtailment - -
Liabilities Extinguished on settlement - -
Liabilities assumed in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase - -
Exchange deference of foreign plan - -
Benefits Paid (1.15) (0.28)
Closing defined Benefit Obligation 16.92 18.40
(V) Assumptions:
Discount rate (per annum) 6.55% 7.15%
Rate of increase in Salary 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate 25.00% 25.00%
Note: 30 Finance Cost
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Interest expenses 3.98 8.40
On Other Borrowing and/or late payments 0.02 0.09
Total 4.00 8.49
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note: 31 Other Expenses

(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March | ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Direct Expenses
Stores Consumed 47.95 79.43
Transportation and Freight Expenses 0.61 0.95
Repairs to Buildings 1.57 1.59
Repairs to Machinery 4.84 8.29
Electricity, Power and Fuel 142.02 193.23
Factory and other expenses 4.59 5.16
Jobwork Charges 3.00 14.40
Indirect Expenses
Bank Gurantee & Other Charges 0.17 2.20
Repairs to Others 0.79 1.16
Insurance Expenses 1.48 2.72
Telephone & Postage Expenses 0.19 0.38
Printing and Stationery 0.56 0.59
Rates and Taxes 0.03. 0.55
Donation Expenses 0.42 0.64
Payments to Auditors 1.70 1.70
Information technology expenses 0.22 0.17
Payment to technical service 0.84] 0.78
Advertisement and Publicity 0.43 0.46
Penalty Expense- BSE - 0.10
Late fee 0.02 0.04
Listing Fees 337 3.37
Registration and filling fees 0.00 0.47
Professional & Consulting fees 3.78 237
ROCfees 0.08 0.01
Travelling and Conveyance 3.61 0.27
Vehicle Petrol & Repairs 4.83 4,53
PGVCL Connection Charges - 0.22
Employee Loan Written Off - 0.94
Loss in sale of current investment - 6.32
FD PreMature Expense 0.74 -
1SO Audit Fees 0.11 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.77 1.07
Total 229.72 334.11
31.1 Details of Stores Consumed
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Indigenous 47.95 79.43
Total 47.95 79.43
31.2 Payments to Auditors as:
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Statutory Auditors :
i) Audit Services 1.02 1.02
i) For Taxation matters 0.34 0.34
iii) For Company Law matters 034 0.34
Total 1.70 1.70
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

32 Income Tax

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Net Tax Expenses
Current tax - -
Deferred tax liability/(assets) (3.93) (15.61)
Prior Period Tax - 034
(3.93) (15.28)]
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting
profit computed by applying the Income tax rate
Profit/ (loss) before tax 423 7121
India’s statutory income tax rate 0.25 0.25
Expected income tax expense as per applicable taxes 1.07 (17.92)
Non-deductibles expenses 0.95 2.70
Prior Period Tax 0.00 -0.34
Changes due to brought forward tax losses (1.56) 0.00
Difference due to temporary differences (0.45) 0.13
Difference due to different tax rate (1.60) 0.00
Others (2.33) 0.15
Total (3.93) (15.28)]
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Note: 33 Other Comprehensive Income

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended March 31, 2025 | ended March 31, 2024
Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity Benefits as per Ind AS 19:-
(a) Items that will not be reclassifled to proflt or loss
Due to Change in financial assumptions 0.20 0.07
Due to Change in demographic assumptions - -
Due to experience adjustments (5.42) (7.41)
Total (5.22) (7.34)
Note: 34 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended March 31, 2025 | ended March 31, 2024
Net. Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to 12.07 (50.43)
Equity Shareholders (Rs. In Lacs)
Weighted average number of shares considered for calculating EPS (In 2731620 2,731,620
Nos.)
Face Value per equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Basic Earnings per share (Rs.) 0.44 (1.85)
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 0.44 (1.85)
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note: 35 Additional regulatory information

Note : 35.1 Details of benami propert(ies) held

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the

Company for holding any Benami property.

Note : 35.2 Security of current assets against borrowings

The Company is not having any borrowings froms banks or financial institutations against which security of current assets is
given. Hence, quarterly returns and statements of current assets is not required to filed with banks or financial institutions by

the Company.

Note : 35.3 Details of wilful default

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution, in accordance with the

guidance on wilful defaulters issued by Reserve Bank of India.

Note : 35.4 Relationship with struck off companies

The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

Note : 35.5 Delay in registration/satisfication of charges with registrar of companies

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory

period.

Note : 35.6 Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company does not have subsidiary company, hence the compliance regarding with the number of layers of
Companies as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of

Layers) Rules, 2017, is not applicable to the Company.

Note: 35.7 Analytical ratios

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March31, | endedMarch31, | % change
2025 2024
Current ratio
Current assets (in Rs. lacs) (A) 250.70 214.70
Current liabilities (in Rs. lacs) (B) 61.67 110.27
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 4.07 1.95 108.79%
Debt-equity ratio
Total debt (in Rs. lacs) (A) 182.79 163.24
Shareholders' funds (in Rs. lacs) (B) 402.33 412.98
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 0.45 0.40 14.94%
Debt service coverage ratio
Net profit/(loss) before tax (in Rs. lacs) 423 (71.21)
Add: Finance cost (in Rs. lacs) 4,00 8.49
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expense (in Rs. lacs) 29.78 52.34
Earnings available for debt services (in Rs. lacs) (A) 38.01 (10.38)
Interest expnese (in Rs. lacs) 4,00 8.49
Principal repayment (in Rs. lacs) 15.97 14.55
Debt service (in Rs. lacs) (B) 19.97 23.04
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 1.90 (0.45)| -522.59%
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Return on equity

Net profit/(loss) after tax (in Rs. lacs) (A) 8.16 (55.93)

Average shareholders' funds (in Rs. lacs) (B) 407.66 43.65

Ratio (%) = (A)/(B) 0.02 (1.28)] -101.56%
Inventory turnover ratio

Cost of goods sold (in Rs. lacs) (A) 189.01 541.93

Average inventory (in Rs. lacs) (B) 55.13 43.65

Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 343 12.41 72.38%
Trade receivables turnover ratio

Revenue from operations (in Rs. lacs) (A) 359.04 732.40

Average trade receivables (in Rs. lacs) (B) 35.08 53.54

Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 10.24 13.68 25.17%
Trade payables turnover ratio

Total purchase (in Rs. lacs) (A) 43.94 329.70

Average trade payables (in Rs. lacs) (B) 5.52 9.81

Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 7.96 33.63 -76.32%
Net capital turnover ratio

Revenue from operations (in Rs. lacs) (A) 359.04 732.40

Current assets (in Rs. lacs) 250.70 214.70

Less: Current liabilities (in Rs. lacs) 61.67 110.27

Net working capital (in Rs. lacs) 189.03 104.43

Average net working capital (in Rs. lacs) (B) 146.73 129.27

Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 245 5.67 -56.81%
Net profit ratio

Net profit/(loss) after tax (in Rs. lacs) (A) 8.16 (55.93)

Revenue from operations (in Rs. lacs) (B) 359.04 732.40

Ratio (%) = (A)/(B) 0.02 (0.08)| -129.78%
Return on capital employed

Net profit/(loss) before tax (in Rs. lacs) 423 (71.21)

Add: Finance cost (in Rs. lacs) 4,00 8.49

Earning before interest and taxes (in Rs. lacs) (A) 823 (62.71)

Average capital employed (in Rs. lacs) (B) 407.66 525.79

Ratio (%) = (A)/(B) 0.02 (0.12)| -116.93%
Return on investment

Income earned on investments (in Rs. lacs) (A) 6.49 6.06

Average investments (in Rs. lacs) (B) 0.24 3.36

Ratio (%) = (A)/(B) 26.97 1.80 | 1396.44%
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Reason for change for more than 25%

1. Current ratio
Current Ratio has increased as there is decrease in current liability and increased in current assets of the Company.

2. Debt service coverage ratio
Debt service coverage ratio has increased on account of profit during the year by Company.

3. Return On Equity ratio
Return on equity ratio has increased due to profit incurred by the Company.

4. Inventory turnover ratio
Inventory Turnover ratio has decreased due to decrease in sales.

5. Trade receivables turnover ratio
Trade receivables turnover ratio has decreased on account of decrease in credit sales by the Company.

6. Trade payables turnover ratio
Trade payables turnover ratio has decreased on account of decrease in credit purchase by the Company.

7. Net capital turnover ratio
Net Capital Turnover ratio has decreased on account of decrease in turnover of current year as compared to that of previous
year

8. Net profit ratio
Net profit ratio has increase on account of profit of the current year .

9. Return on capital employed
Return on capital employed ratio has increased on account of profit of the current year.

10. Return on Investment

Return on investment has increased on account of increase in income earned on investments of the current year.
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Note: 36 Fair Value Measurements

Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in
the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount
is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

(A) Financial instruments by category

Carrying amount Fair value
31-Mar-25 FVTPL FVTOCI | Amortised | Level 1 Level 2 | Level 3
Cost
[i] Financial assets
Investment in Equity instruments - - 0.24 - - -
Security deposit - - 77.44 - - -
Trade receivable - - 34.75 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 24.89 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -
Loans - - 4.57 - - -
Other financial assets - - 32.36 - - -
- - 174.24 - - -
[ii] Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 182.79 - - -
Trade payables - - 6.34 - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 19.27 - - -
- - 208.40 - - N
Carrying amount Fair value
31-Mar-24 FVTPL FVTOCI | Amortised | Level 1 Level 2 | Level 3
Cost
[i] Financial assets
Investment in Equity instruments - 0.24 - - -
Security Deposit - - 76.44 - - -
Trade receivable - - 35.41 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 4.12 - - -
Bank Balances Other Than Cash and cash equivalents - - 19.85 - - -
Loans - - 4.24 - - -
Other financial assets - - 9.12 - - -
- - 149.43 - - -
[ii] Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 163.24 - - -
Trade payables - - 4.70 - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 22.14 - - -
- - 190.09 - - -

(B) FAIR VALUE HEIRARCHY

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties inan arm’s
length transaction. The Company has made certain judgements and estimates in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are
disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company as classified the financial
instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is as follows:

Level 1: Level 1 of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Level 2 heirarchy includes financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on the observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3
heirarchy.
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Note:

(C) VALUATION TECHNIQUES
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include
- the use of quoted market prices for mutual funds

- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis or such other acceptable
valuation methodology, wherever applicable

There are no items in the financial instruments, which required level 3 valuation.

37 Capital Management

The company policy is to have robust financial base so as to maintain outsider's confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as level of dividends to equity shareholders.The company monitors
capital using a ratio of "adjusted net debt" to "equity". For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liability, Comprising
interest-bearing loans and borrowing, less cash and cash equivalents. Total Equity includes the share capital, other equity.

The capital gearing ratio is as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Borrowings (Incl. Current Maturity) 182.79 163.24
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 24.89 412
Adjusted Net Debt (A) 157.91 159.12
Equity Share Capital 391.36 391.36
Other Equity 10.97 21.62
Total Equity (B) 402.33 412.98
Adjusted Net Debt to Total Equity ratio (A/B) 0.39 0.39
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(Rs. In Lacs)

Note: 38 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, viz liquidity risk, market risk and credit risk. The
Management of the Company has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk policy framework.
The risk management policies are formulated after the identification and analysis of the risks and suitable risk limits and controls
are set which are monitored & reveiwed periodically. The changes in the market conditions and allied areas are accordingly
reflected in the changes of the policy. The key risks and mitigating actions are placed before the Audit Committee of the
Company who then evaluate and take the necessary corrective action. The sources of risk, which the Company is exposed to
and how the Company manages these risks with their impact on the Financial Statements is given below:

Risk Exposure from Measurement Management

Credit risk Trade receivables, Aging analysis, Credit limits and bank gaurantees
Cash and cash Credit ratings

Liquidity risk Borrowings, Trade Cash flow budgeted Vs [Availibity of commited credit lines and borrowing
payables and other actuals facilities
liabilities

Market risk - Interest Long-term borrowings | Sensitivity analysis The management monitors the rates of interests and

rate at variable interest continues to evaluate refinancing of debts at lower
rates rates of interest on a regular basis.

[A] Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if the counterparty fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company
is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). However, the credit risk on account of
financing activities, i.e., balances with banks is very low, since the Company holds all the balances with approved bankers only.

Trade receivables

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the customers outstanding
balances to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade receivables are limited, as the Company’s customer base is large, reputed and having good credit credential as well
as that they are long standing customers. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a quarterly basis.

Historical experience of collecting receivables of the Company is supported by low level of past default and hence the credit
risk is perceived to be low.
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[B] Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Company faces in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s
approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring
unacceptable losses. In doing this, Management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The below table analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows, balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Particulars Carrying Upto 1 1- 2 year More than Total
amount year 2 years

31-Mar-25

Non-derivatives

Borrowings (including interest accrued) 182.79 17.54 8.38 156.87 182.79
Trade payables 6.34 6.34 - - 6.34
Other financial liabilities 19.27 19.27 - - 19.27
Total 208.40 43.14 8.38 156.87 208.40
31-Mar-24

Non-derivatives

Borrowings (including interest accrued) 163.24 64.85 11.52 86.87 163.24
Trade payables 4.70 4.70 - - 4.70
Other financial liabilities 22.14 22.14 - - 22.14
Total 190.09 91.69 11.52 86.87 190.09

[C] Market risk

The Company’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial
instruments:

¢ Interest rate risk

The above risk may affect the Company’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes
in fair values of fixed interest bearing financial assets or borrowings because of fluctuations in the interest rates, if such assets
/borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of floating interest bearing borrowings will flucutate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company to change in interest rate at end of the reporting periods are as follows:

. 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Particulars
Amount |% of total Amount % of total
Variable rate borrowing 182.79 100.00% 163.24 100.00%
Fixed rate borrowing - 0.00% - 0.00%
182.79 163.24

Sensitivity
Profit ans loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expenses from borrowing as a result of change in interset rate.

Impact on profit after tax

Particulars
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Interest rate increase by 100 basis points (2.44) (2.99)
Interest rate decrease by 100 basis points 2.44 2.99
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Note: 39 Related Party Transactions

(A) Name of related party and nature of relationship:-

Name of related party

Description of relationship

1. Key Management Personnel :
Nathabhai J. Sadariya
Sanjay J. Patel
Manoj H. Shah
Ajaybhai R. Patel
Kiran B. Govani
Mausamiben P. Sadaria
Mansukhlal N. Govani (Ceased w.e.f 30.09.2024)
Satish Notyal (Appointed w.e.f 11.07.2024)
Jagdishbhai M. Shah

Abhay VasantRao Galgate (Appointed w.e.f 30.09.2024)

Richa Kachhawaha (Appointed w.e.f. 11.07.2024)
Jay Narayan Nayak (Appointed w.e.f 24.05.2024)
Jayantilal Kansagara

Utsavi Bhatia

Managing Director

Wholetime Director
Wholetime Director
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

CFO

Company Secretary

(B) Transactions with related party

Transaction Amount

For the year For the year
Name of Related Party ended March | ended March
31,2025 31,2024

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
Sanjay J. Patel 8.83 10.20
Manoj H. Shah 8.83 10.20
Bonus
Sanjay J. Patel 0.70 0.85
Manoj H. Shah 0.70 0.85
Loans accepted
Manoj H. Shah 47.00 38.00
Sanjay J. Patel 20.00 30.00
Nathabhai J Sadariya 30.00 g
Loans Repaid
Manoj H. Shah 12.00 11.00
Reimb nent of Exp Paid
Sanjay J. Patel 251 g
Manoj H. Shah 0.98 0.26

(C) Outstanding Balances with related party

Name of Related Party

Transaction Amount

For the year For the year

ended March | ended March

31,2025 31,2024
Loans from Directors
Manoj H. Shah 70.00 35.00
Sanjay J. Patel 50.00 30.00
NathabhaiJ Sadariya 30.00 g

(D) There are no provisions for doubtul debts or amounts written off or written back in respect of debts due to or due from related parties.

(E) Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of information available with them and relied upon by the Auditors.
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Note: 40 Segment Reporting
The Company's Operations fall under a two segment "Automotive & Industrial Bearing Rings" & "Trading in commodities" . Hence, Segment reporting is
applicable as per Indian Accounting Standard (AS) - 108 Operating Segments.

Note: 41

1. Figures of previous reporting periods have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the figures of the current reporting
period.

2. The outstanding balance as on year end in respect of trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances and other payables, and other receivables, if
any, are subject to confirmation from respective parties and consequential reconciliation and/or adjustments arising there from, if any. Management of
the Company, however, does not expect any material variation.

3. According to the opinion of the management of the Company, the value of realization of trade and other receivables and loans and advances given in
the ordinary course of the business, if any, would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For H B Kalaria & Associates Sd/- Sd/-
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner

Membership No.: 042002

FRN : 104571W

Rajkot May 13,2025

Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director
DIN-00167254

Sd/-

Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

Sd/-

Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M

May13,2025
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1. General Information
Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited (‘the Company') incorporated in India is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and trading activity of Agricultural Equipments and Bearings (Forged Rings) and
job-work services. The Company has its wide network of operations in local markets.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to
sell;
3) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

(iii) Current non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company's normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the
Schedule 11l to the Act.

(iv) Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to
the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

(b) Use of estimates and judgments

(c)

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known
materialized.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or
that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at
the reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company has applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying
cost on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS. Hence
regarded thereafter as historical cost.
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Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments is provided on Written Down Value Method,
over the estimated useful lives of assets. The Company depreciates its Property, plant and
equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act, and
management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule Il to
the Act.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

In case of pre-owned assets, the useful life is estimated on a case to case basis.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Investment properties
Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held either to
earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but neither for sale in the ordinary
course of business nor used in production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Investment properties are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on building is provided over it’s useful life using the written down value method.

(e) Intangible assets

Computer software
Computer software is stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairments, if
any.

Amortization method and useful life
The Company amortizes computer software using the written down value method over the
period of 5 years.

(f) Lease
Operating Lease

As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Company, as lessee, are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost
increases.
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As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lesser is recognized in income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the excepted inflationary cost
increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature.

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, bank over, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

(h) Trade receivables

(i)

()

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, less provision for impairment, if any.

Inventories

Inventories of Raw Materials, Stores and spares and Finished Goods are stated 'at cost or
net realizable value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprise all cost of purchase, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost formulae used is 'First-in-First-out'. Due allowance is estimated and made for
defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary.

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are recognized at cost as per Ind AS
27. Except where investments accounted for at cost shall be accounted for in accordance with
Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, when they are
classified as held for sale.

(k) Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(1) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and
(2) those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The
Company classifies its debt instruments into following categories:
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()

(1) Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.

(2) Fair value through profit and loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized
cost are measured at fair value through Profit and Loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments:

The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates at fair value through profit and loss. However where the Company's
management makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition to present fair value gains
and losses on specific equity investments in other comprehensive income (Currently no
such choice made), there is no subsequent reclassification, on sale or otherwise, of fair
value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity
operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

(iv) Income recognition
Interest income
Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate
method.

Dividends
Dividends are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to
receive payment is established.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipments (PPE) and intangible assets (IA) that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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(m)Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale.
Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a Disposal Company classified as
held for sale continue to be recognized.

(n) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks are initially recognized at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when they
arise.

(o) Segment Reporting:
Geographical segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker.

(p) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date are classified as
liabilities. The dividend on these preference shares is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss as finance costs.

(q) Borrowing costs

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalized. Other
interest and borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past
events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any
present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts
disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances,
rebates, discounts, loyalty discount, value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Company's activities as described below.

Sale of goods

Sales are recognized when substantial risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to
customer, In case of domestic customer, generally sales take place when goods are
dispatched or delivery is handed over to transporter, in case of export customers, generally
sales take place when goods are shipped onboard based on bill of lading.

Sales Return
The Company recognizes provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured
on net basis of the margin of the sale.

Revenue from services
Revenue from services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

Other operating revenue
Interest on investments and deposits is booked on a time-proportion basis taking into

account the amounts invested and the rate of interest.

Revenue in respect of other types of income is recognised when no significant uncertainty
exists regarding realisation of such income.

Other operating revenue - Export incentives
"Export Incentives under various schemes are accounted in the year of export.

F-39



Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements (2024-25)

(t) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

@
(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave that are not expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period
using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the
Government Securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and

Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Defined Contribution Plans

Defined Contribution Plans such as Provident Fund etc., are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss as incurred. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if
any.
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company
before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefits at the
earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the Company recognizes costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the
case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to
present value.

(u) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company's
functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on the
transaction dates. Realized gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency
transactions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the
year-end exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(v) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the
financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted
to apply when the related deferred income tax assets is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses, only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively
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(w) Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

A diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings
per share to take into account:

-the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

-the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(x) Government Grants
Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Profit and Loss on a straight -
line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other income.

(y) Manufacturing and Operating Expenses
The Company classifies separately manufacturing and operating expenses which are directly
linked to manufacturing and service activities of the group.

Amendments to Ind AS 7, 'Statement of cash flows' on disclosure initiative:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 introduces an additional disclosure that will enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. This
includes changes arising from cash flows (e.g. draw downs and repayments of borrowings) and
non-cash changes (i.e. changes in fair values), Changes resulting from acquisitions and
disposals and effect of foreign exchange differences. Changes in financial assets must be
included in this disclosure if the cash flows were, or will be, included in cash flows from
financing activities. This could be the case, for example, for assets that hedge liabilities arising
from financing liabilities. The Company has currently assessed the potential impact of this
amendment.

F-42



Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements (2024-25)

(z) Critical estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which by
definition will seldom equal the actual results. Management also need to exercise judgment
in applying the Group's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, and items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgment are:

Estimation of Defined benefit obligation
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Galaxy Agrico Exports Ltd
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Galaxy Agrico Exports Ltd (“the
Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss, and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and
loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our
report.

Emphasis of Matter

The Company's management is responsible for carrying out the inspection of its fixed assets on
a regular basis. We have not independently verified the fixed assets of the Company during
the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of the fixed assets as appearing
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in the balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on the loss and net assets of the
Company for the period and year ended March 31, 2024.

The Company's management is responsible for carrying out the inspection of its inventories on
a regular basis. We have not independently verified the inventories of the Company during
the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of inventories as appearing in the
balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on the loss and net assets of the Company
for the period and year ended March 31, 2024.

We draw your attention to Note 42 to the financial statements where the Company’s
management has stated that outstanding balances, if any, at the yearend in respect of trade
receivables, trade payables etc. are subject to confirmation from those respective parties
and consequential reconciliation and/or adjustments arising there from. These have not
been independently verified by us during the year under review. Any adjustment to the
value of such balances as appearing in the balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on
the loss and net assets of the Company for the period and year ended March 31, 2024.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
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implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
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exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books .

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

1. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

2. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
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lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

3. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e), as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has not paid any dividends during the year and hence, the
provisions of Section 123 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

f. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

Place: Rajkot For,
HB Kalaria and Associates
Date: 02/05/2024 Firm Reg. No. 104571W
Chartered Accountants
SD/-

Hasmukh Kalaria

Partner

Mem. No. 042002

UDIN: 24042002BKBLUZ9954
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Annexure A

Referred to in the section Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements on of the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Galaxy Agrico Exports Ltd on the
financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i)
(a) Inrespect of its property, plant, and equipment:
(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and investment
property.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its intangible
assets.

(b) The Company does not have a phased programme of verification of property, plant and
equipment to cover all the items in a phased manner. The Company’s Management has not
physically verified all the property, plant and equipment of the Company during the current
reporting period. Hence, we are unable to comment on whether any material discrepancies
were noticed during the current reporting period.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us
and based on the examination of the registered sale deed/transfer deed/conveyance deed,
we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and acquired
buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet
date. Further, based on examination of Letter of intent, independent architect certificate, the
purchase agreements executed by the Company and deeds of transfer, we report that, the
investment property in the nature of shops is held in name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
during the reporting period and hence, clause (i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) Asexplainedto us by the management of the Company, there have not been any proceedings
initiated or pending against the Company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder during the current reporting period or as
at the balance sheet date.

(ii)

(@) We have not been provided with the records of inventory verification done by the
management of the company during the reporting period. Hence, we are unable to comment
on whether there were any material discrepancies noticed by the management and whether
the same have been dealt with in the books of accounts of the Company during the reporting
period.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crores rupees, in aggregate,
from banks or financial institutions and hence, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made investments
in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties,
hence clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any loans, investments or provided any guarantees and hence, the provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits during the current reporting period in terms of provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. Hence,
reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the provisions for maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of

statutory dues:

(@) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues to the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in arrears as at the balance sheet date for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable

(b) The Company does not have any statutory dues as referred sub-clause (a) above which have
not been deposited on account of disputes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
transactions, which were not recorded in the books of accounts and which have been surrendered

or disclosed as income during the current reporting period in the tax assessments under the
Income-tax Act, 1961.

(@) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions or banks.
The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from the government.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender during the reporting period.

(C) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not obtained any term loans during the current reporting period and hence, reporting
under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures pertformed by
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we believe

that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company. We have however not made a detailed examination of the same.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(e)

(f)

(a)

(b)

(a)

The Company does not have any associate, subsidiary or joint venture and hence, clause
(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have any associate, subsidiary or joint venture and hence, clause
(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

During the current reporting period, the Company has not raised funds by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and hence reporting under
clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the current reporting period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the current reporting period.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the current reporting
period.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a)

(b)

In our opinion and based on our examination, though the company is required to have an
internal audit system under section 138 of the Act, it does not have the same established for
the year:

We were unable to obtain any of the internal audit reports of the company, hence the
internal audit reports have not been considered by us.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the current
reporting period the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company, if any or persons connected with them
and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(a)

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,
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(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the current reporting period and hence, is not required to obtain a Certificate of
Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) The Company does not have any Group companies and hence, clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvii)  In our opinion, the Company has incurred cash losses which are disclosed as follows:
Period Amount of cash losses (in Rs. lacs)

Current reporting period 18.87

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the current reporting period
under review.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company and hence
clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable.

(xxi)  Clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in the report on the standalone financial statements of
the Company.

Place: Rajkot For,
HB Kalaria and Associates
Date: 02/05/2024 Firm Reg. No. 104571W
Chartered Accountants
SD/-

Hasmukh Kalaria

Partner

Mem. No. 042002

UDIN: 24042002BKBLUZ9954
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Annexure B

Referred to in point g. of the section Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Galaxy Agrico
Exports Ltd on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Act

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over the
financial reporting of Galaxy Agrico Exports Ltd (“the Company”) as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect of financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weakness(es) have been identified as at March 31, 2024:

a. The Company did not have appropriate internal controls for reconciliation of
physically inventory with the inventory records, which can result in misstatement of
inventory values in the books of account.

b. The Company does not have an internal process to report deficiencies in internal
control to management on a timely basis.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
financial control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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We have considered the material weakness(es) identified and reported above in
determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the
March 31, 2024 financial statements of the Company, and these material weakness(es) does
not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Place: Rajkot For,
HB Kalaria and Associates
Date: 02/05/2024 Firm Reg. No. 104571W
Chartered Accountants
SD/-

Hasmukh Kalaria

Partner

Mem. No. 042002

UDIN: 24042002BKBLUZ9954
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

(Rs. In lacs)
Note As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
No.
I ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant & equipment 3 235.63 285.23
(b) Investment Properties 4 81.57 82.04
(c) Intangible Assets
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 0.24 0.24
(ii) Loans, Advances & Others 6 76.44 3.06
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 19 21.18 7.41
[Total Non-Current Assets 415.06 377.99
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 49.35 37.96
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 8 0 6.24
(i) Trade Receivables 9 35.41 71.68
(iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 4.12 9.98
(iv) Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivelants 11 19.85 18.77
(v) Loans & Advances 12 4.24 3.98
(vi) Other Financial Assets 13 9.12 20.44
(c) Other Current Assets 14 92.60 98.20
|Tota| Current Assets 214.70 267.26
TOTAL ASSETS 629.76 645.24
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 15 391.36 391.36
Other Equity 16 465.13 257.94
[Total Equity 856.49 649.30
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Long-Term Borrowings 17 98.39 57.27
(i) Trade Payable - -
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities - -
(b) Long term Provisions 18 8.12 11.41
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilites (Net) 19
| Sub-Total (Non-Current Liabilities) 106.51 68.68
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Short-term Borrowings 20 64.85 48.34
(i) Trade Payables 21 4.70 14.91
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 22 22.14 30.84
(b) Other Current Liabilities 23 8.29 9.81
(c) Short term Provisions 24 10.28 9.27
I Sub-Total (Current Liabilities) 110.27 113.15
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,073.27 831.13
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes

As per our Report of even date
For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

SD/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner

Membership No.: 042002
FRN : 104571W

Rajkot, May 02, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SD/-
Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director

DIN-00167254

SD/-
Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

SD/-
Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

SD/-
Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M

May 2, 2024
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(Rs. In lacs)
St Note For the year For the year
Particulars No. ended March 31, ended March 31,
No
2023
I. |Revenue from Operations 25 732.40 571.22
Il. |Other Income 26 15.33 44.42
lll. |Total Income (I + 11) 747.73 615.64
IV. |Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 27 - 9.64
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - -
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-trade 28 (18.75) 9.38
Employee Benefits Expense 29 185.12 12.74
Finance Costs 30 8.49 6.61
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 52.34 56.70
Other Expenses 31 334.11 387.74
Total Expenses 561.31 482.81
V. [Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (l11-IV) 186.42 132.83
VI. |Exceptional Items - -
VII. | Profit/(Loss) after exceptional items and before tax (V - VI) 186.42 132.83
VIIl.|Tax expense: 32
(1) Current Tax - -
(2) Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) (15.61) (12.14)
(3) Prior Period Tax 0.34 0.26
IX. |Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations (VII-VII) 201.70 144.71
X. |Profit/(loss) for the Period (IX+XIl) 201.70 144.71
Xl. |Other Comprehensive Income 33
A. (i) Items that will not be Reclassifled to Proflt or Loss 7.34 14.64
(i) Income-tax relating to Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss (1.85) (3.69)
XIl. [ Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising Profit/(Loss)
. . 207.19 155.67
and Other comprehensive Income for the period)
Paid-up Equity Share Capital (weighted Average) (face value Rs. 10 each) 273.16 273.16
XIll [Earnings per equity share : 34
(1) Basic 7.38 5.30
(2) Diluted 7.38 5.30
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes
As per our Report of even date
For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

SD/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner

Membership No.: 042002
FRN : 104571W

Rajkot, May 02, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SD/-
Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director

DIN-00167254

SD/-
Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

Sb/-
Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

SD/-
Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2024

SD/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner

Membership No.: 042002
FRN : 104571W

Rajkot, May 02, 2024

Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director
DIN-00167254

SD/-
Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

(Rs. In lacs)
A |Equity Share Capital Amount
Balance as at 31st March 2022 391.36
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 391.36
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 391.36
B |Other Equity
particulars Reserves and Suplus
General Reserves Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 1st April 2022 2.50 99.77 102.27
Profit for the year - 144.71 144.71
Other Comprehensive Income - 10.96 10.96
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 155.67 155.67
Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 2.50 255.44 257.94
. Reserves and Suplus
Particulars " n
General Reserve Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 1st April 2023 2.50 255.44 257.94
Profit for the year - 201.70 201.70
Other Comprehensive Income - 5.49 5.49
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 207.19 207.19
Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 2.50 462.63 465.13
As per our Report of even date Fora
For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants SD/- SD/-

Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

SD/-
Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M

May 2, 2024

F-59



Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
A. |Cash Flow from Operating Activity
Net Profit Before Tax 186.42 132.83
Adjustments For:
Depreciation 52.34 56.70
Interest & Financial Expenses 8.49 6.61
Provision to gratuity fund 5.06 4.00
(Profit)/Loss on Investments (2.47) 7.22
(Gain)/Loss on Sales of Assets (0.13) (4.45)
Dividend Income - (1.94)
Gain on Sale of Plot (3.80) -
Interest Received on Deposits (1.20) (1.13)
Gain on sale of current investments - (36.74)
Employee Loan Written Off 0.94 0.00
Creditors w/back (1.07) -
58.17 30.26
Operation profit before Working Capital Changes 244.59 163.09
Adjustment For:
Inventories (11.39) 8.88
Trade Receivables 36.27 (4.68)
Other Assets (57.66) (38.67)
Trade Payables & Other Liabilities and Provisions (17.83) (15.19)
Taxes Paid (0.34) (0.26)
(50.95) (49.92)
Net Cash Generated from Operations 193.64 113.17
B. [Cash Flow from Investment Activities
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipments 0.22 4.45
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments (2.71) (51.35)
Changes in capital creditors (1.51) (9.28)
Gain onsale of currentinvestments - 36.74
Purchase of investment proprties - (11.08)
Sale of Investment Properties 4.15 12.07
Purchase of Investments 8.71 31.85
Bank Balances not considered as Cash Equivelant (1.08) (1.02)
Dividend Income - 1.94
Interest Received 1.20 1.13
Net Cash Flow from Investment Activities 8.98 15.47
C. |Cash Flow from Financial Activities:
Changes in Long-term borrowings (net) 41.13 27.36
Changes in Short-term borrowings (net) 16.51 (7.82)
Interest & Financial Expenses (8.49) (6.61)
Net Cash Flow from Financial Activities 49.14 12.93
Total of Cash Flow (A+B+C) 251.77 141.57
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 9.98 54.29
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the ending of the year 261.75 195.86
Cash on Hand 0.66 0.34
Balances with Scheduled Banks 3.46 9.63
4.12 9.98
Note: 1. The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes
2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm this year's classification.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants SD/-
Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director
SD/- DIN-00167254
Hasmukh B Kalaria

Partner

Membership No.: 042002 SD/-

FRN:104571W Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Rajkot, May 02, 2024 Shapar (Veraval)

SD/-

Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

SD/-

Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M
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Note 3 :Property, Plant & Equipment

Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. In Lacs)
R . Plantand Electrical Furniture and Motor Office
Particulars Land Buildings ) . . A Computer K Total
Equipment Installations Fixtures Vehicles Equipments
Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 12.61 148.68 531.24 21.98 16.61 43.71 1.95 2.86 779.64
Additions - 1.03 11.09 - - 38.35 0.53 0.35 51.35
Disposals - - 10.07 - - 7.00 - - 17.07
Other Deduction 5.70 - - - - - - - 5.70
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 6.91 149.71 532.25 21.98 16.61 75.06 247 3.21 808.21
Additions - - 2.71 - - - - - 271
Disposals - - - - - 0.62 - - 0.62
Other Deduction - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 6.91 149.71 534.96 21.98 16.61 74.44 2.47 3.21 810.30
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 - 97.90 338.37 19.43 16.24 7.48 1.91 2.16 483.48
Depreciation - 4.92 36.73 0.66 0.09 13.50 0.23 0.43 56.57
Disposals - - 10.07 - - 7.00 - - 17.07
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 - 102.82 365.02 20.09 16.33 13.98 2.15 2.58 522.98
Depreciation - 4.47 30.78 0.49 0.07 15.92 0.21 0.29 52.22
Disposals - - - - - 0.53 - - 0.53
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 - 107.29 395.80 20.58 16.40 29.38 235 2.87 574.67
Net Carrying Amount
As at 1st April, 2022 12.61 50.79 192.87 2.56 0.37 36.23 0.03 0.71 296.16
As at 31st March, 2023 6.91 46.89 167.22 1.89 0.27 61.08 0.33 0.63 285.23
As at 31st March, 2024 6.91 42.42 139.16 1.40 0.20 45.07 0.12 0.35 235.63
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Note: 4 Investment properties

Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
Gross Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 86.06 83.09
Add: addition during the year 0 11.08
Add: Transfer from land 0 5.70
Less : deduction during the year 0.35 13.81
Gross Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 85.71 86.06
Less : Opening depreciation 4.02 3.89
Addition during the year 0.12 0.13
414 4.02
Net Carrying Amount at the end of the year 81.57 82.04
Note: 5 Non Current Investments
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars - :
nos of units Amount nos of units Amount
Investment in Equity Instruments:
(In fully paid shares)
Unquoted:
At Cost
Equity Sh f Rajkot N ik Sahakari
quity Shares of Rajkot Nagarik Sahakari 460.00 024 460.00 024
Bank Ltd of Rs. 50 each
Total 460.00 0.24 460.00 0.24
Note: 6 Other Non-Current Financial Assets
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits 76.44 3.06
76.44 3.06
Note: 7 Inventories
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
Raw Materials 11.37 11.37
Finished Goods 26.85 8.10
Stores and Spares 11.13 18.49
Total 49.35 37.96
. . As at 31st As at 31st
7.1 Details of Raw Materials March, 2024 March, 2023
Indigeneous:
Round bar (Steel) 11.37 11.37
Total 11.37331 11.37331
7.2 Details of Finished Goods As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Scrap 26.84543 8.09846
Total 26.84543 8.09846
Note: 8 Current Investments
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars - -
No. of units Amount No. of units Amount
Investment in Equity instruments: At fair
value through profit and loss account
(In fully paid shares)
Quoted:
GVK Power Ltd - - 28,400.00
Rites Ltd - - 500.00
Welspun Enterprise - - 700.00 0.58
Welspun Corp Ltd - - 1,500.00 177
3.01
Total - - 4.37 6.24
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Note: 9 Trade Receivables

(Rs.In Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2024

As at 31st
March, 2023

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date

they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good

Sub total

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they

are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 35.41 71.68
Total 35.41 71.68
Note: 9.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule
(Rs.In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
(Outstanding for the following periods from the date of
transaction)
Unsecured
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
Less than 6 months 35.41 71.68
6 months-1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
35.41 71.68
Total 35.41 71.68
Note: 10 Cash and Cash Equivelants
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
Balances with bank:-
In Current Account 3.46 9.63
Cash on hand 0.66 0.34
Total 4.12 9.98
Note: 11 Other Bank Balances
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
Bank Balances:-
Margin Money
Fixed Deposit Account (having maturity period within 12 months) 19.85 18.77
Total 19.85 18.77
Note: 12 Loans - Currents (Unsecured and Considered Good)
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
Loans to Employees 4.24 3.98
Total 4.24 3.98
Note: 13 Other Financial Assets-Current
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
Income accured but not received 9.12 20.44
Total 9.12 20.44
Note: 14 Other Current Assets
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
Statutory receivables 6.38 7.46
Balance with government authorities 0.00 0.14
Advances to suppliers 65.89 67.52
Advances for capital assets 20.00 20.00
Prepaid expenses 0.34 3.08
Total 92.60 98.20
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Note: 15 Equity Share Capital

" As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
Authorised
5,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 550.00 550.00
550.00 550.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
27,31,620 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 273.16 273.16
Add : Forfeited Equity Shares 118.20 118.20
Total 391.36 391.36
15.1 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:-
Particulars No. of Shares M‘:sr::'szl;;‘ No. of Shares Mzi:;_szlggz
Shares outstanding at beginning of the year 2,731,620 273.16 2,731,620 273.16
Shares outstanding at end of the year 2,731,620 273.16 2,731,620 273.16
Note: The Forfieted Equity Capital of Rs. 118.20 lacs represents 22,68,400 forfieted equity shares of Rs. 10 partly paid.
15.2 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
held held
Manoj H. Shah 149,600 5.48% 149,600 5.48%
Jayesh K. Patel - - 143,000 5.23%
Kantaben J. Patel 204,000 7.47% 204,000 7.47%
HemaliS. Patel 139,500 5.11% 139,500 5.11%
Jitendra H. Shah 189,910 6.95% 139,410 5.10%
15.3 Details of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:
As at 31st March, 2024 Asat 3Tst March, 2022
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares % of % change No. of Shares % of Holding % change
held Holding held
Kantaben Jayantilal Patel 2,04,000 7.47% 0.00% 2,04,000 7.47% 0.00%
Manoj Harsukhlal Shah 1,49,600 5.48% 0.00% 1,49,600 5.48% 0.00%
Jayesh Kishorbhai Patel 102,509 3.75% -1.48% 1,43,000 5.23% 0.00%
Hemali Sudhir Patel 1,39,500 5.11% 0.00% 1,39,500 5.11% 0.00%
Jitendra Harsukhlal Shah 189,910 6.95% 1.85% 1,39,410 5.10% 0.00%
Ashvin Harsukhlal Shah 1,22,750 4.49% 0.00% 1,22,750 4.49% 0.00%
Sanjay Jayantilal Patel 1,11,250 4.07% 0.00% 1,11,250 4.07% 0.00%
Malaben Rajnikant Sadaria 1,08,000 3.95% 0.00% 1,08,000 3.95% 0.00%
Gangji Jeram Sadariya 1,03,000 3.77% 0.00% 1,03,000 3.77% 0.00%
Ritaben Chandrakant Sadaria 89,000 3.26% 0.00% 89000 3.26% 0.00%
Suketa Sanjay Patel 84,750 3.10% 0.00% 84750 3.10% 0.00%
Nayanaben Ashwinkumar Shah 74,750 2.74% 0.00% 74750 2.74% 0.00%
Harshaben Manharbhai Sadaria 70,500 2.58% 0.00% 70500 2.58% 0.00%
Nathabhai Jerambhai Sadaria 65,010 2.38% 0.00% 65010 2.38% 0.00%
Sudhir Jayantilal Patel 60,500 2.21% 0.00% 60500 2.21% 0.00%
Tanuj Nanalal Kalavadia 57,000 2.09% 0.00% 57000 2.09% 0.00%
Paresh Nathabhai Sadaria 55,500 2.03% 0.00% 55500 2.03% 0.00%
Kalpanaben Jitendra Shah - 0.00% -1.85% 50500 1.85% 0.00%
Mausami Paresh Sadaria 44,500 1.63% 0.00% 44500 1.63% 0.00%
Nalini Manojkumar Shah 40,300 1.48% 0.00% 40300 1.48% 0.00%
Devkuvarben Nathabhai Sadaria 35,000 1.28% 0.00% 35000 1.28% 0.00%
Sadaria Manharkumar Nathalal 29,500 1.08% 0.00% 29500 1.08% 0.00%
Jitendra Harsukhlal Shah-Huf 10,100 0.37% 0.00% 10100 0.37% 0.00%
Manojkumar Harsukhlal Shah-Huf 10,100 0.37% 0.00% 10100 0.37% 0.00%
Jay Ashwinbhai Shah 2,500 0.09% 0.00% 0.00%

15.4 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividen

Note: 16 Other Equity

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023
a. General Reserve
Opening Balance 2.50 2.50
(+) Current Year Transfer - -
(-) Transfer to other Reserves - -
Balance as at year end 2.50 2.50
b. Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 255.44 99.77
(+) Net Profit for year 201.70 144.71
(+) Other Comprehensive Income for the year 5.49 10.96
Balance as at year end 462.63 255.44
Total 465.13 257.94
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Note: 17 Long Term Borrowings:

(Rs. In Lacs)
: As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2024 March, 2023
Secured
Vehicle loan from banks 3339 49.27
Unsecured
Loans from directors 65.00 8.00
Total 98.39 57.27
17.1 Terms of Repayment of Loans:
. . . . Rate of
Particulars(Name of financier) Nature of Security Terms of Repayment
Interest
Vehicle Loan from Banks (Axis Bank) Hypothecation o_fthe respective Repayablein 60 and 48 9.25% -9.50%
vehicle Monthly Instaliments
. Repayment schedule not .
Loans from Directors Unsecured specified 0.00%
Note: 18 Long term provisions
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March, 2024 | March, 2023
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity Provision 812 1141
Total 8.12 11.41
Note: 19 Deferred Tax Assets
(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st | Charge during As at 31st Charge during
Particulars
feu March, the year March, 2023 the year
Deferred Tax Liability on account of :
(1) Depreciation 1.74 (3.90) 5.64 (3.28)
174 (3.90) 5.64 (3.28)
Deferred Tax Assets on account of :
(1) Gratuity 4.63 0.57 (5.20) 2.68
(i) Unabsorbed Depreciation 16.70 (8.85) (7.85) (7.85)
(iii)Unrealised/Carried Forward Losses 1.59 (1.59) 0.00
22.92 (9.87) (13.05) (5.17)
(21.18) (13.77) (7.41) (8.46)
Note: 20 Short-term Borrowings- Current
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 1537 14.05
Secured
Cash Credit 49.47 34.29
(Cash credits from Bank against hypothecation of raw materials, stores, spare parts, finished
goods, work-in-porgress and receivables)
Total 64.85 48.34
Note: 21 Trade Payables
As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March, 2024 | March, 2023
Micro, Small and Medium Entreprises 3.44 -
Other than Micro, Small and Medium Entreprises
Sundry Creditors for goods 0.93 8.95
Sundry Creditors for services/expenses 0.34 5.95
[Total 470 14.91

*Note : Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 certain disclosure are required to be made for enterprise
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Note: 21.1 Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
(Outstanding for the following periods from the date of
transaction)
Undisputed trade payables - MSMEs
Less than 1 year 3.44 -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
3.44 -
Undisputed trade payables - other than MSMEs
Less than 1 year 1.27 13.86
1-2 years - 1.04
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
1.27 14.91
Total 4.70 14.91

21.2 The details of amounts outstanding to Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises based on available information with the co. is

asunder.

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Principal amount due and remaining unpaid at the year end 3.44 -

Interest due on above and remaining unpaid interest at the

Interest paid other than sec 16 beyond the appointed day during the year
Principal amount paid beyond the appointed day during the

Interest piad under sec 16 beyond appoint day during the year

Interest due and payable for payment already made

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years

1. The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties

have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

2. The Company recognises interest due on late payment to MSMEs on actual payment basis only. Consequently no

provision has been made for such interest due during the current reporting period.

3. The Company has not compiled the requisite data to determine the principal amounts paid to suppliers beyond the

appointed day during the current reporting period.

Note: 22 Other Financial Liabilities

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Accured Expenses Payable 6.18 9.13
Employee related liabilities 15.96 20.20
Captial Creditors 0.00 1.51
Total 22.14 30.84

22.1 There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31st March,2024

&2023.

Note: 23 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Statutory dues (including withholding taxes) 8.29 9.81
Total 8.29 9.81
Note: 24 Short Term Provisions
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity 10.28 9.27
Total 10.28 9.27
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Note: 25 Revenue from Operations

(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Sale of products 278.26 11.93
Sale of services 294.57 338.50
572.83 350.43
Less: Rate difference/discounts/credit notes/quality difference 161 -
571.23 350.43
Other Operating Revenue 161.17 220.78
Total 732.40 571.22
Note: 26 Other Income
(Rs. InLacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March | ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Interest on Financial Assets
On Bank Fixed Deposits 1.20 113
On Income Tax Refund 034 0.15
Dividend Income
From Non-Current Investments - 194
Other Gain and Losses
Gain on Sales Of Current Investments 6.06) 36.74
Profit on Revaluation of Investments 2.73 -
Creditors Written Back 1.07 -
Gain on sale of Plot 3.80 0.00
Net gain on disposal/discarding of ible assets 0.13] 445
Total 15.33 44.42
Note: 27 Cost of Materials Consumed
(Rs. InLacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March | ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Opening Inventory 11.37 9.51
Add : Purchase 0| 11.50
Less : Closing Inventory 11.37 11.37
Total - 9.64
Note: 27.1 Cost of Materials Consumed comprise of:- (Rs. InLacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March | ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Round Bar - 9.64
Total - 9.64
Note: 27.2 Imported & Indij - (Rs. In Lacs)
particul For the year For the year
artieuars ended March 31, 2024 ended March 31, 2023
Raw material consumed Value % Value %
Indigenous - 0.00% 9.64 100.00%
Total 0.00 100.00% 9.64 100.00%
Note: 28 Purchase of Stock in Trade
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Purchase (stock in trade)
Note: 29 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade
(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Inventories (at close):

Finished Goods 26.85 8.10
26.85 8.10

Inventories (at commencement):
Finished Goods 8.10 17.48
8.10 17.48
Total (18.75) 9.38
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Note: 30 Employee Benefits Expense

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars For the yearended For the yearended
Salaries and Wages 168.8556783
Contributions to:-
Provident Fund, Superannuation Scheme & Other Funds 15.16 11.48
Staff Welfare Expenses 110 126

Total 185.12 12.74
30.1Employee Benefits, the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standards are given below:-
Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan:

(Rs. InLacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March | ended March
31,2024 31,2023
[0 t Recognised in Bal Sheet
Present value of unfunded obligations 18.40 20.68
Present value of funded obligations - -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net Liability (asset) 18.40288; 20.68
(1) Amounts to be recognised in Profit and Loss Account
Service Cost:
Current service cost 417 4.38
Past Service Cost - -
Curtailment and settlement - -
Net interest cost 117 0.94
Total included in Exployees Expenses 5.34 5.32
Expenses deducted from the fund
Total Charged to profit and loss 5.34 5.32
(111) Other Comprehensive Income for the period
Components of acturial gain/loss on obligation
Due to change in financial assumption 0.07 164
Due to change in demographic assumption - -
Due to experience adjustments (7.41) 13.00
Return on planed assets excluding amounts included in interest income
A t d in other prehensive income -7.34] 14.64
(IV) Reconciliation of Defined benefit obligation
Opening Defined benefit obligation 20.68 31.31
Transfer in/(out) obligation - -
Current service cost 4.17 4.38
Interest cost 117 0.94
Components of acturial gain/loss on obligtion
Due to change in financial assumption 0.07 (1.64)
Due to change in demographic assumption - -
Due to experience adjustments (7.41) (13.00)
Past Service Cost - -
Loss/Gain on Curtailment - -
Liabilities Extinguished on settlement - -
Liabilities assumed in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase - -
Exchange deference of foreign plan - -
Benefits Paid (0.28) (1.31)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 18.40 20.68
(V) Assumptions:
Discount rate (per annum) 0.0715 7.30%
Rate of increase in Salary 0.07 7.00%
Withdrawal rate 0.25) 25.00%
Note: 31 Finance Cost
(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Interest expenses 840 6.61
On Other Borrowing and/or late payments 0.09 0.00
Total 849 6.61
Note: 32 Other Expenses
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Direct Expenses
Stores Consumed 79.43 92.93
Packing Material Consumed - 0.01
Transportation and Freight Expenses 0.95 197
Repairs to Buildings 1.59 6.86
Repairs to Machinery 829 10.72
Electricity, Power and Fuel 193.23 222.49
Factory and other expenses 5.16 6.70
Jobwork Charges 14.40 16.62
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Indirect Expenses

Bank Gurantee & Other Charges 2.20 239
Repairs to Others 116 043
Insurance Expenses 272 0.03
Telephone & Postage Expenses 038 032
Printing and Stationery 0.59 0.61
Rates and Taxes 0.55 -
Donation Expenses 0.64 051
Payments to Auditors 170 155
Information technology expenses 017 0.25
Payment to technical service 0.78 0.72
Advertisement and Publicity 0.46 0.52
Penalty Expense- BSE 0.10 -
Late fee 0.04 0.05
Listing Fees 337 312
Registration and filling fees 047 -
Professional & Consulting fees 237 2.00
ROC fees 001 0.02
Travelling and Conveyance 0.27 0.11
Vehicle Petrol & Repairs 453 7.78
Loss on Revaluation of Investments - 548
PGVCL Connection Charges 0.22 -
Loss on sale of Investment Properties - 174
Employee Loan Written Off 094 -
Loss in sale of current investment 6.32 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.07 1.83

Total 334.11] 387.74
32.1 Details of Stores Consumed

(Rs. InLacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March | ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Indigenous 79.43 92.93
Total 79.43 92.93
32.2 Payments to Auditors as:
(Rs. InLacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March | ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Statutory Auditors :
i) Audit Services 1.02 093
i) For Taxation matters 0.34] 0.31
iii) For Company Law matters 0.34f 031
Total 1.70 155

33 Income Tax

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March
31,2024 31,2023

Net Tax Expenses

Current tax 0.00| 0.00

Deferred tax liability/(assets) (15.61) (12.14)

Prior Period Tax 0.34 0.26
(15.28) (11.88)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting

profit computed by applying the Income tax rate

Profit/ (loss) before tax 186.42 132.83

India’s statutory income tax rate 0.25168 0.25168

Expected income tax expense as per applicable taxes 46.92 3343

Non-deductibles expenses 2.70 3.23

Prior Period Tax (0.34), (0.26),

Changes due to brought forward tax losses - -

Difference due to temporary differences 0.13] (1.18)

Others 0.15 (0.32),

Total 49.56 34.90
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Note: 34 Other Comprehensive Income

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

For the year
ended March 31, 2024

For the year
ended March 31, 2023

Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity Benefits as per Ind AS 19:-
(a) Items that will not be reclassifled to proflt or loss

Due to Change in financial assumptions (0.07) 1.64166

Due to Change in demographicassumptions - -

Btre-to-experience-aditstments F-A4% +3-66
Total 7.34 14.64

Note: 35 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Particulars

For the year
ended March 31, 2024

For the year
ended March 31, 2023

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss
attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In Lacs)

Weighted average number of shares considered for
calculating EPS (In Nos.)

Face Value per equity share (Rs.)
Basic Earnings per share (Rs.)
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.)

207.19

2,731,620

10.00
7.58
7.58

155.67

2,731,620

10.00
5.70
5.70
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Note: 36 Additional regulatory information
Note : 36.1 Details of benami propert(ies) held
The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

Note : 36.2 Security of current assets against borrowings

The Company is having borrowings in not excess of five crore rupees from banks or finanacial institutions against which security of current assets is given. Quarterly
returns and statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks and financial institutations are not available with the Company to verify it with the books of
accounts.

Note : 36.3 Details of wilful default

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution, in accordance with the guidance on wilful defaulters issued by Reserve
Bank of India.
Note : 36.4 Relationship with struck off companies

The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

Note : 36.5 Delay in registration/satisfication of charges with registrar of companies

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Note : 36.6 Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company does not have subsidiary company, hence the compliance regarding with the number of layers of Companies as prescribed under clause (87) of

Note:36.7 Analytical ratios

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, 2024 ended March 31, 2023 % change
Current ratio
Current assets (in Rs. lacs) (A) 214.70 267.26
Current liabilities (in Rs. lacs) (B) 110.27 113.15
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 195 236 -17.57%|
Debt-equity ratio
Total debt (in Rs. lacs) (A) 163.24 105.60
Shareholders' funds (in Rs. lacs) (B) 856.49 649.30
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 0.19) 0.16] 17.19%|
Debt service coverage ratio
Net profit/(loss) before tax (in Rs. lacs) 186.42 132.83
Add: Finance cost (in Rs. lacs) 8.49] 6.61
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expense (in Rs 52.34 56.70
Earnings available for debt services (in Rs. lacs) (A) 247.25 196.14
Interest expnese (in Rs. lacs) 8.49] 6.61
Principal repayment (in Rs. lacs) 14.55] 15.29
Debt service (in Rs. lacs) (B) 23.04 21.90
Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 1073 8.96] 19.82%|
Return on equity
Net profit/(loss) after tax (in Rs. lacs) (A) 201.70 144.71
Average shareholders' funds (in Rs. lacs) (B) 43.65 42.40
Ratio (%) = (A)/(B) 4.62| 341 35.38%
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Inventory turnover ratio

Cost of goods sold (in Rs. lacs) (A) 284.30 377.32

Average inventory (in Rs. lacs) (B) 43.65] 42.40

Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 651 8.90) -26.82%
Trade receivables turnover ratio

Revenue from operations (in Rs. lacs) (A) 732.40 571.22

Average trade receivables (in Rs. lacs) (B) 53.54] 69.34

Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 13.68 8.24| 66.04%
Trade payables turnover ratio

Total purchase (in Rs. lacs) (A) 72.07 103.08

Average trade payables (in Rs. lacs) (B) 9.81 15.01

Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 7.35| 6.87 7.04%
Net capital turnover ratio

Revenue from operations (in Rs. lacs) (A) 732.40 571.22

Current assets (in Rs. lacs) 214.70 267.26

Less: Current liabilities (in Rs. lacs) 110.27 113.15

Net working capital (in Rs. lacs) 104.43 154.11

Average net working capital (in Rs. lacs) (B) 129.27 145.15

Ratio (times) = (A)/(B) 5.67] 3.94] 43.97%)
Net profit ratio

Net profit/(loss) after tax (in Rs. lacs) (A) 201.70 144.71

Revenue from operations (in Rs. lacs) (B) 732.40 571.22

Ratio (%) = (A)/(B) 0.28] 0.25| 0.087086544
Return on capital employed

Net profit/(loss) before tax (in Rs. lacs) 186.42 132.83

Add: Finance cost (in Rs. lacs) 8.49] 6.61

Earning before interest and taxes (in Rs. lacs) (A) 194.91 139.44

Average capital employed (in Rs. lacs) (B) 840.49 625.55

Ratio (%) = (A)/(B) 0.23] 0.22] 4.04%|
Return on investment

Income earned on investments (in Rs. lacs) (A) 6.06 38.69

Average investments (in Rs. lacs) (B) 3.36 25.15]

Ratio (%) = (A)/(B) 1.80 154 17.16%|

Reason for change for more than 25%

1. Debt-equity ratio

Debt-equity ratio has increased on account of new loan received during the year by Company.

2. Debt service coverage ratio

Debt service coverage ratio has decreased on account of loss and principal repayment during the year by Company.

3. Return On Equity ratio

Return on equity ratio has decreased due to loss incurred by the Company.

4. Inventory turnover ratio

inventory Turnover ratio has increased due to increase in sales.

5.Trade receivables turnover ratio

Trade receivables turnover ratio has increased on account of faster receipts from debtors by the Company.

6. Trade payables turnover ratio

Trade payables turnover ratio has increased on account of faster payment to creditors by the Company.

7. Net capital turnover ratio

Net Capital Turnover ratio has increased on account of increase in turnover of current year as compared to that of previous year

8. Return on capital employed

Return on capital employed ratio has decreased on account of loss of the current year.
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Note: 37 Fair Value Measurements

Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value

(A) Financial instruments by category

Carrying amount Fair value
31-Mar-24 FVTPL FvTOCI Amortised Level 1 | Level 2 Level 3
Cost
[i] Financial assets
Investment in Equity instruments - - 0.24 - - -
Security deposit - - 76.44 - - -
Trade receivable - - 3541 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 412 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash - - 19.85 - - -
Loans - - 4.24 - - -
Other financial assets - - 9.12 - - -
- - 149.43 - - -
[ii] Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 163.24 - = -
Trade payables - - 470 - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 22.14 - - -
B B 190.09 - - -
Carrying amount Fair value
31-Mar-23 FVTPL FvTOCI Amortised Level 1 | Level 2 Level 3
Cost
[i] Financial assets
Investment in Equity instruments 6.24 - 0.24 6.24 - -
Security Deposit - - 3.06 - - -
Trade receivable - - 71.68 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 9.98 - - -
Bank Balances Other Than Cash and cash - - 18.77 - - -
Loans - - 398 - - -
Other financial assets - - 20.44 - - -
6.24 - 128.15 6.24 - -
[ii] Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 105.60 - - -
Trade payables - - 1491 - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 30.84 - - -
- - 151.35 - - -

(8) FAIR VALUE HEIRARCHY

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’'s length
transaction. The Company has made certain judgements and estimates in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company as classified the financial instruments into three
levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is as follows:

Level 1: Level 1 of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2: Level 2 heirarchy includes financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on the observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3 heirarchy.

(C) VALUATION TECHNIQUES
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include

- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis or such other acceptable valuation
methodology, wherever applicable

There are no items in the financial instruments, which required level 3 valuation.

Note: 38 Capital Management
The company policy is to have robust financial base so as to maintain outsider's confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as level of dividends to equity shareholders.The y itors capital
using a ratio of "adjusted net debt" to "equity". For this purpose, adj 1 net debt is defined as total liability, Comprising interest-bearing
loans and borrowing, less cash and cash equivalents. Total Equity includes the share capital, other equity.

The capital gearing ratio is as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Borrowings (Incl. Current Maturity) 163.24 105.60
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 412 9.98
Adjusted Net Debt (A) 167.37 115.58
Equity Share Capital 391.36 391.36
Other Equity 465.13 257.94
Total Equity (B) 856.49 649.30
Adjusted Net Debt to Total Equity ratio (A/B) 0.20 0.18
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Note: 39 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, viz liquidity risk, market risk and credit risk. The Management of the
Company has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk policy framework. The risk management policies are formulated after
the identification and analysis of the risks and suitable risk limits and controls are set which are monitored & reveiwed periodically. The changes in the market
conditions and allied areas are accordingly reflected in the changes of the policy. The key risks and mitigating actions are placed before the Audit Committee
of the Company who then evaluate and take the necessary corrective action. The sources of risk, which the Company is exposed to and how the Company
manages these risks with their impact on the Financial Statements is given below:

Risk Exposure from Measurement

Credit risk Trade receivables, Cash and cash Aging analysis, Credit limits and bank gaurantees
equivalents Credit ratings

Liquidity risk Borrowings, Trade payables and other Cash flow budgeted Availibity of commited credit lines and borrowing
liabilities Vs actuals facilities

Market risk - Interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable interest | Sensitivity analysis The management monitors the rates of interests and
rates continues to evaluate refinancing of debts at lower

rates of interest on a regular basis.

[A] Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if the counterparty fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). However, the credit risk on account of financing activities, i.e., balances with banks is very low,
since the Company holds all the balances with approved bankers only.

Trade receivables

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the customers outstanding balances to which the
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, as the Company’s
customer base is large, reputed and having good credit credential as well as that they are long standing customers. All trade receivables are reviewed
and assessed for default on a quarterly basis. Historical experience of collecting receivables of the Company is supported by low level of past default and

[B] Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Company faces in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity
is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, Management considers both
normal and stressed conditions.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The below table analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed
in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows, balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Particulars Carrying Upto 1 1-2year More than Total
amount year 2years

31-Mar-24

Non-derivatives

Borrowings (including interest accrued) 163.24 64.85 11.52 86.87 163.24
Trade payables 470 470 - - 470
Other financial liabilities 22.14 22.14 - - 22.14
Total 190.09 91.69 11.52 86.87 190.09
31-Mar-23

Non-derivatives

Borrowings (including interest accrued) 105.60 48.34 1455 42.72 105.60
Trade payables 1491 1491 - - 1491
Other financial liabilities 30.84 30.84 - - 30.84
Total 151.35 94.08 14.55 42.72 151.35

[C] Market risk

The Company’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments:
« Interest rate risk

The above risk may affect the Company’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of
fixed interest bearing financial assets or borrowings because of fluctuations in the interest rates, if such assets /borrowings are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing borrowings will flucutate because of fluctuations
in the interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company to change in interest rate at end of the reporting periods are as follows:

R 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Particulars Amount |% of total Amount (% of total
Variable rate borrowing 163.24 100.00%) 105.60 100.00%
Fixed rate borrowing - 0.00% - 0.00%
163.24 105.60

Sensitivity
Profit ans loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expenses from borrowing as a result of change in interset rate.

Impact on profit after tax

Particulars 31-Mar-24| 31-Mar-23
Interest rate increase by 100 basis points (2.99) (1.41)
Interest rate decrease by 100 basis points 2.99 141
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Note: 40 Related Party Transactions

(A) Name of related party and nature of relationship:-

Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

[ Name of related party

Description of relationship

|1. Key Management Personnel :
NathabhaiJ. Sadariya
Sanjay J. Patel

Manoj H. Shah
AjaybhaiR. Patel

Kiran B. Govani
Mausamiben P. Sadaria
Mansukhlal N. Govani
Jagdishbhai M. Shah
Jayantilal Kansagara
Utsavi Bhatia

Managing Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

CFO

Company Secretary

Wholetime Director
Wholetime Director

(B) Transactions with related party

Name of Related Party

Transaction Amount
For the year For the year
Name of Related Party ended March | ended March 31,
31,2024 2023

R ation to Key ial Personnel
Sanjay J. Patel 10.20! 10.72
Manoj H. Shah 10.20] 10.72
Bonus & Leave Encashment
Sanjay J. Patel 137 0.85
Manoj H. Shah 137 0.85
Loans accepted
Manoj H. Shah 38.00 35.00
Sanjay J. Patel 30.00
Loans Repaid
Manoj H. Shah 11.00! 27.00
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid
Manoj H. Shah 0.26 0.10
(C) Outstanding Balances with related party

Transaction Amount

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March 31,

31,2024 2023
Loans from Directors
Manoj H. Shah 35.00 8.00
Sanjay J. Patel 30.00 -
Remmuneration Payable To Director
Manoj H. Shah - (0.08)

(D) There are no provisions for doubtul debts or amounts written off or written back in respect of debts due to or due from related parties.

(E) Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of information available with them and relied upon by the Auditors.

Note: 41 Segment Reporting

The Company's Operations fall under a two segment "Automotive & Industrial Bearing Rings" & "Trading in commodities" . Hence, Segment reporting is
applicable as per Indian Accounting Standard (AS) - 108 Operating Segments.

Particulars External Inter-segment Total External Inter-segment| Total

Segment Revenue

Automotive & Industrial Bearing Rings 454.14] 0 454.14 571.22 0| 571.22
Trading in commodities 278.26 0 278.26 0 0| 0.00|
Less: Elimination of inter-segment revenue 0| 0| 0| 0| 0| 0.00|
Total Revenue 732.40 0| 732.40| 571.22| 0| 571.22
Segment Result

Automotive & Industrial Bearing Rings -88.13| 0| -88.13| -97.48| 0| -97.48
Trading in commodities 20.64 0| 20.64| 0| 0| 0.00
Total Segment Result -67.49) 0| (67.49), -97.48| 0) -97.48
Add:Unallocated corporate income 15.33] 0| 15.33] 44.42 0| 44.42
Less: Unallocated corporate expense 19.04] 0| 19.04 0| 0| 0f
Profit/(Loss) before interest and tax -71.21 0| (71.21), -53.06 0| -53.06
Profit/(Loss) before tax -71.21] 0| (71.21), -53.06 0| -53.06!
Provision for current tax 0.34| 0| 0.34/ 0.26 0| 0.26
Provision for deferred tax -15.61| 0| (15.61)| -12.14 0| -12.14
Profit after tax -55.93| 0| -55.92616718| -41.17681611] 0| -41.17681611
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

S Assets and Liabilities

As at March 31,2024 As at March 31,2023

Particulars Assets Liabilities Liabi

(in Rs. Lacs) (in Rs. Lacs) Assets (in Rs. | lities (in Rs. Lacs)
Automotive & Industrial Bearing Rings 629.76 216.78 645.24 181.83
Trading in commodities 0| 0| 0) 0)
Unallocable Corporate Assets/Liabilities 0| 0| 0) 0
Total 629.76 216.78 645.24 181.83
Note: 42

1. Figures of previous reporting periods have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the figures of the current reporting

2. The outstanding balance as on year end in respect of trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances and other payables, and other receivables, if
any, are subject to confirmation from respective parties and consequential reconciliation and/or adjustments arising there from, if any. Management of

the Company, however, does not expect any material variation.

3. According to the opinion of the management of the Company, the value of realization of trade and other receivables and loans and advances given in
the ordinary course of the business, if any, would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet.

As per our Report of even date
For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

SD/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner

Membership No.: 042002
FRN :104571W

Rajkot, May 02, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SD/-

Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

SD/-
Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

SD/-

Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

SD/-

Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Galaxy Agrico Exports
Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Cash Flows
and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its
loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our
report except as stated in Emphasis of Matter below.
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Emphasis of Matter

The Company's management is responsible for carrying out the inspection of its fixed assets on
a regular basis. We have not independently verified the fixed assets of the Company during
the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of the fixed assets as appearing in the
balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on the loss and net assets of the Company
for the period and year ended March 31, 2023.

The Company's management is responsible for carrying out the inspection of its inventories on
a regular basis. We have not independently verified the inventories of the Company during
the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of inventories as appearing in the
balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on the loss and net assets of the Company
for the period and year ended March 31, 2023.

The Company’s management is responsible for carrying out the balance confirmation and
reconciliations with various debtors, creditors and advances. These have not been
independently verified by us during the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of such
balances as appearing in the balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on the loss and
net assets of the Company for the period and year ended March 31, 2023.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
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Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
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a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B”.

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

1. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
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persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

2. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (1) and (2)
above, contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has not paid any dividends during the year and hence, the
provisions of Section 123 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

Place: Rajkot For,

Date: 26/05/2023 HB Kalaria and Associates
Firm Reg. No. 104571W
Chartered Accountants

SD/-

(Hasmukh Kalaria)

Partner

Mem. No. 042002

UDIN: 23042002BGVKEU8964
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Annexure A

Referred to in the section Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements on of the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited on
the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(i)
(a) Inrespect of its property, plant, and equipment:
(A) The Company has not maintained records of its property, plant and
equipment and investment property.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and hence, is not
required to maintain records for the same.

(b) The Company does not have a phased programme of verification of property, plant
and equipment to cover all the items in a phased manner. The Company’s
Management has physically verified all the property, plant and equipment of the
Company during the current reporting period. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined
by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed/transfer
deed/conveyance deed, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable
properties of land and acquired buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of
the Company as at the balance sheet date. Further, based on examination of Letter
of intent, independent architect certificate, the purchase agreements executed by
the Company and deeds of transfer, we report that, the investment property in the
nature of land development rights is held in name of the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the
reporting period and hence, clause (i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) As explained to us by the management of the Company, there have not been any
proceedings initiated or pending against the Company under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder during the current
reporting period or as at the balance sheet date.

(ii) (a) We have not been provided with the records ot inventory veritication done by the
management of the company during the reporting period. Hence, we are unable to
comment on whether there were any material discrepancies noticed by the
management and whether the same have been dealt with in the books of accounts
of the Company during the reporting period.
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(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crores
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions and hence, reporting under
clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties, hence clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not made any loans, investments or provided any guarantees and hence, the provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits during the current reporting period in terms of provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. Hence,
reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) In our opinion, the provisions for maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of
the Order is not applicable.

(vii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of
statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in arrears as at the balance sheet date
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) The Company does not have any statutory dues as referred sub-clause (a) above
which have not been deposited on account of disputes.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
transactions, which were not recorded in the books of accounts and which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the current reporting period in the tax assessments
under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions or banks. The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from the
government.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender during the reporting period.
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(c) The Company has obtained term loans during the current reporting period which, in
our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, have
been utilized for their stated purpose(s).

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we believe that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company. We have however not made a detailed
examination of the same.

(e) The Company does not have any associate, subsidiary or joint venture and hence,
clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company does not have any associate, subsidiary or joint venture and hence,
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a) During the current reporting period, the Company has not raised funds by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and hence
reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the current reporting period, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the current reporting period.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the
current reporting period.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)
(a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.
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(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under review
during our audit of the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
current reporting period the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company, if any or persons
connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1 of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the current reporting period and hence, is not required to obtain a
Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of

India Act,
1934,
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) as defined in the regulations

made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) The Company does not have any Group companies and hence, clause (xvi)(d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii)  In our opinion, the Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current reporting
period and in the immediately preceding reporting period.
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(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the current reporting
period under review.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our opinion section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 Is not applicable to the Company and

hence clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable.

(xxi)  Clause (xxi) of the CARO, 2020 is not applicable in the report on the standalone financial
statements of the Company.

Place: Rajkot For,

Date: 26/05/2023 HB Kalaria and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 104571W

SD/-
(Hasmukh Kalaria)
Partner
Mem. No. 042002
UDIN: 23042002BGVKEU8964
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Annexure B

Referred to in point f. of the section Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Galaxy Agrico
Exports Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Act
In conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over
the financial reporting of Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited (“the Company”) as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect of Ind AS financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weakness(es) have been identified as at March 31, 2023:
a. The Company has not carried out an inspection of its fixed assets and has not
maintained a register of fixed assets during the year under review.
b. The Company has not carried out an inspection of its inventories during the year
under review.

c. The Company does not have an internal process to report deficiencies in internal
control to management on a timely basis.
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A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
financial control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim Ind AS financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

We have considered the material weakness(es) identified and reported above in
determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the
March 31, 2023 Ind AS financial statements of the Company, and these material
weakness(es) do not affect our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company.

Place: Rajkot For,

Date: 26/05/2023 HB Kalaria and Associates
Firm Reg. No. 104571W
Chartered Accountants

SD/-
(Hasmukh Kalaria)
Partner
Mem. No. 042002
UDIN:
23042002BGVKEU8964
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements (2022-23)

1. General Information
Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited ('the Company') incorporated in India is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and trading activity of Agricultural Equipments and Bearings (Forged Rings) and job-
work services. The Company has its wide network of operations in local markets.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:
1) certainfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to
sell;

3) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;

(iii) Current non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the

Company's normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the
Schedule 11l to the Act.

(iv)  Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to
the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.

(b) Use of estimates and judgments

(c)

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results
and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known materialized.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or
that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at
the reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company has applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying
cost on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS. Hence regarded
thereafter as historical cost.
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Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments is provided on Written Down Value Method,
over the estimated useful lives of assets. The Company depreciates its Property, plant and
equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act, and
management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule Il to
the Act.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

In case of pre-owned assets, the useful life is estimated on a case to case basis.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Investment properties
Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held either to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but neither for sale in the ordinary course of
business nor used in production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment properties are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation on building is provided over it’s useful life using the written down value method.

(e) Intangible assets

Computer software
Computer software is stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairments, if
any.

Amortization method and useful life
The Company amortizes computer software using the straight-line method over the period of
5 years.

(f) Lease
Operating Lease

As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred
to the Company, as lessee, are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost increases.
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(8)

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lesser is recognized in income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the excepted inflationary cost
increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, bank over, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

(h) Trade receivables

(i)

(i)

(k)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, less provision for impairment, if any.

Inventories

Inventories of Raw Materials, Stores and spares and Finished Goods are stated 'at cost or net
realizable value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprise all cost of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost formulae used is 'First-in-First-out'. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective
and obsolete items, wherever necessary.

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are recognized at cost as per Ind AS
27. Except where investments accounted for at cost shall be accounted for in accordance with
Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, when they are
classified as held for sale.

Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(1) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and
(2) those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company
classifies its debt instruments into following categories:
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()

(1) Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.

(2) Fair value through profit and loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized
cost are measured at fair value through Profit and Loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments:

The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates at fair value through profit and loss. However where the Company's
management makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition to present fair value gains
and losses on specific equity investments in other comprehensive income (Currently no
such choice made), there is no subsequent reclassification, on sale or otherwise, of fair
value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity
operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

(iv) Income recognition
Interest income
Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate
method.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to
receive payment is established.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipments (PPE) and intangible assets (IA) that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairmentloss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.
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(m)Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale.
Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a Disposal Company classified as
held for sale continue to be recognized.

(n) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks are initially recognized at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when they
arise.

(o) Segment Reporting:
Geographical segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker.

(p) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at
mortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date are classified as
liabilities. The dividend on these preference shares is recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss as finance costs.

(q) Borrowing costs

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalized. Other
interest and borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past
events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any
present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts
disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates,
discounts, loyalty discount, value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Company's activities as described below.

Sale of goods

Sales are recognized when substantial risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to
customer, In case of domestic customer, generally sales take place when goods are dispatched
or delivery is handed over to transporter, in case of export customers, generally sales take
place when goods are shipped onboard based on bill of lading.

Sales Return
The Company recognizes provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured
on net basis of the margin of the sale.

Revenue from services
Revenue from services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.

Other operating revenue
Interest on investments and deposits is booked on a time-proportion basis taking into account

the amounts invested and the rate of interest.

Revenue in respect of other types of income is recognized when no significant uncertainty
exists regarding realization of such income.

Other operating revenue - Export incentives
"Export Incentives under various schemes are accounted in the year of export.
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(t) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(@)
(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave that are not expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period
using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the Government
Securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and

Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensiveincome. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes
in equity and in the balance sheet.

Defined Contribution Plans

Defined Contribution Plans such as Provident Fund etc., are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss as incurred. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if
any.
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Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before
the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the Company recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of Ind AS 37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

(u) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company's
functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on the
transaction dates. Realized gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-
end exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(v) Income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial
statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply
when the related deferred income tax assets is realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses, only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively
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(w) Earnings Per Share

(x)

(v)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

A diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings
per share to take into account:

-the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

-the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Profit and Loss on a straight - line
basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other income.

Manufacturing and Operating Expenses
The Company classifies separately manufacturing and operating expenses which are
directly linked to manufacturing and service activities of the group.

Amendments to Ind AS 7, 'Statement of cash flows' on disclosure initiative:

The amendment to Ind AS 7 introduces an additional disclosure that will enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. This
includes changes arising from cash flows (e.g. draw downs and repayments of borrowings) and
non-cash changes (i.e. changes in fair values), Changes resulting from acquisitions and
disposals and effect of foreign exchange differences. Changes in financial assets must be
included in this disclosure if the cash flows were, or will be, included in cash flows from
financing activities. This could be the case, for example, for assets that hedge liabilities arising
from financing liabilities. The Company has currently assessed the potential impact of this
amendment.
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(z) Critical estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which by
definition will seldom equal the actual results. Management also need to exercise judgment
in applying the Group's accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, and items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgment are:

Estimation of Defined benefit obligation
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(Rs. In lacs)
) Note As at 31st March, | Asat31st March,
Particulars No. 2022
1. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant & equipment 3 285.23 296.16
(b) Investment Properties 4 82.04 79.20
(c) Intangible Assets -
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 0.24 0.24
(i) Loans, Advances & Others 6 3.06 21.33
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 19 7.41 -
[Total Non-Current Assets 377.99 396.94
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 37.96 46.84]
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 8 6.24 43.57
(i) Trade Receivables 9 71.68 67.00
(iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 9.98 54.29
(iv) Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivelants 11 18.77 17.75
(v) Loans & Advances 12 3.98 5.38
(vi) Other Financial Assets 13 20.44 15.54
(c) Other Current Assets 14 98.20 44.77|
[Total Current Assets 267.26 295.13
TOTAL ASSETS 645.24 692.07
. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 15 391.36 391.36
Other Equity 16 72.05 102.27
| Total Equity 463.41 493.63
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Long-Term Borrowings 17 57.27 29.91
(i) Trade Payable - -
(iiif) Other Financial Liabilities - -
(b) Long term Provisions 18 11.41 8.54
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilites (Net) 19 1.04
| Sub-Total (Non-Current Liabilities) 68.68 39.49
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Short-term Borrowings 20 48.34 56.16
(i) Trade Payables 21 14.91 15.11
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 22 30.84 40.08
(b) Other Current Liabilities 23 9.81 24.82
(c) Short term Provisions 24 9.27 22.78
| Sub-Total (Current Liabilities) 113.15 158.94
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 645.24 692.07
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes

As per our Report of even date
For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

SD/-
Hasmukh B Kalaria

Partner
Membership No.: 042002

FRN: 104571W

Rajkot, May 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SD/-
Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director

N-00167254

SD/-
Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

SD/-
Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

SD/-
Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M

May 26, 2023
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Rs. In lacs)
s Note For the year For the year
Particulars No. | ended March31, | ended March31,
No
2022
l. |Revenue from Operations 25 571.22 690.05
Il. |OtherIncome 26 44.42 33.58
ll. |Total Income (I + 11) 615.64 723.63
IV. |Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 27 9.64 6.61
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - -
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-trade 28 9.38 4.36
Employee Benefits Expense 29 198.62 192.86
Finance Costs 30 6.61 0.82
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 56.70 40.05
Other Expenses 31 387.74 406.01
Total Expenses 668.69 650.71
V. | Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (lII-1V) (53.06) 72.92
VI. |Exceptional Items - -
VII. | Profit/(Loss) after exceptional items and before tax (V - VI) (53.06) 72.92
VIIl. [ Tax expense: 32
(1) Current Tax - 7.47
(2) Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) (12.14) 2.93
(3) Prior Period Tax 0.26 B
IX. | Profit/(Loss) for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIII) (41.18) 62.52
X. [Profit/(loss) for the Period (IX+XIl) (41.18) 62.52
XI. |Other Comprehensive Income 33
A. (i) Items that will not be Reclassifled to Proflt or Loss 14.64 (6.30)
(ii) Income-tax relating to Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss (3.69) 1.59
XIl. | Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIlII+XI1V) (Comprising Profit/(Loss)
. . (30.22) 57.81
and Other comprehensive Income for the period)
Paid-up Equity Share Capital (weighted Average) (face value Rs. 10 each) 273.16 273.16
XIll | Earnings per equity share : 34
(1) Basic (1.51) 2.29
(2) Diluted (1.51) 2.29
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes

As per our Report of even date
For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

SD/-

Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner

Membership No.: 042002
FRN : 104571W

Rajkot, May 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SD/-
Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director

-00167254

SD/-
Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

SD/-
Manojbhai Shah

Whole Time Director

DIN-02173383

SD/-

Jayantilal Kansagara

Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M

May 26, 2023
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Rs. In lacs)
A |Equity Share Capital Amount
Balance as at 31st March 2021 391.36
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 391.36
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 391.36
B |Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Suplus
General Reserves Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 1st April 2021 2.50 41.96 44.46
Profit for the year - 62.52 62.52
Other Comprehensive Income - (4.72) (4.72)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 57.81 57.81
Transfer to General Reserve 69.55 69.55
Balance as at 31st March 2022 2.50 99.77 102.27
Particulars Reserves and Suplus
General Reserves Retained Earnings Total

Balance as at 1st April 2022 2.50 99.77 102.27
Profit for the year - (41.18) (41.18)
Other Comprehensive Income - 10.96 10.96
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (30.22) (30.22)
Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 2.50 69.55 72.05

As per our Report of even date

For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants

SD/-
Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner
Membership No.: 042002
FRN : 104571W

Rajkot, May 26, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SD/-
Nathabhai Sadaria

Managing Director
DIN-00167254

SD/-
Utsavi Bhatia
Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Shapar (Veraval)

SD/-
Manojbhai Shah

Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

SD/-
Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M

May 26, 2023
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
A. [Cash Flow from Operating Activity
Net Profit Before Tax (53.06) 72.92
Adjustments For:
Depreciation 56.70 40.05
Interest & Financial Expenses 6.61 0.82
Provision to gratuity fund 4.00 4.07
(Profit)/Loss on Investments 7.22 (11.53)
(Gain)/Loss on Sales of Assets (4.45) (0.89)
Dividend Income (1.94) (0.22)
Interest Received on Deposits (1.13) (1.14)
Gain on sale of current investments (36.74) (18.39)
Provision w/off 0.00 0.90
Creditors w/back - (0.80)
30.26 12.87
Operation profit before Working Capital Changes (22.80) 85.79
Adjustment For:
Inventories 8.88 2.18
Trade Receivables (4.68) 35.23
Other Assets (38.67) 12.31
Trade Payables & Other Liabilities and Provisions (15.19) (3.77)
Taxes Paid (0.26) -
(49.92) 45.94
Net Cash Generated from Operations (72.72) 131.73
B. [Cash Flow from Investment Activities
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipments 4.45 1.19
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments (51.35) (126.37)
Changes in capital creditors (9.28) 14.50
Gain on sale of current investments 36.74 18.39
Purchase of investment proprties (11.08) (56.92)
Sale of Investment Properties 12.07 -
Purchase of Investments 31.85 12.98
Bank Balances not considered as Cash Equivelant (1.02) (1.24)
Dividend Income 1.94 0.22
Interest Received 1.13 1.14
Net Cash Flow from Investment Activities 15.47 (136.10)
C. |Cash Flow from Financial Activities:
Changes in Long-term borrowings (net) 27.36 29.91
Changes in Short-term borrowings (net) (7.82) 18.86
Interest & Financial Expenses (6.61) (0.82)
Net Cash Flow from Financial Activities 12.93 47.96
Total of Cash Flow (A+B+C) (44.31) 43.59
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 54.29 10.71
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the ending of the year 9.98 54.29
Cash & Cash Equivalent compriging of
Cash on Hand 0.34 0.31
Balances with Scheduled Banks 9.63 53.98
9.98 54.29
Note: 1. The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes
2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm this year's classification.
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For H B Kalaria & Associates
Chartered Accountants SD/- SD/-

Nathabhai Sadaria
Managing Director

SD/- N-00167254
Hasmukh B Kalaria
Partner
Membership No.: 042002 SD/-
FRN : 104571W Utsavi Bhatia

Company Secretary
PAN-AYUPB7880K

Rajkot, May 26, 2023 Shapar (Veraval)

Manojbhai Shah
Whole Time Director
DIN-02173383

sD/-
Jayantilal Kansagara
Chief Financial Officer
PAN-AMYPK3479M

May 26, 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note 3 :Property, Plant & Equipment

Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

(Rs. In Lacs)
Plant and Electrical Furniture and Motor Office
Particulars Land Buildings X . . . Computer i Total
Equipment Installations Fixtures Vehicles Equipments
Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 12.61 141.37 456.18 19.73 16.46 7.62 1.95 2.86 658.78
Additions - 7.32 80.57 2.25 0.15 36.09 - - 126.37
Disposals - - 5.51 - - - - - 5.51
Other Deduction - - - - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 12.61 148.68 531.24 21.98 16.61 43.71 1.95 2.86 779.64
Additions - 1.03 11.09 - - 38.35 0.53 0.35 51.35
Disposals - - 10.07 - - 7.00 - - 17.07
Other Deduction 5.70 - - - - - - - 5.70
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 6.91 149.71 532.25 21.98 16.61 75.06 247 3.21 808.21
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 - 93.13 309.89 18.82 16.12 7.39 1.85 1.58 448.78
Depreciation - 4.76 33.69 0.61 0.12 0.09 0.06 0.58 39.91
Disposals - 521 - - - - - 5.21
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 - 97.90 338.37 19.43 16.24 7.48 1.91 2.16 483.48
Depreciation - 4.92 36.73 0.66 0.09 13.50 0.23 043 56.57
Disposals - - 10.07 - - 7.00 - - 17.07
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 - 102.82 365.02 20.09 16.33 13.98 2.15 2.58 522.98
Net Carrying Amount
As at 1st April, 2021 12.61 48.23 146.29 0.91 0.34 0.23 0.09 1.28 209.99
As at 31st March, 2022 12.61 50.79 192.87 2.56 0.37 36.23 0.03 0.71 296.16
As at 31st March, 2023 6.91 46.89 167.22 1.89 0.27 61.08 0.33 0.63 285.23
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 4 Investment properties

(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
Gross Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 83.09 26.18
Add: addition during the year 11.08 56.92
Add: Transfer from land 5.70 -
Less : deduction during the year 13.81 -
Gross Carrying Amount at the beginning of the year 86.06 83.09
Less : Opening depreciation 3.89 3.75
Addition during the year 0.13 0.14
4.02 3.89
Net Carrying Amount at the end of the year 82.04 79.20
Note: 5 Non Current Investments
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars - .
nos of units Amount nos of units Amount
Investment in Equity Instruments:
(In fully paid shares)
Unquoted:
At Cost
Equi . . .
quity Shares of Rajkot Nagarik Sahakari 460 024 460 024
Bank Ltd of Rs. 50 each
Total 460 0.24 460.00 0.24
Note: 6 Other Non-Current Financial Assets
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits 3.06 21.33
3.06 21.33
Note: 7 Inventories
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
Raw Materials 11.37 9.51
Finished Goods 8.10 17.48
Stores and Spares 18.49 19.84
Total 37.96 46.84
7.1 Details of Raw Materials As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Indigeneous:
Round bar (Steel) 11.37 9.51
Total 11.37 9.51
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

March, 2023

7.2 Details of Finished Goods As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Scrap 8.10 17.48
Total 8.10 17.48
Note: 8 Current Investments
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars . .
No. of units Amount No. of units Amount
Investment in Equity instruments: At fair
value through profit and loss account
(In fully paid shares)
Quoted:
Action Construction Equipment Limited (ACE) - - 4,000 9.62
Deepak Iﬁertlll?ers and Petrochemicals ) i 1,300 731
Corporation Limited (Deepakfert)
Deepak Fertiliser and Petro Ltd - 195 1.10
GVK Power Ltd 28,400 0.58 14,200 0.39
Genus Power Infrastructures Limited - - 1,950 1.40
IDFC Ltd - - 8,350 5.14
ITC Limited - - 400 1.00
Morepen Laboratory Ltd - - 10,000 3.66
Rites Ltd 500.00 1.77 - -
Udaipur Cement Ltd - - 8,500 247
Welspun Enterprise 700 3.01 10,450 7.62
Welspun India Ltd - - 2,450 2.23
Welspun Corp Ltd 1,500 0.88 - -
Yes Bank Ltd - - 13,250 1.63
Total 6.24 43.57
Note: 9 Trade Receivables
(Rs.In Lacs)
As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date

they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good

Sub total

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they

are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good

71.68

67.00

Total

71.68

67.00
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 9.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule

(Rs.In Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2023

As at 31st
March, 2022

(Outstanding for the following periods from the date of
transaction)

March, 2023

Unsecured
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good
Less than 6 months 71.68 67.00
6 months-1 year - R
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
71.68 67.00
Total 71.68 67.00
Note: 10 Cash and Cash Equivelants
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
Balances with bank:-
In Current Account 9.63 53.98
Cash on hand 0.34 0.31
Total 9.98 54.29
Note: 11 Other Bank Balances
(Rs.In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022

Bank Balances:-

Margin Money

Fixed Deposit Account (having maturity period within 12 months) 18.77 17.75
Total 18.77 17.75
Note: 12 Loans - Currents (Unsecured and Considered Good)
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
Loans to Employees 3.98 5.38
Total 3.98 5.38
Note: 13 Other Financial Assets-Current
(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
Income accured but not received 20.44 15.54
Total 20.44 15.54
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 14 Other Current Assets

(Rs.In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars

March, 2023 March, 2022
Statutory receivables 7.46 8.52

Balance with government authorities 0.14 -
Advances to suppliers 67.52 5.86
Advances for capital assets 20.00 30.25
Prepaid expenses 3.08 0.15
Total 98.20 44.77
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 15 Equity Share Capital

(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
Authorised
5,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 550.00 550.00
550.00 550.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
27,31,620 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 273.16 273.16
Add : Forfeited Equity Shares 118.20 118.20
Total 391.36 391.36
15.1 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars No. of Shares March, 2023 No. of Shares March, 2022
Shares outstanding at beginning of the year 2,731,620 273.16 2,731,620 273.16
Shares outstanding at end of the year 2,731,620 273.16 2,731,620 273.16

Note: The Forfieted Equity Capital of Rs. 118.20 lacs represents 22,68,400 forfieted equity shares of Rs. 10 partly paid.

15.2 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

As at 31st March, 2023

As at 31st March, 2022

Name of the Shareholder No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares held | % of Holding
held
Manoj H. Shah 149,600 5.48% 149,600 5.48%
Jayesh K. Patel 143,000 5.23% 143,000 5.23%
Kantaben J. Patel 204,000 7.47% 204,000 7.47%
HemaliS. Patel 139,500 5.11% 139,500 5.11%
Jitendra H. Shah 139,410 5.10% 139,410 5.10%
15.3 Details of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:
As at 31st March, . 023 As at 31st March, 2022
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares % of % change No. of Shares % of Holding % change
held Holding held

Kantaben Jayantilal Patel 2,04,000 7.47% 0.00% 2,04,000 7.47% 0.00%
Manoj Harsukhlal Shah 1,49,600 5.48% 0.00% 1,49,600 5.48% 0.00%
Jayesh Kishorbhai Patel 1,43,000 5.23% 0.00% 1,43,000 5.23% 0.00%
Hemali Sudhir Patel 1,39,500 5.11% 0.00% 1,39,500 5.11% 0.00%
Jitendra Harsukhlal Shah 1,39,410 5.10% 0.00% 1,39,410 5.10% 0.00%
Ashvin Harsukhlal Shah 1,22,750 4.49% 0.00% 1,22,750 4.49% 0.00%
Sanjay Jayantilal Patel 1,11,250 4.07% 0.00% 1,11,250 4.07% 0.00%
Malaben Rajnikant Sadaria 1,08,000 3.95% 0.00% 1,08,000 3.95% 0.00%
Gangji Jeram Sadariya 1,03,000 3.77% 0.00% 1,03,000 3.77% 0.00%
Ritaben Chandrakant Sadaria 89,000 3.26% 0.00% 89,000 3.26% 0.00%
Suketa Sanjay Patel 84,750 3.10% 0.00% 84,750 3.10% 0.00%
Nayanaben Ashwinkumar Shah 74,750 2.74% 0.00% 74,750 2.74% 0.00%
Harshaben Manharbhai Sadaria 70,500 2.58% 0.00% 70,500 2.58% 0.00%
Nathabhai Jerambhai Sadaria 65,010 2.38% 0.00% 65,010 2.38% 0.00%
Sudhir Jayantilal Patel 60,500 2.21% 0.00% 60,500 2.21% 0.00%
Tanuj Nanalal Kalavadia 57,000 2.09% 0.00% 57,000 2.09% 0.00%
Paresh Nathabhai Sadaria 55,500 2.03% 0.00% 55,500 2.03% 0.00%
Kalpanaben Jitendra Shah 50,500 1.85% 0.00% 50,500 1.85% 0.00%
Mausami Paresh Sadaria 44,500 1.63% 0.00% 44,500 1.63% 0.00%
Nalini Manojkumar Shah 40,300 1.48% 0.00% 40,300 1.48% 0.00%
Devkuvarben Nathabhai Sadaria 35,000 1.28% 0.00% 35,000 1.28% 0.00%
Sadaria Manharkumar Nathalal 29,500 1.08% 0.00% 29,500 1.08% 0.00%
Jitendra Harsukhlal Shah-Huf 10,100 0.37% 0.00% 10,100 0.37% 0.00%
Manojkumar Harsukhlal Shah-Huf 10,100 0.37% 0.00% 10,100 0.37% 0.00%
Jay Ashwinbhai Shah 2,500 0.09% 0.00% 2,500 0.09% 0.00%
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

15.4 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders, except in case of interim dividend. In the
event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

Note: 16 Other Equity

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2023

As at 31st
March, 2022

a. General Reserve

Opening Balance 2.50 2.50
(+) Current Year Transfer - -
(-) Transfer to other Reserves - -
Balance as at year end 2.50 2.50
b. Retained Earnings

Opening Balance 99.77 41.96
(+) Net Profit for year (41.18) 62.52
(+) Other Comprehensive Income for the year 10.96 (4.72)
Balance as at year end 69.55 99.77
Total 72.05 102.27
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 17 Long Term Borrowings:

(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
Secured
Vehicle loan from banks 49.27 29.91
Unsecured
Loans from directors 8.00 -
Total 57.27 2991

17.1 Terms of Repayment of Loans:

Particulars(Name of financier)

Nature of Security

Terms of Repayment

Rate of Interest

Vehicle Loan from Banks (Axis Bank)

Hypothecation of the respective

Repayable in 60 and 48

9.25% -9.50%

vehicle Monthly Installments
. Repayment schedule not
Loans from Directors Unsecured . 0.00%
specified
Note: 18 Long term provisions
(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity 11.41 8.54
Total 1141 8.54
Note: 19 Deferred Tax Assets
(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st Charge during As at 31st Charge during
March, 2023 the year March, 2022 the year
Deferred Tax Liability on account of :
(1) Depreciation 5.64 (3.28) 8.92 (4.58)
5.64 (3.28) 8.92 (4.58)
Deferred Tax Assets on account of :
(1) Gratuity 5.20 2.68 7.88 261
(ii) Unabsorbed Depreciation 7.85 (7.85) 0.00 (8.53)
13.05 (5.17) 7.88 (5.92)
(7.47) (8.46) 1.04 134
Note: 20 Short-term Borrowings- Current
(Rs. In Lacs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars
March, 2023 March, 2022
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 14.05 6.09
Secured
Cash Credit 34.29 50.07
(Cash credits from Bank against hypothecation of raw materials, stores, spare parts, finished
goods, work-in-porgress and receivables)
Total 48.34 56.16

F-112




Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 21 Trade Payables

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2023

As at 31st
March, 2022

Other than Micro, Small and Medium Entreprises

Sundry Creditors for goods 8.95 12.19
Sundry Creditors for services/expenses 5.95 2.92
Total 1491 15.11

21.1 The company has requested the suppliers to give information about their status as Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined
under the MSMED Act, 2006. In the absence of this information, company is unable to provide the details regarding the over dues to

such Enterprises.

Note: 21.2 Trade Payables ageing schedule

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2023

As at 31st
March, 2022

(Outstanding for the following periods from the date of
transaction)

Undisputed trade payables - other than MSMEs

Less than 1 year 13.86 15.11
1-2 years 1.04 -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
14.91 15.11
Total 1491 15.11
Note: 22 Other Financial Liabilities
(Rs. In Lacs)
particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Accured Expenses Payable 9.13 9.50
Employee related liabilities 20.20 19.79
Captial Creditors 1.51 10.78
Total 30.84 40.08

22.1 There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31st March,2023 &

2022.

Note: 23 Other Current Liabilities

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2023

As at 31st
March, 2022

Statutory dues (including withholding taxes) 9.81 9.76
Advance from customers - 15.06
Total 9.81 24.82

Note: 24 Short Term Provisions
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity 9.27 22.78
Total 9.27 22.78
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 25 Revenue from Operations

(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March | ended March 31,
31, 2023 2022

Sale of products 11.93 8.76
Sale of services 338.50 443.29
350.43 452.05
Less: Rate difference/discounts/credit notes - (0.05)
350.43 452.10

Other Operating Revenue 220.78 237.95
Total 571.22 690.05

Note: 26 Other Income

(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March |ended March 31,
31, 2023 2022
Interest on Financial Assets
On Bank Fixed Deposits 1.13 0.37
On Income Tax Refund 0.15 0.57
On PGVCL Deposits - 0.78
Dividend Income
From Non-Current Investments 1.94 0.22
Other Gain and Losses
Gain on Sales Of Current Investments 36.74 18.39
Profit on Revaluation of Investments - 11.53
Creditors Written Back - 0.80
Net gain on disposal/discarding of tangible assets 4.45 0.89
Misc. Other Non-Operating Income - 0.04
Total 44.42 33.58
Note: 27 Cost of Materials Consumed
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March |ended March 31,
31,2023 2022
Opening Inventory 9.51 7.79
Add : Purchase 11.50 8.33
Less : Closing Inventory 11.37 9.51
Total 9.64 6.61

Note: 27.1 Cost of Materials Consumed comprise of:- (Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March |ended March 31,

31,2023 2022
Round Bar 9.64 6.61
Total 9.64 6.61
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 28 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade

(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March |ended March 31,
31, 2023 2022
Inventories (at close):
Finished Goods 8.10 17.48
8.10 17.48
Inventories (at commencement):
Finished Goods 17.48 21.84
17.48 21.84
Total 9.38 4.36
Note: 29 Employee Benefits Expense
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March |ended March 31,
31,2023 2022
Salaries and Wages 185.88 180.89
Contributions to:-
Provident Fund, Superannuation Scheme & Other Funds 11.48 10.44
Staff Welfare Expenses 1.26 1.52
Total 198.62 192.86

29.1 Employee Benefits, the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standards are given below:-

Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan:

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March | ended March 31,
31,2023 2022

(1) Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet
Present value of unfunded obligations 20.68 31.31
Present value of funded obligations - -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net Liability (asset) 20.68 31.31
(1) Amounts to be recognised in Profit and Loss Account
Service Cost:
Current service cost 4.38 3.62
Past Service Cost - -
Curtailment and settlement - -
Net interest cost 0.94 0.81
Total included in Exployees Expenses 5.32 4.44
Expenses deducted from the fund
Total Charged to profit and loss 5.32 4.44
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

(111) Other Comprehensive Income for the period
Components of acturial gain/loss on obligation

Due to change in financial assumption 1.64 0.29
Due to change in demographic assumption - -
Due to experience adjustments 13.00 (6.59)
Return on planed assets excluding amounts included in interest income
Amount Recognised in other comprehensive income 14.64 (6.30)
(IV) Reconciliation of Defined benefit obligation
Opening Defined benefit obligation 31.31 20.94
Transfer in/(out) obligation - -
Current service cost 4.38 3.62
Interest cost 0.94 0.81
Components of acturial gain/loss on obligtion - -

Due to change in financial assumption (1.64) (0.29)

Due to change in demographic assumption - -

Due to experience adjustments (13.00) 6.59
Past Service Cost - -
Loss/Gain on Curtailment - -
Liabilities Extinguished on settlement - -
Liabilities assumed in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase - -
Exchange deference of foreign plan - -
Benefits Paid (1.31) (0.36)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 20.68 31.31
(V) Assumptions:
Discount rate (per annum) 7.30% 4.70%
Rate of increase in Salary 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate 25.00% 25.00%

Note: 30 Finance Cost
(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March |ended March 31,

31,2023 2022
Interest expenses 6.61 0.82
Total 6.61 0.82
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 31 Other Expenses

Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March |ended March 31,
31,2023 2022
Direct Expenses
Stores Consumed 92.93 120.87
Packing Material Consumed 0.01 0.03
Transportation and Freight Expenses 1.97 5.15
Repairs to Buildings 6.86 4.45
Repairs to Machinery 10.72 13.70
Electricity, Power and Fuel 222.49 214.53
Factory and other expenses 6.70 2.32
Jobwork Charges 16.62 23.20
Indirect Expenses
Bank Gurantee & Other Charges 2.39 0.28
Repairs to Others 0.43 0.99
Insurance Expenses 0.03 0.24
Telephone & Postage Expenses 0.32 0.16
Printing and Stationery 0.61 0.66
Rates and Taxes - 1.03
Donation Expenses 0.51 0.34
Payments to Auditors 1.55 1.55
Information technology expenses 0.25 0.17
Payment to technical service 0.72 -
Advertisement and Publicity 0.52 0.37
Late fee 0.05 0.01
Listing Fees 3.12 3.12
Professional & Consulting fees 2.00 2.71
ROC fees 0.02 0.02
Travelling and Conveyance 0.11 0.13
Vehicle Petrol & Repairs 7.78 4.42
Loss on Revaluation of Investments 5.48 -
Provision Written off - 0.90
Loss on sale of Investment Properties 1.74 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.83 4.67
Total 387.74 406.01
31.1 Details of Stores Consumed
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March |ended March 31,
31, 2023 2022
Imported - -
Indigenous 92.93 120.87
Total 92.93 120.87
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

31.2 Payments to Auditors as:

(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March | ended March 31,
31,2023 2022

Statutory Auditors :
i) Audit Services 0.93 0.93
ii) For Taxation matters 031 0.31
iii) For Company Law matters 0.31 0.31
Total 1.55 1.55

32 Income Tax

(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended March ended March 31,
31,2023 2022

Net Tax Expenses

Current tax 0.00 7.47

Deferred tax liability/(assets) (12.14) 2.93

Prior Period Tax 0.26 0.00
(11.88) 10.40

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting

profit computed by applying the Income tax rate

Profit/ (loss) before tax (53.06) 72.92

India’s statutory income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%

Expected income tax expense as per applicable taxes (13.35) 18.35

Non-deductibles expenses 3.23 1.45

Prior Period Tax (0.26) -

Changes due to brought forward tax losses - (8.55)

Difference due to temporary differences (1.18) (3.22)

Others (0.32) 2.36

Total (11.88) 10.40
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Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2023

Note: 33 Other Comprehensive Income

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

For the year
ended March 31, 2023

For the year
ended March 31, 2022

Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity Benefits as per Ind AS 19:-
(a) Items that will not be reclassifled to proflt or loss

Due to Change in financial assumptions 1.64 0.29
Due to Change in demographic assumptions - -
Due to experience adjustments 13.00 (6.59)
Total 14.64 (6.30)
Note: 34 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
. For the year For the year
Particulars

ended March 31, 2023

ended March 31, 2022

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to
Equity Shareholders (Rs. In Lacs)

Weighted average number of shares considered for calculating EPS (In
Nos.)

Face Value per equity share (Rs.)

Basic Earnings per share (Rs.)
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.)

(30.22)

2,731,620

10.00
(1.11)
(1.11)

57.81

2,731,620

10.00
212
212
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations together with our Audited Financial
Information as of and for the Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021 all prepared in accordance with the Companies Act and Ind AS and in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, including the schedules, annexures and notes thereto and the reports thereon, included in
the section titled “Financial Information” on page 68. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this chapter is derived
from the Audited Financial Statements of our Company.

This discussion contains forward looking statements and reflects our current views with respect to future events and financial
performance. Actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain
factors such as those set forth in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Forward- Looking Statements” on pages 24 and 19 respectively.

Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year, so all references to a particular “fiscal year” and “Fiscal” are to the twelve (12) month
period ended March 31 of that fiscal year. References to the “Company”, “we”, “us” and “our” in this chapter refer to Galaxy Agrico
Exports Limited, as applicable in the relevant fiscal period, unless otherwise stated.

OVERVIEW OF OUR BUSINESS

Our Company was originally incorporated as Galaxy Agrico Private Limited under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of
Companies, Ahmedabad and consequently a certificate of incorporation dated February 23, 1994. Later, the name of the company was
changed from “Galaxy Agrico Private Limited” to its present name “Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited” vide fresh certificate of
incorporation consequent upon change of name “ROC letter no 04-21368 of 1993-

The Company is a well-established player in the agricultural tools and equipment manufacturing sector. Founded with a mission to
provide high-quality agricultural tools, the company has grown to become a prominent exporter of a wide range of products, including
hand tools, agricultural implements, and other related items. The Company specializes in the production of a diverse array of agricultural
tools, such as hoes, sickles, pickaxes, spades, and more. The company’s product line is designed to meet the needs of farmers and
agricultural workers globally, focusing on durability, ease of use, and efficiency. The company operates state-of-the-art manufacturing
facilities equipped with modern machinery and technology. These facilities are designed to ensure high-quality production standards
while maintaining cost efficiency. The Company emphasizes precision engineering and stringent quality control measures to produce
tools that meet international standards. Quality is a cornerstone of Company operations. The company adheres to strict quality control
protocols at every stage of production, from raw material inspection to the final product testing. The Company products are designed to
withstand rigorous usage, and the company ensures that each item meets the required specifications before it reaches the market.

Currently, Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited, headquartered in Rajkot, focusing on the manufacturing and trading of agricultural.
Gardening and industrial tools. The company, led by an experienced management team, capitalizes on extensive industry connections
to facilitate transactions within Gujarat market. Engaging in bulk trading, the company maintains an offline presence, predominantly
dealing with prominent merchants in the region. Transactions are executed with precision, leveraging the established network to
streamline sourcing, trading, and distribution processes. The business strategy prioritizes localized operations, emphasizing relationships
and efficiency within the Gujarat market. Compliance with organic certification standards ensures adherence to quality and ethical
practices. Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited market approach centers on reliability, transparency, and leveraging its Promoters's industry
experience to sustain a prominent position in the agro commodities trading sector. The company's operations are oriented toward
practicality, responsiveness to market demands, and maintaining a stronghold in the competitive Gujarat spices market.

SIGNIFICANT FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULTS OF THE OPERATIONS

Our financial condition and results of operations are affected by numerous factors and uncertainties, including those discussed in the section
entitled ‘Risk Factors’ on page 24 of this Letter of Offer. The following is a discussion of certain factors that have had, and we expect
will continue to have, a significant effect on our financial condition and result so of operations:

Any adverse changes in central or state government policies;

Loss of one or more of our key customers and/or maintenance contractors;

Changes in technology and our ability to manage any disruption or failure of our technology systems;

Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel;

Changes in political and social conditions in India or in countries that we may enter, the monetary and inter estate policies
of India and other countries, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in inter estates, equity prices or other rates or
prices;

The performance of the financial markets in India and globally;

Any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which we are involved;
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Occurrences of natural disasters or calamities affecting the areas in which we have operations;

Market fluctuations and industry dynamics beyond our control;

Our ability to compete effectively, particularly in new markets and businesses;

Delays in collection of dues/receivables from the market

Other factors beyond our control;

Our ability to manage risks that arise from these factors;

Conflict of interest with, Individual Promoters and other related parties;

Changes in domestic and foreign laws, regulations and taxes and changes in competition in our industry;

Termination of customer contracts without cause and with little notice or penalty; and

Inability to obtain, maintain or renew requisite statutory and regulatory permits and approvals compliance with and
changes in, safety, health and environmental laws and other applicable regulations, may adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the Audited Financial Statements. For
details of our significant accounting policies, please refer section titled “Financial Information” on page 68.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN PREVIOUS 3 YEARS

Except as mentioned in chapter “Financial Information” on page 68, there has been no change in accounting policies in last3
years.

RESERVATIONS, QUALIFICATIONS AND ADVERSEREMARKS

For details, see section titled “Financial Information” on page 68.

KEY COMPONENTS OF COMPANY’S PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
Revenues

+ Revenue from operations

Our Company’s revenue is primarily generated from the business of trading.

¢+ Other income

Our other income is almost negligible.

Expenditure

¢ Inventory

Being a trading company, raw material like knitted cloth and silver ornaments, etc. is inventory for our Company.
¢ Employment benefit expenses

It includes Salaries and wages and other expenses.

¢ Other expenses

It mainly includes business promotion expenses, travelling expenses, rent, inspection expenses, professional & legal charges, office
expenses and other expenses.

¢ Finance costs
Our finance costs mainly include bank charges.
. Depreciation

Depreciation has been provided as per the useful life prescribed under schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 on written down value
(WDV) method on a pro rata basis.
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RESULT OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets for the period is indicated, certain items from our Audited Financial statements, in each case also stated

as a percentage of our total income:

Profit and Loss

(%in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 732.40 571.22
Other income 15.33 44.42
Total Income 747.73 615.64
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 0.00 0.00
Changes in inventories (18.75) 9.38
Employee benefit expense 185.12 12.74
Finance cost 8.49 6.61
Depreciation and amortisation expense 52.34 56.70
Other expenses 334.11 387.74
Total Expenses 561.31 482.81
Profit/(Loss) before tax 186.42 132.83
Taxexpense
Current tax 0.34 0.26
Deferred tax (benefit)/charge (15.61) (12.19)
Total tax expense (15.27) (11.88)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 201.70 14471
-Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share 7.38 5.30

Cash Flows
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net Cash from Operating Activities 193.64 113.17
Net Cash from Investing Activities 8.98 15.47
Net Cash used in Financing Activities 49.14 12.93
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INFORMATION REQUIRED AS PER ITEM (1) (C) (I) OF PART A OF SCHEDULE VI TO THE SEBI REGULATIONS:

1. Unusual or infrequent events or transactions
Except as described in this Letter of Offer, during the periods under review there have been no transactions or events, which in our
best judgment, would be considered unusual or infrequent.
2. Significant economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from continuing operations
Other than as described in the “Risk Factors” beginning on page 24 of this Letter of Offer, to our knowledge there are no known
significant economic changes that have or had or are expected to have a material adverse impact on revenues or income of our
Company from continuing operations.
3. Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material adverse impact on sales, revenue or income
from continuing operations
Other than as described in this Letter of Offer, particularly in the sections “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 24 and 69, respectively, to our knowledge, there are no known
trends or uncertainties that are expected to have a material adverse impact on our revenues or income from continuing operations.
4. Income and Sales on account of major product/main activities
Revenues March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024
Revenue from Operation 732.40 96.96
Other Income 15.33 6.46
Total 747.73 103.42
5. Future relationship between Costs and Income
Our Company’s future costs and revenues will be determined by the growth of the industry in which we operate.
6.  Extenttowhich material increases in net sales or revenue are due to increased sales volume, introduction of new products
or services or increased sales prices.
Increases in our revenues are by and large linked to increases in the volume of business.
7. Status of any publicly announced new products or business segments
Our Company has not announced any new services and product and segment / scheme, other than particularly in the “Our
Business” on pages 55 and disclosed in this Letter of Offer.
8.  The extent to which the business is seasonal
Our business is moderately seasonal in nature.
9.  Anysignificant dependence on a single or few suppliers or customers
Our Company is significantly dependent on a few suppliers and customers. For further details, refer to the chapter titled “Risk
factor” and “Our Business” on page 24 and 55 of Letter of Offer.
10. Competitive Conditions

Competitive conditions have been discussed in sections titled “Our Business” and “Our Industry” on pages 55 and 48 of this Letter
of Offer.
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MARKET PRICE INFORMATION

Our Company’s Equity Shares have been listed and actively being traded on BSE from May 21, 1987.
Year is a Financial Year;
Average price is the average of the daily closing prices of the Equity Shares for the year, or the month, as the case may be;

High price is the maximum of the daily high prices and low price is the minimum of the daily low prices of the Equity Shares, as the
case may be, for the year, or the month, as the case may be; and

In case of two days with the same high / low/ closing price, the date with higher volume has been considered.
Stock Market Data of the Equity Shares

The high, lowand average market closing prices recorded on the Stock Exchanges during the last three years and the number of Equity
Shares traded on these days are stated below:

BSE Limited
Financial High ®)* | Dateof | No. of | Total Low Date of low | No. of | Total Average
Year high shares volume ®)* shares volume of price for
traded traded on traded | tradedon the year
on date | date of high on date | date of ®*
of high . of low low(in )
(in)
59.89 16" July,| 142435 8371129 33.95 | 08"January,| 23562 819001
2024 2024 2024 46.00
41.47 26t 18076 748789 22.50 26t 12 271
2023 Decembe September, 26.64
r, 2023 2023
h d
2022 53.70 18¢ 6947 353816 21.45 | 02" March, 1541 33292 3203
January, 2022
2022

(Source: www.bseindia.com)

Notes: High, lowand average prices are based on the daily closing prices.
In case of two days with the same high or low price, the date with the high volume has been considered.
Market Prices for the last six calendar months

The total number of days trading during the past six months, from March 2024 to August 2024 was 117. The average volume of Equity
Shares traded on the BSE during past 6 months was 11025.72 per day.

The high and low prices and volume of Equity Shares traded on the respective date on the BSE during the last six months preceding the
date of filing of this Letter of Offer are as follows:

BSE Limited
Total Total
volume volume | Average
Volume traded on Volume traded on | price for
Month | D21 | pish @+ | (No.of | gate Dateof || @+ | (No.of | gate the
high low
shares) shares) month
of high oflow (in | @)*
(in) )
March-2024 |04™ March,| 52.62 13847 684338 22" March, 42.8 22370 998692 47.91
2024 2024
April-2024 | 03rd April, 52.90 14168 726557 | 19th April, 45.33 2983 137492 48.43
2024 2024

75


http://www.bseindia.com/

May-2024 | 13" May, 52 12976 635974 | 31%May, 40.36 6168 260957 47.34
2024 2024

June- 2024 | 12" June, 49.94 31599 1334107 | 27" June, 38.50 1518 61074 43.14
2024 2024

July-2024 | 16™July, 59.89 142435 8371129 | 02" July, 38.80 3664 149705 47.84
2024 2024

August-2024( 29" August, 51.82 801 41321 |22 August, 40 2021 84988 45.15
2024 2024

(Source: www.bseindia.com)

* High, lowand average prices are based daily closing prices.

In the event the high or low or closing price of the Equity Shares are the same on more than one day, the day on which there has been
higher volume of trading has been considered for the purposes of this chapter.

The Board of our Company has approved the Issue at their meeting held on September 16, 2024. The high and low prices of our Company’s
shares as quoted on the BSE on September 16, 2024, the day on which the trading happened immediately following the date of the Board
meeting is as follows:

Date Volume Highest Price (%) Low price }R)
(No of Equity
Shares)

16-Sep-24 1568 56.70 51.30

Source: www.bseindia.com

76


http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/

SECTION VI - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

Except as stated in this section, there are no outstanding (I) criminal or Civil proceedings (I1) actions taken by statutory or regulatory
authorities, (111) disciplinary action including penalty imposed by the SEBI or stock exchanges against our Promoters in the last five
(5) Financial Years, including outstanding action, (1V) claims related to direct and indirect taxes in a consolidated manner, in each
case involving our Company, Promoters and Directors (the “Relevant Parties”). Unless stated to the contrary, the information provided
in this section is as of the date of this Letter of Offer. All terms defined in a summary pertaining to a particular litigation shall be
construed only in respect of the summary of the litigation where such term is used.

It is further clarified that for the purposes of this Letter of Offer, pre-litigation notices received by the Company, Subsidiaries, Directors
or Promoters shall, unless otherwise decided by the Board, not be considered as litigation until such time that our Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, Directors or Promoters, asthe case may be, is impleaded as a defendant in litigation before any judicial forum.

I.LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE COMPANY: NIL
1) Litigation involving Criminal Laws
NIL
2) Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities
NIL
3) Disciplinary Actions by Authorities
NIL
4) Litigation involving Tax Liability
NIL
5) Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company
NIL
II.LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY: NIL
1) Litigation involving Criminal Laws
NIL
2) Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities
NIL
3) Disciplinary Actions by Authorities
NIL
4) Litigation involving Tax Liability
NIL
5) Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company
NIL

1. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY OTHER THAN PROMOTERS OF THE
COMPANY

1) Litigation involving Criminal Laws
NIL

2) Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities
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NIL

3) Disciplinary Actions by Authorities

NIL

4) Litigation involving Tax Liability

NIL

5) Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company
NIL

IV. LITIGATIONS RELATING TO THEHOLDING COMPANY - NA
1) Litigation involving Criminal Laws

NIL

2) Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

3) Disciplinary Actions by Authorities

NIL

4) Litigation involving Tax Liability

NIL

5) Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company
NIL

The Company has no holding company as of the date of this Letter of Offer.
V.LITIGATIONS RELATING TO THE DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY - NA
1) Litigation involving Criminal Laws

NIL

2) Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

3) Disciplinary Actions by Authorities

NIL

4) Litigation involving Tax Liability

NIL

5) Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company
NIL

The Company has no subsidiary company as of the date of this Letter of Offer.

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULTERS

Neither our Company, nor our Promoters, and Directors have been categorized or identified as wilful defaulters by any bank
or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve
Bank of India. There are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past or are currently pending against any
of them.
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT SINCE 31" MARCH, 2024.

There have not arisen, since the date of the last financial statements disclosed in this Letter of Offer, any circumstances which
materially and adversely affect or are likely to affect our profitability taken as a whole or the value of our consolidated assets
or our ability to pay our liabilities within the next 12 months. For further details, please refer to the chapter titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” on page 69 of this Letter of Offer.
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER STATUTORY APPROVALS

Our Company is required to comply with the provisions of various laws and regulations and obtain approvals, registrations, permits and
licenses under them for conducting our operations. The requirement for approvals may vary based on factors such as the activity being
carried out and the legal requirements in the jurisdiction in which we are operating. Further, our obligation to obtain and renew such
approvals arises periodically and applications for such approvals are made at the appropriate stage. Our Company has obtained all
material consents, licenses, permissions and approvals from governmental and regulatory authorities that are required for carrying on
our present business activities. In the event, some of the approvals and licenses that are required for our business operations expire in
the ordinary course of business, we will apply for their renewal, from time to time. As on the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no
pending material approvals required for our Company or any of our Subsidiaries, to conduct our existing business and operations.

Material pending government and regulatory approvals pertaining to the Objects of the Issue

Ason the date of this Letter of Offer, there are no material pending government and regulatory approvals pertaining to the Objects of the
Issue.
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Authority for the Issue
The Board of Directors in its meeting dated November 29, 2024 have authorized this Issue under Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013.

Our Board of Directors has, at its meeting held on 19" January, 2026, determined the Issue Price as ¥ 35.87/- per Rights Equity Share,
and the Rights Entitlement as 5:1 (5 (Five) Rights Equity Share for every 1 (One) Equity Shares held on the Record Date.

Our Company has received ‘in-principle’ approvals for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted pursuant to Regulation 28 of
SEBI Listing Regulations, vide letter dated 04" December, 2025 issued by BSE Limited for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be
Allotted pursuant to the Issue.

Prohibition by SEBI or other Governmental Authorities

Our Company, our Promoters, Our Directors, the members of our Promoters Group and persons in control of our Company have not
been prohibited from accessing the capital market or debarred from buying or selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction
passed by SEBI or any securities market regulator in any jurisdiction or any authority/court as on date of this Letter of Offer.

The companies with which our Promoters or our Directors are associated as promoters or directors have not been debarred from accessing
the capital market by SEBI. There isno outstanding action initiated against them by SEBI in the five years preceding the date of filing of
this Letter of Offer.

Neither our Promoters nor our Directors have been declared as fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of Fugitive Economic
Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of 2018).

Prohibition by RBI

Neither our Company, nor our Promoters, and Directors have been categorized or identified as wilful defaulters or fraudulent borrowers
by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters and fraudulent
borrowers issued by the Reserve Bank of India. There are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past or are currently
pending against any of them.

Compliance with Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018

Our Company, our Promoters and the members of our Promoters Group are in compliance with the Companies (Significant Beneficial
Ownership) Rules, 2018, to the extent it may be applicable to them as on date of this Letter of Offer.

Eligibility for the Issue

Our Company is a listed company, incorporated under Companies Act, 1956. The Equity Shares of our Company are presently listed on
BSE Limited. We are eligible to undertake the Issue in terms of Chapter 111 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Pursuant to Clauses (1) and
(2) of Part B of Schedule VI to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Our Company is required to make disclosures in accordance with Part B-1
of Schedule VI to the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Compliance with Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, to the extent
applicable. Further, in relation to compliance with Regulation 62(1)(a) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company undertakes to make
an application to the Stock Exchanges for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue. BSE is the Designated
Stock Exchange for the Issue.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI
The Letter of Offer has not been filed with SEBI in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations as the size of issue is below Z 4899.16 Lakhs.

Disclaimer Clause of BSE

BSE Limited ("the Exchange™) has given vide its letter dated 19" January, 2026, permission to this Company to use the Exchange's name
in this Letter of Offer as the stock exchange on which this Company's securities are proposed to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized
this Letter of Offer for its limited internal purpose of deciding on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Company.

The Exchange does not in any manner:
e  Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Letter of Offer; or
e  Warrant that this Company's securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; or
e Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its promoters, its management or any scheme or
project of this Company; and it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this Letter of Offer has been cleared or
approved by the Exchange. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of this Company may do
S0 pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the Exchange whatsoever
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by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection with such subscription/acquisition
whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any other reason whatsoever.

Caution

Our Company shall make all relevant information available to the eligible equity shareholders in accordance with SEBI ICDR
Regulations and no selective or additional information would be available for a section of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in any manner
whatsoever including at presentations, in research or sales reports etc. after filing of this Final Letter of Offer.

No dealer, sales person or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not contained in this Letter of
Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This Letter of Offer is an offer to sell only the Equity
Shares and rights to purchase the Equity Shares offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to
do so. The information contained in this Letter of Offer is Current only as of its date.

Disclaimer from Our Company, Our Directors

Our Company and our Directors accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Letter of Offer or in the
advertisements or any other material issued by or at our Company’s instance and anyone placing reliance on any other source of
information, including our Company’s website orientgreenpower.com or the respective websites of our Promoters Group or an affiliate
of our Company would be doing so at his or her own risk.

All information shall be made available by our Company to the public and investors at large and no selective or additional information
would be available for a section of the investors in any manner whatsoever, including at road show presentations, in research or sales
reports, at bidding centers or elsewhere.

Investors will be required to confirm and will be deemed to have represented to our Company and their respective directors, officers,
agents, affiliates, and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to
acquire the Equity Shares and will not issue, sell, pledge, or transfer the Equity Shares to any person who is not eligible under any
applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire the Equity Shares. Our Company, and their respective directors,
officers, agents, affiliates, and representatives accept no responsibility or liability for advising any investor on whether such investor is
eligible to acquire the Equity Shares.

No information which is extraneous to the information disclosed in this Letter of Offer or otherwise shall be given by our Company or any
member of the Issue management team or the syndicate to any particular section of investors or to any research analyst in any manner
whatsoever, including at road shows, presentations, in research or sales reports or at bidding centers.

No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not contained in this Letter of Offer.
You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This Letter of Offer is an offer to sell only the Rights Equity
Shares and the Rights Entitlement, but only under circumstances and in the applicable jurisdictions. Unless otherwise specified, the
information contained in this Letter of Offer is current only as at its date.

Disclaimer in respect of Jurisdiction
This Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian law and the applicable rules and regulations thereunder. Any
disputes arising out of the Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate court(s) in Mumbai, India only.

Designated Stock Exchange
The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of the Issue is BSE Limited.

Listing

Our Company will apply to BSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares subsequent to their Allotment.
No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Rights Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity
Shares offered under the Issue will trade after the listing thereof.

Selling Restrictions
This Letter of Offer is solely for the use of the person who has received it from our Company or from the Registrar. This Letter of Offer
is not to be reproduced or distributed to any other person.

The distribution of this Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter
and the issue of Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by
legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter
of Offer Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such
restrictions. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company and will dispatch
the Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity
Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company.
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No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction, or the possession, circulation, or distribution of this the Letter
of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or any other material relating to our Company, the Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in any
jurisdiction, where action would be required for that purpose, except that this Letter of Offer has been filed with SEBI and the Stock
Exchanges.

Accordingly, the Rights Entitlement or Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and this Letter of Offer or any
offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue or Rights Entitlement may not be distributed or published in any
jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Letter of Offer will not
constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer.

This Letter of Offer and its accompanying documents are being supplied to you solely for your information and may not be reproduced,
redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person or published, in whole or in part, for any purpose. If this Letter of
Offer is received by any person in any jurisdiction where to do so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulation, or by
their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlement referred to in this Letter of Offer.
Investors are advised to consult their legal counsel prior to applying for the Rights Entitlement and Equity Shares or accepting any
provisional allotment of Equity Shares, or making any offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Equity Shares or Rights
Entitlement.

Neither the delivery of this Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has
been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that the information contained herein
is correct as of any time subsequent to this date or the date of such information. Each person who exercises Rights Entitlements and
subscribes for Equity Shares, or who purchases Rights Entitlements or Equity Shares shall do so in accordance with the restrictions set
out below.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED
UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY U.S.
STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN
THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT IN A TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF
THE SECURITIES ACT. THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND EQUITY SHARES REFERRED TO IN THE LETTER OF
OFFER ARE BEING OFFERED IN INDIA, BUT NOT IN THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THE
LETTEROF OFFER RELATES ISNOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES ISTO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING
OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS FOR SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR AS A
SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, THE LETTER
OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY
TIME.

Neither our Company, nor any person acting on behalf of our Company, will accept a subscription or renunciation from any person, or
the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company, or any person acting on behalf of our Company, has reason to believe
is, in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application Form should not be postmarked in the United
States or otherwise dispatched from the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer under this
Letter of Offer. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and this Letter of Offer, Letter
of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched to the Eligible Equity
Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company. Any person who acquires the Rights Entitlements and the Equity
Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery of the Letter of Offer, (i) that it is
not and that, at the time of subscribing for the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States when the buy
order is made; and (ii) is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any Application Form which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to ha ve been
executed in or dispatched from the United States of America; (ii) does not include the relevant certification set out in the Application
Form headed “Overseas Shareholders” to the effect that the person accepting and/or renouncing the Application Form does not have a
registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the United States, and such person is complying with laws of the jurisdictions
applicable to such person in connection with the Issue, among others; (iii) where our Company believes acceptance of such Application
Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; or (iv) where a registered Indian address is not provided, and our
Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

None of the Rights Entitlements or the Equity Shares have been, or will be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933,
as amended (the “Securities Act”), or any state securities laws in the United States. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Equity
Shares are being offered and sold only outside the United States in compliance with Regulation S under the Securities Act and the
applicable laws of the jurisdictions where those offers and sales are made.
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NO OFFER IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA

NO OFFER OR INVITATION TO PURCHASE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IS BEING
MADE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE OF INDIA, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO AUSTRALIA, BAHRAIN,
CANADA, THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA, GHANA, HONG KONG, INDONESIA, JAPAN, KENYA, KUWAIT,
MALAYSIA, NEW ZEALAND, SULTANATE OF OMAN, PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, QATAR, SINGAPORE,
SOUTH AFRICA, SWITZERLAND, THAILAND, THE UNITED ARAB EMIRATES, THE UNITED KINGDOM AND THE
UNITED STATES.

THE OFFERING TO WHICH THIS LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS
TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE
IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA OR AS A SOLICIATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE
SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR
TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO ANY OTHERJURISDICTION AT ANY TIME.

Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations,
2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the threshold of filing of Final Letter of Offer with SEBI
for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the rights issue size under Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been
increased from Rupees Ten Crores to Rupees Fifty Crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Final Letter of Offer
has been filed with the BSE and not with SEBI

Mechanism for Redressal of Investor Grievances

Our Company has adequate arrangements for redressal of investor grievances in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations. We
have been registered with the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) as required by the SEBI Circular no. CIR/ OIAE/ 2/ 2011
dated June 3, 2011. Consequently, investor grievances are tracked online by our Company.

Our Company has a Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when required. Its terms of
reference include considering and resolving grievances of Shareholders in relation to transfer of shares and effective exercise of voting
rights. All investor grievances received by us have been handled by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent in consultation with the
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. Investor complaints received by our Company are typically disposed of within 15 days
from the receipt of the complaint.

Investor Grievances arising out of this Issue

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary for any pre-Issue or post-Issue related matters. All grievances
relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar, with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such
as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), e mail address of the sole / first holder, folio number or demat account humber,
number of Rights Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA Account number and the Designated
Branch of the SCSBs where the Application Form or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along
with a photo copy of the acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process). For details on the ASBA process, see “Terms of the Issue”
beginning at page 84 of this Letter of Offer. The contact details of our Registrar to the Issue and our Company Secretary are as follows.

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Ltd.

CIN: U67120MH1993PTC074079

Unitno. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 011. Telephone: +91 22 4961 4132;
Facsimile: +91 22 22 3570 0224;

E-mail: support@purvashare.com; Website: https://purvashare.com;

Contact person: Deepali Dhuri, Compliance Officer

Investor grievance: support@purvashare.com;

SEBI Registration No: INRO00001112

Validity of Registration: Permanent

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the below mentioned address for any pre-Issue/ post-Issue
related matters such as non-receipt of Letters of Allotment / share certificates/ demat credit/ Refund Orders etc.

Utsavi Lalit Bhatia, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of Our Company. Her contact details are set forth hereunder.

Registered Office: 236, Jai Kishan Industrial Estate, Behind Murlidhar Weigh Bridge, Rajkot, Shapar, Gujarat, India, 360024,
Tel: 2827-252676, 254371;
E-mail: info@galaxyagrico.com
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Stock Market Data of the Equity Shares
Our Equity Shares are listed and traded on BSE. For details in connection with the stock market data of the Stock Exchanges, please
refer to the chapter titled “Market Price Information” on page 73 of this Letter of Offer.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

NO ACTION HASBEEN TAKEN ORWILL BE TAKEN THAT WOULD PERMIT APUBLIC OFFERING OF THE RIGHTS
ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES TO OCCUR IN ANY JURISDICTION OTHER THAN INDIA,OR THE
POSSESSION, CIRCULATION OR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL
RELATING TO OUR COMPANY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN ANY
JURISDICTION WHERE ACTION FOR SUCH PURPOSE IS REQUIRED. ACCORDINGLY, THE RIGHTS
ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY,
AND NEITHER THIS LETTER OF OFFER NOR ANY OFFERING MATERIALS OR ADVERTISEMENTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES MAY BE DISTRIBUTED OR
PUBLISHED IN OR FROM ANY COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LEGAL
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE IN SUCH COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION. THIS ISSUE WILL BE MADE IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE SEBI REGULATIONS. EACH PURCHASER OF THE RIGHTS
ENTITLEMENTS OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN THIS IS SUE WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE MADE
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND AGREEMENTS.
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SECTION VII - ISSUE INFORMATION
TERMS OF THE ISSUE

This Section applies to all Investors. ASBA Investors should note that the ASBA process involves procedures that may be different from
that applicable to other Investors and should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications, in this Letter of Offer, the
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter, before submitting an Application
Form. Our Company is not liable for any amendments, modifications or changes in applicable law which may occur after the date of
the Letter of Offer. Investors who are eligible to apply under the ASBA process, are advised to make their independent investigations
and to ensure that the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter is correctly filled up.

Please note that in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020
(“SEBI — Rights Issue Circular ), all investors (including renouncee) shall make an application for a rights issue only through ASBA
facility. The Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis, are subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Letter
of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, including the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter, the MOA
and AOA of our Company, the provisions of the Companies Act, the terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the FEMA, applicable
guidelines and regulations issued by SEBI or other statutory authorities and bodies from time to time, the SEBI Listing Regulations, terms
and conditions as stipulated in the allotment advice or security certificate and rules as may be applicable and introduced from time to
time.

OVERVIEW

The Issue and the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis, are subject to the terms and conditions contained in this
Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter, the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association, the provisions of Companies Act, FEMA, the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
the SEBI Listing Regulations and the guidelines, notifications and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other
statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from the SEBI, the RBI or other regulatory authorities, the terms
of Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchanges and terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment
Advice.

Important:

Dispatch and availability of Issue materials:

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company will at least three days before the Issue Opening Date, dispatch the
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue material, only to the Eligible Equity
Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company and who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the
Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in and may not be construed
as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue
Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail
address, then the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address and who have
made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will
be sent only to their valid e-mail address and incase such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e- mail address, then the
Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Investors can also access the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that
the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) on the websites of:

Our Companyat www.galaxyagrico.com
the Registrar to the Issue at www.purvashare.com
the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com

Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar at https:/
www.linkintime.co.in by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity
Shares in physical form). The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e., www.galaxyagrico.com).

Our Company and the Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer,
the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form. Resident Eligible Shareholders,
who are holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date, can obtain details of their respective
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Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar by entering their Folio Number.

Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders:

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit of Rights
Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our
Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity
Shares in dematerialized form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account (namely, “EGTL Rights issue — Suspense Escrow Demat
Account”) opened by our Company, for the Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating
to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares
held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Resident Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details
of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) credit of the Rights Entitlements
returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings.

Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date i.e. 23™ January, 2026 are requested
to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and details of address proof by way of uploading on Registrar website
the records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their respective Equity Shares) not later than two Working Days prior to
the Issue Closing Date i.e. 11" February, 2026 in order to be eligible to apply for this Issue. Such Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders
are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have been provided to the Company or the Registrar account is
active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer.

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form
as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working
Days prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e. 11" February, 2026, shall not be eligible to make an Application for Rights Equity Shares
against their Rights Entitlements with respect to the equity shares held in physical form.

Application by Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Sharesin physical form:

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit
of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity
Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are
advised to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing
Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date.

Such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders must check the procedure for Application by and credit of Rights Equity Shares in
“Procedure for Application by Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form” on page 98.

Application for Additional Equity Shares

Investors are eligible to apply for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, provided that they are eligible to
apply for Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for all the Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements
without renouncing them in whole or in part. Where the number of additional Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available
for Allotment, the Allotment would be made as per the Basis of Allotment finalised in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.
In case of Under subscription the Board / right issue committee has the right to allot the un-subscribed portion to eligible shareholders.
Applications for additional Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment shall be made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and in the manner as set out in “Basis of Allotment” beginning on page 103.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional Equity Shares.
Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot apply for additional Equity Shares.

Investors to kindly note that after purchasing the Rights Entitlements through On Market Renunciation / Off Market Renunciation, an
Application has to be made for subscribing to the Rights Equity Shares. If no such Application is made by the renouncee on or before
Issue Closing Date, then such Rights Entitlements will get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date and no Rights
Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited. For procedure of Application by shareholders who have purchased
the Right Entitlement through On Market Renunciation / Off Market Renunciation, please refer to the heading titled “Procedure for
Application through the ASBA process™ on page 95 of this Letter of Offer.

Renouncees
All rights or obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds relating to the Issue shall, unless
otherwise specified, apply to the Renouncee(s) as well.

Authority for the Issue

The Board of Directors in its meeting dated September 16, 2024 has authorized this Issue under Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013.
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The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 19" January, 2026 have determined the Issue Price at ¥ 35.87/- per Equity Share and the
Rights Entitlement as 5:1 [5 (Five) Rights Equity Share(s) for every 1 (One) fully paid-up Equity Share(s) held on the Record Date.

Our Company has received In-Principal approval from BSE in accordance with Regulation 28 of the SEBI Listing Regulations for listing
of the Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted in the Issue pursuant to letter dated 04" December, 2025.

Basis for the Issue

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered for subscription for cash to the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose names appear as
beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of the Equity Shares held dematerialized form and on the
register of members of our Company in respect of the Equity Shares held in physical form at the close of business hours on the Record
Date, decided in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, but excludes persons not eligible under the applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

Rights Entitlement (“REs”) (Rights Equity Shares)

Eligible Equity Shareholders whose names appear as a beneficial owner in respect of the Equity Shares held in dematerialized form or
appear in the register of members as an Equity Shareholder of our Company in respect of the Equity Shares held in physical form as on
the Record Date, i.e., 23" January, 2026, are entitled to the number of Rights Equity Shares as set out in the Application Form.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar to the
Issue (https://www.purvashare.com) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding Equity Shares in physical form). The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company
(www.galaxyagrico.com).

Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders before the Issue Opening Date
only in dematerialized form. If the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have not
provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, shall not be eligible to make an Application for Rights
Equity Shares against their Rights Entitlements with respect to the equity shares held in physical form. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can
make an application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective demat accounts, except in case of resident Eligible
Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date.

Our Company is undertaking this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will send the Abridged Letter of Offer,
the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form to the Applicants who have provided an Indian address to our Company and who
are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such
jurisdiction and does not result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. In case the Eligible Equity
Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case the
Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort
basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address and who have
made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will
be sent only to their valid e-mail address and incase such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e- mail address, then the
Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

The Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form may also be accessed on the websites of
the Registrar, and our Company through a link contained in the aforementioned email sent to email addresses of Eligible Equity
Shareholders (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable
securities laws) and on the Stock Exchanges’ websites. The distribution of the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India
is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. No action has been, or will be, taken to permit this Issue in any
jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that the Letter of Offer will be filed with SEBI and the Stock
Exchanges. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the
Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form or any Issue related
materials or advertisements in connection with this Issue may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal
requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter or the Application Form (including by way of electronic means) will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in
which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter
of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form must be treated as sent for information only and should not be acted upon
for making an Application and should not be copied or re- distributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Letter of Offer, the
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form should not, in connection with the
issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would, or might,
contravene local securities laws or regulations. If the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement
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Letter or the Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to
make an application or acquire the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements or makes and Application
will be deemed to have declared, warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery of the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, that it is entitled to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under
the laws of any jurisdiction which apply to such person.

Our Company and the Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer,
the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form.

PRINCIPAL TERMSOF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES ISSUED UNDER THIS ISSUE
Face Value
Each Rights Equity Share will have the face value of 10.

Issue Price
Each Rights Equity Share is being offered at a price of X 35.87/- per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of X 25.87/- per Rights
Equity Share) in the Issue.

The Rights Equity Shares issued in this Issue will be fully paid-up. The Issue Price and other relevant conditions are in accordance with
Regulation 10(4) of the SEBI Takeover Regulations.

The Board, at its meeting held on 19" January, 2026, has determined the Issue Price.

Rights Entitlement Ratio
The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of 5:1 [5 (Five) Rights
Equity Share(s) for every 1 (One) Equity Share(s) held on the Record Date.

Rights of instrument holder
Each Rights Equity Share shall rank pari- passu with the existing Equity Shares of the Company.

Terms of Payment
The entire amount of the Issue Price of ¥ 35.87/- per Rights Equity Share shall be payable at the time of Application.

Fractional Entitlements

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of One Rights Equity Share(s)
for every Five Equity Share(s) held on the Record Date. For Rights Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue, if the
shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than 1 Equity Share(s) or not in the multiple of 1, the fractional entitlement
of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored in the computation of the Rights Entitlement. However, the Eligible Equity
Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored as above will be given preferential consideration for the Allotment of one
Additional Rights Equity Share each if they apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement.

For example, if an Eligible Equity Shareholder holds 1 Equity Shares, such Shareholder will be entitled to 1(One) Rights Equity Shares on
a rights basis and will also be given a preferential consideration for the Allotment of one Additional Rights Equity Share if the
Shareholder has applied for additional Rights Equity Shares.

Also, those Equity Shareholders holding less than 1 Equity Shares and therefore entitled to ‘Zero’ Rights Equity Share under this Issue
shall be dispatched an Application Form with ‘Zero’ entitlement. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are entitled to apply for Additional
Rights Equity Shares and would be given preference in the Allotment of 1 (One) Additional Rights Equity Share, if such Equity
Shareholders have applied for the Additional Rights Equity Shares. However, they cannot renounce the same to third parties.
Application Forms with zero entitlement will be non-negotiable/non-renounceable.

Ranking

The Rights Equity Shares to be issued and allotted pursuant to the Issue shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association and the Articles of Association. The Rights Equity Shares to be issued and Allotted pursuant to the Issue shall rank pari
passu with the existing Equity Shares of our Company, in all respects including dividends.
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Mode of payment of dividend
In the event of declaration of dividend, our Company shall pay dividend to the Eligible Equity Shareholders as per the provisions of the
Companies Act and the provisions of the Articles of Association.

Listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue

The existing Equity Shares of our Company are listed and traded under the ISIN: INE803L01016 on BSE (Scrip Code: 531911). The
Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on BSE subject to necessary
approvals. As per the SEBI —Rights Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN would be credited to the demat account
of the respective Eligible Equity Shareholders before the issue opening date. On the Issue Closing Date, the depositories will suspend
the ISIN of REs for transfer and once the allotment is done post the basis of allotment approved by the designated stock exchange, the
separate ISIN no. INE803L20016, for REs so obtained will be permanently deactivated from the depository system. Investors shall be
able to trade their Rights Entitlements either through On Market Renunciation or through Off Market Renunciation. The trades through
On Market Renunciation and Off Market Renunciation will be settled by transferring the Rights Entitlements through the depository
mechanism.

The Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on BSE subject to necessary
approvals. Our Company has received in-principle approval from BSE through letter no. LOD/Rights/AM/FIP/1290/2025-26 dated 04"
December, 2025. All steps for completion of necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading in the equity shares will be
taken within 7 working days from the finalization of the Basis of Allotment. Our Company will apply to BSE for final approval for the
listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained
trading in the Rights Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue will trade after the listing
thereof.

Upon receipt of such listing and trading approval, the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued pursuant to the Issue shall be debited
from such temporary ISIN and credited in the existing ISIN and thereafter be available for trading under the existing ISIN as fully paid-
up Equity Shares of our Company. The temporary ISIN shall be kept blocked till the receipt of final listing and trading approval from
the Stock Exchanges.

The Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue will be listed as soon as practicable and all steps for completion of the necessary
formalities for listing and commencement of trading of the Rights Equity Shares shall be taken within the specified time.

If permissions to list, deal in and for an official quotation of the Rights Equity Shares are not granted by BSE, our Company will forthwith
repay, without interest, all moneys received from the Applicants in pursuance of the Letter of Offer. If such money is not repaid beyond
eight days after our Company becomes liable to repay it, then our Company and every Director who is an officer in default shall, on and
from such expiry of eight days, be liable to repay the money, with interest as applicable.

For details of trading and listing of Rights Equity Shares, please refer to the heading “Terms of Payment” at page 177 of this Letter of
Offer.

Subscription to the Issue by our Promoters and Promoters Group

For details of the intent and extent of the subscription by our Promoters and Promoters Group, see “Capital Structure — Intention and
extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoters Group in the Issue” on page 37.

Compliance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations
Our Company shall comply with all requirements of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Our Company shall comply with all disclosure and
accounting norms as specified by SEBI from time to time.

Rights of holders of Equity Shares
e  Subject to applicable laws, the Equity Shareholders shall have the following rights:
Theright toreceive dividend, if declared;
Theright to vote in person, or by proxy;
Theright to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced;
Theright to receive surplus on liquidation;
Theright of free transferability of Equity Shares;
Theright to attend general meetings and exercise voting powers in accordance with law, unless prohibited by law; and
Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the Companies Act, the Memorandum
of Association and the Articles of Association

General terms of the Issue Market Lot
The Equity Shares of our Company are tradable only in dematerialized form. The market lot for Equity Shares in dematerialized mode
is one Equity Share.



Joint Holders

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to hold such Equity Share as the
joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the provisions contained in the Articles of Association. Application Forms would be
required to be signed by all the joint holders to be considered valid.

Nomination

Nomination facility is available in respect of the Rights Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of the Section 72 of the
Companies Act read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014. An Investor can nominate any person
by filling the relevant details in the Application Form in the space provided for this purpose.

Since the Allotment of Rights Equity Shares is in dematerialized form only, there is no need to make a separate nomination for the
Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted in the Issue. Nominations registered with respective Depository Participant of the Investor would
prevail. Any Investor desirous of changing the existing nomination is requested to inform its respective Depository Participant.

Arrangements for Disposal of Odd Lots
Our Equity Shares are traded in dematerialized form only and therefore the marketable lot is one Equity Share and hence, no
arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required.

New Financial Instruments
There are no new financial instruments like deep discount bonds, debentures with warrants, secured premium notes etc. issued by our
Company.

Restrictions on transfer and transmission of shares and on their consolidation/splitting

There are no restrictions on transfer and transmission and on their consolidation/splitting of shares issued pursuant to this Issue.
However, the Investors should note that pursuant to provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, with effect from April 1, 2019, except
in case of transmission or transposition of securities, the request for transfer of securities shall not affected unless the securities are held
in the dematerialized form with a depository

Notices

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Our Company and will send the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter
and the Application Form to the Applicants who have provided an Indian address to our Company and who are located in jurisdictions
where the offer and sale of the Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result
in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid
e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not
provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided
by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address and who have
made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will
be sent only to their valid e-mail address and incase such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e- mail address, then the
Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published in one English language national
daily newspaper with wide circulation, one Hindi language national daily newspaper with wide circulation and Marathi daily newspaper
with wide circulation at the place where our Registered Office is situated.

The Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form shall also be submitted with the Stock
Exchanges for making the same available on their websites.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION

How to Apply

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in
this Issue are mandatorily required to use the ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such
Applications before making their Application through ASBA. Further, the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares
in physical form as on the Record Date can apply for this Issue through ASBA facility. For details of procedure for application by the
resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date, see “Procedure for Application by
Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form” on page 98.

Our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective directors and officers, and the Registrar shall not
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take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions etc. in relation to Applications accepted by SCSBs,
Applications uploaded by SCSBs, Applications accepted but not uploaded by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded without
blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts.

Application Form

The Application Form for the Rights Equity Shares offered as part of this Issue would be sent to email address of the Eligible Equity
Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the
Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions.

The Application Form along with the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter shall be sent through email and speed
post at least three days before the Issue Opening Date. In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Application Form along
with the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter shall be sent through email-to-email address if they have provided an
Indian address to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted
under laws of such jurisdictions.

Our Company and the Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer,
the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form.

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar shall be responsible for delay in the receipt of the Letter of Offer, the Letter of
Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form attributable to non-availability of the email
addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or electronic transmission delays or failures, or if the Application Forms or the Rights
Entitlement Letters are delayed or misplaced in the transit.

Investors can access the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the
Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) on the websites of:
Our Companyat www.galaxyagrico.com

the Registrar to the Issue at www.purvashare.com

the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com

The Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar i.e
https:// www.linkintime.co.in by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding Equity Shares in physical form). The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e.,
www.galaxyagrico.com). The Application Form can be used by the Investors, Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the Renouncees, to
make Applications in this Issue basis the Rights Entitlements credited in their respective demat accounts or demat suspense escrow
account, as applicable. Please note that one single Application Form shall be used by the Investors to make Applications for all Rights
Entitlements available in a particular demat account. Further, in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the resident Eligible
Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date can apply through this Issue by first furnishing the
details of their demat account along with their self-attested PAN and details of address proof by way of uploading on Registrar website
the records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their respective Equity Shares at least two Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Date i.e. 11" February, 2026 after which they can apply through ASBA facility.

In case of Investors who have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, such Investors will
have to apply for the Rights Equity Shares from the same demat account in which they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in case
of multiple demat accounts, the Investors are required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat account. Investors may
accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares by submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or
online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block
Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.

Investors are also advised to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up stating therein, the ASBA Account in which an
amount equivalent to the amount payable on Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB;

Please note that Applications without depository account details shall be treated as incomplete and shall be rejected. Applicants should
note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and PAN number in the Application Form or while submitting
application through online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Incorrect
depository account details or PAN number could lead to rejection of the Application. For details see “Grounds for Technical Rejection”
on page 102. Our Company, the Registrar and the SCSB shall not be liable for any incorrect demat details provided by the Applicants.

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors may choose to accept the offer to participate in this
Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please note that Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application in this Issue by way of
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plain paper applications shall not be permitted to renounce any portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Application on
Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 95.

Options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholder

Details of each Eligible Equity Shareholders RE will be sent to the Eligible Equity shareholder separately along with the Application
Form and would also be available on the website of the Registrar to the Issue at https://www.purvashare.com and link of the same
would also be available on the website of our Company at (www.galaxyagrico.com). Respective Eligible Equity Shareholder can check
their entitlement by keying their requisite details therein.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders will have the option to:
o Applyfor his Rights Entitlement in full;
Apply for his Rights Entitlement in part (without renouncing the other part);
Apply for his Rights Entitlement in full and apply for additional Rights Equity Shares;
Apply for his Rights Entitlement in part and renounce the other part of the Rights Equity Shares; and
Renounce his Rights Entitlement in full.

In accordance with the SEBI Right Issue Circular, the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form
as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working
Days prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e. 11" February, 2026, desirous of subscribing to Right Equity Shares may also apply in this Issue
during the Issue Period through ASBA mode. Such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders must check the procedure for Application in
“Procedure for Application by Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form” on page 98.

Procedure for Application through the ASBA process

Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue through ASBA process, may submit the Application Form to the Designated
Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing
such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.

Investors should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Application Form, or have otherwise provided an authorization to the
SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the
Application Form, as the case may be, at the time of submission of the Application.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

For the list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process, please refer to
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/Other Action.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34. For details on Designated Branches of
SCSBs collecting the Application Form, please refer the above-mentioned link. Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the
requirements of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, ASBA
Applications may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs, in case of Applications made through ASBA facility.

Acceptance of this Issue
Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares by submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch of
the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such
SCSBto block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing
Date, Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted
by the Stock Exchanges.

Applications submitted to anyone other than the Designated Branches of the SCSB are liable to be rejected.

Investors can also make Application on plain paper under ASBA process mentioning all necessary details as mentioned under the section
“Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 95.

Additional Rights Equity Shares

Investors are eligible to apply for additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, provided that they are
eligible to apply for Rights Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for all the Rights Equity Shares forming part of
their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in part. Applications for additional Rights Equity Shares shall be
considered and allotment shall be made at the sole discretion of the Board, subject to applicable sectoral caps, and in consultation if
necessary with the Designated Stock Exchange and in the manner prescribed under the section titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 84.
Applications for additional Rights Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment shall be made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and in the manner prescribed under the section “Basis of Allotment” on page 103.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional Rights Equity Shares.
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Applications by Overseas Corporate Bodies By virtue of the Circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003, issued by the RBI, Overseas
Corporate Bodies (“OCBs”), have been derecognized as an eligible class of investors and the RBI has subsequently issued the Foreign
Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to OCBs) Regulations, 2003.

Accordingly, the existing Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company who do not wish to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares being
offered but wish to renounce the same in favour of Renouncee shall not be able to renounce the same (whether for consideration or
otherwise), in favour of OCB(s). The RBI has however clarified in its circular, A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 44, dated December 8,
2003, that OCBs which are incorporated and are not and were not at any time subject to any adverse notice from the RBI, are permitted
to undertake fresh investments as incorporated non-resident entities in terms of Regulation 5(1) of RBI Notification No.20/2000-RB
dated May 3, 2000, under the foreign direct investment scheme with the prior approval of Government of India if the investment is
through the government approval route and with the prior approval of RBI if the investment is through automatic route on case by case
basis. Eligible Equity Shareholders renouncing their rights in favour of such OCBs may do so provided such Renouncee obtains a prior
approval from the RBI. On submission of such RBI approval to our Company at our Registered Office, the OCB shall receive the
Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form.

Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts, either in full or in part (a) by using the
secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges; or (b) through an off - market transfer, during the Renunciation Period. The Investors
should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation.

In accordance with the SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the resident Eligible Equity
Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date shall be required to provide their demat account details to our
Company or the Registrar to the Issue for credit of REs not later than two working days prior to issue closing date, such that credit of
REs in their demat account takes place at least one day before issue closing date, thereby enabling them to renounce their Rights
Entitlements through Off Market Renunciation.

Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of trading in the Rights Entitlements.
Investors who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should consult their tax advisor or stock broker regarding any cost, applicable
taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage) that may be levied for trading in Rights Entitlements. Our Company accept no
responsibility to bear or pay any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage), and such costs will be incurred
solely by the Investors.

On Market Renunciation

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts by trading/selling them on the secondary
market platform of the Stock Exchanges through a registered stock broker in the same manner as the existing Equity Shares of our
Company.

In this regard, in terms of provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements credited
to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges under ISIN:
INE803L.20016, subject to requisite approvals. The details for trading in Rights Entitlements will be as specified by the Stock Exchanges
from time to time. The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights Entitlements
is 1 (one) Rights Entitlements.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market Renunciation, i.e., Monday 02"
February 2026 to Thursday 5™ February 2026 (both days inclusive). The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to
sell their Rights Entitlements will have to do so through their registered stock brokers by quoting the ISIN: INE803L20016 and
indicating the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to sell. The Investors can place order for sale of Rights Entitlements only to
the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on secondary market platform of BSE under automatic order matching
mechanism and on ‘T+1 rolling settlement basis’, where ‘T’ refers to the date of trading. The transactions will be settled on trade-for-
trade basis. Upon execution of the order, the stock broker will issue a contract note in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchanges and the SEBI.

Off Market Renunciation The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts by way of
an off- market transfer through a depository participant. The Rights Entitlements can be transferred in dematerialized form only. Eligible Equity
Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off- market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will have to do so through their depository
participant by issuing a delivery instruction slip quoting the ISIN INE803L20016, the details of the buyer and the details of the Rights
Entitlements they intend to transfer. The buyer of the Rights Entitlements(unless already having given a standing receipt instruction) has
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to issue a receipt instruction slip to their depository participant. The Investors can transfer Rights Entitlements only to the extent
of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of the depository participants. The detailed
rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-market transfer shall be as specified by the NSDL and CDSL from time to time.

The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa shall be subject to provisions of
FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. However, the
facility of renunciation shall not be available to or operate in favour of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless
the same is in compliance with the FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance
from time to time.

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the Investors on or before the Issue Closing Date
shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date.

Applications on Plain Paper under ASBA process

An Eligible Equity Shareholder who has neither received the Application Form nor is in a position to obtain the Application Form either from
our Company, Registrar to the Issue, Manager to the Issuer or from the website of the Registrar, can make an application to subscribe to
the Issue on plain paper through ASBA process. Eligible Equity Shareholders shall submit the plain paper application to the Designated
Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the said bank
account maintained with the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper will not be accepted from any address outside India.

Please note that the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall not be entitled to renounce their
Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Application Form for any purpose including renunciation even if it is received
subsequently, may make an Application to subscribe to the Issue on plain paper, along with an account payee cheque or demand drawn
at par, net of bank and postal charges, payable at Bengaluru and the Investor should send such plain paper Application by registered post
directly to the Registrar to the Issue. For details of the mode of payment, see “Modes of Payment” on page 186.

The envelope should be super scribed “GALAXY AGRICO EXPORTS LIMITED — RIGHT ISSUES” and should be postmarked in
India. The application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholders including joint holders, in the same order and as
per the specimen recorded with our Company/Depositories, must reach the office of the Registrar to the Issue before the Issue Closing
Date and should contain the following particulars:

Name of our Issuer, being GALAXY AGRICO EXPORTS LIMITED

Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the same order and as per specimen recorded
with our Company or the Depository);

Registered Folio Number/ DP and Client 1D No.;

Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date;

Allotment option preferred - only Demat form;

Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to;

Number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;

Number of Additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any;

Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for within the Right Entitlements;

Total amount paid at the rate of ¥ 35.87/- per Rights Equity Share;

Details of the ASBA Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the relevant SCSB;

In case of NR Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an Indian address, details of the NRE/FCNR/NRO Account such
as the account number, name, address and branch of the SCSB with which the account is maintained;

Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and officials appointed by the courts,
PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each Eligible Equity Shareholder in case of joint names, irrespective of the total value
of the Rights Equity Shares applied for pursuant to the Issue. Documentary evidence for exemption to be provided by the applicants;

Authorization to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the Application Money in the ASBA Account;
Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same sequence and order as they appear in the
records of the SCSB);

Additionally, all such Applicants are deemed to have accepted the following:

“I/We understand that neither the Rights Entitlement nor the Rights Equity Shares have been, and will be, registered under the United
States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“US Securities Act”) or any United States state securities laws, and may not be offered,
sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United States or to the territories or possessions thereof (“United States ”) or to, or for
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the account or benefit of a United States person as defined in the Regulation S of the US Securities Act (“Regulation S”). I/ we
understand the Rights Equity Shares referred to in this application are being offered in India but not in the United States. I/ we
understand the offering to which this application relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any
Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States, or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the said
Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in the United States. Accordingly, I/ we understand this application should not be forwarded
to or transmitted in or to the United States at any time. I/ we confirm that I/ we are not in the United States and understand that neither
us, nor the Registrar, or any other person acting on behalf of us will accept subscriptions from any person, or the agent of any person,
who appears to be, or who we, the Registrar, or any other person acting on behalf of us have reason to believe is a resident of the United
States “U.S. Person” (as defined in Regulation S) or is ineligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws of their jurisdiction.

“I/' We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Equity Shares which may be acquired by us in any jurisdiction or under any
circumstances in which such offer or sale is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation
except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws or regulations. We satisfy, and each account for
which we are acting satisfies, all suitability standards for investors in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed by the
jurisdiction of our residence.

I/ We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares may not be reoffered, resold, pledged or otherwise
transferred except in an offshore transaction in compliance with Regulation S, or otherwise pursuant to an exemption from, or in a
transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act.

I/We (i) am/are, and the person, if any, for whose account I/we am/are acquiring such Rights Entitlement, and/or the Equity Shares,
is/are outside the United States or a Qualified Institutional Buyer (as defined in the US Securities Act), and (ii) is/are acquiring the
Rights Entitlement and/or the Equity Shares in an offshore transaction meeting the requirements of Regulation S or in a transaction
exempt from, or not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act.

In cases where multiple Application Forms are submitted for Applications pertaining to Rights Entitlements credited to the same demat
account or in demat suspense escrow account, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain paper
Application, such Applications shall be liable to be rejected.

Investors are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. Failure to do so could result in an application being rejected, with our
Company, and the Registrar not having any liability to the Investor. The plain paper Application format will be available on the website
of the Registrar at https://www.purvashare.com and our company at www.galaxyagrico.com. Our Company, and the Registrar shall not
be responsible if the Applications are not uploaded by SCSB or funds are not blocked in the Investors’ ASBA Accounts on or before the
Issue Closing Date.

Last date for Application

The last date for submission of the duly filled in Application Form is 11 February, 2026. Our Board or any committee thereof may extend
the said date for such period as it may determine from time to time, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, and subject
to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date.

If the Application together with the amount payable is either (i) not blocked with an SCSB; or (ii) not received by the Bankers to the
Issue or the Registrar on or before the close of banking hours on the Issue Closing Date or such date as may be extended by our Board
or any committee thereof, the invitation to offer contained in the Letter of Offer shall be deemed to have been declined and our Board
or any committee thereof shall be at liberty to dispose of the Equity Shares hereby offered, as provided under “Terms of the Issue

- Basis of Allotment” on page 103.

Modes of Payment
All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar will not accept any payments
against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through ASBA facility.

In case of Application through ASBA facility, the Investor agrees to block the entire amount payable on Application with the submission
of the Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block an amount, equivalent to the amount payable on Application, in the Investor’s
ASBA Account.

After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in the Application Form, the SCSB
shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the Application Form until the Transfer Date. On the Transfer
Date, pursuant to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment as approved by the Designated Stock Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer
such amount as per the Registrar’s instruction from the ASBA Account into the Allotment Account which shall be a separate bank
account maintained by our Company, other than the bank account referred to in sub-section (3) of Section 40 of the Companies Act,
2013. The balance amount remaining after the finalization of the Basis of Allotment on the Transfer Date shall be unblocked by the
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SCSBs on the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the Registrar to the respective SCSB.

The Investors would be required to give instructions to the respective SCSBs to block the entire amount payable on their application at
the time of the submission of the Application Form.

The SCSB may reject the application at the time of acceptance of Application Form if the ASBA Account, details of which have been
provided by the Investor in the Application Form does not have sufficient funds equivalent to the amount payable on Application
mentioned in the Application Form. Subsequent to the acceptance of the Application by the SCSB, our Company would have a right to
reject the Application on technical grounds as set forth hereinafter.

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar will not accept any payments
against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through ASBA facility.

Mode of payment for Resident Investors
All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar will not accept any payments
against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through ASBA facility.

Mode of payment for Non-Resident Investors

As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to issue Equity Shares to non-resident
shareholders including additional Equity Shares. Further, as per the Master Direction on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4,
2018 issued by RBI, non-residents may, amongst other things, (i) subscribe for additional shares over and above their Rights
Entitlements; (ii) renounce the shares offered to them either in full or part thereof in favour of a person named by them; or (iii) apply for
the shares renounced in their favour. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of Equity Shares shall be, amongst
other things, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by RBI under FEMA in the matter of Application, refund of Application
Money, Allotment of Equity Shares and issue of Rights Entitlement Letters/ letters of Allotment/Allotment advice. If a non-resident or
NRI Investor has specific approval from RBI, in connection with his shareholding in our Company, such person should enclose a copy
of such approval with the Application details and send it to the Registrar at ahmedabad@Ilinkintime.co.in

As regards Applications by Non-Resident Investors, the following conditions shall apply:
Individual non-resident Indian Applicants who are permitted to subscribe to Rights Equity Shares by applicable local securities laws
can obtain Application Forms on the websites of the Registrar and our Company.

Note: In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the
Application Form shall be sent to their email addresses if they have provided their Indian address to our Company or if they are located
in certain jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions. The Letter of
Offer will be provided, only through email, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares
is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard.

Application Forms will not be accepted from non-resident Investors in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale of the Rights Entitlements and
Rights Equity Shares may be restricted by applicable securities laws.

Payment by non-residents must be made only through ASBA facility and using permissible accounts in accordance with FEMA, FEMA
Rules and requirements prescribed by the RBI.

Eligible Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying on a repatriation basis by using the Non-Resident Forms should authorize their
SCSB to block their Non-Resident External (“NRE”) accounts, or Foreign Currency Non-Resident (“FCNR”) Accounts, and Eligible
Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying on a non-repatriation basis by using Resident Forms should authorize their SCSB to block
their Non- Resident Ordinary (“NRO”) accounts for the full amount payable, at the time of the submission of the Application Form to
the SCSB. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of the Rights Equity Shares shall be inter alia, subject to
the conditions imposed from time to time by the RBI under the FEMA in the matter of refund of Application Money, allotment of Rights Equity
Shares and issue of letter of allotment. If an NR or NRI Investors has specific approval from RBI, in connection with his shareholding,
he should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application Form.

In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from the investment in Equity Shares can be
remitted outside India, subject to tax, as applicable according to the Income-tax Act. In case Equity Shares are Allotted on a non-
repatriation basis, the dividend and sale proceeds of the Equity Shares cannot be remitted outside India. Non-resident Renouncees who
are not Eligible Equity Shareholders must submit regulatory approval for applying for additional Equity Shares in the Issue.

Procedure for application by Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form
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Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit
of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity
Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are
advised to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing
Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date.

Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have opened their
demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following procedure for participating in this Issue:

The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall send a letter to the Registrar containing the name(s), address, e-mail address, contact details and
the details of their demat account along with copy of self-attested PAN and self- attested client master sheet of their demat account either
by e-mail, post, speed post, courier, or hand delivery so as to reach to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Date i.e 11"" February, 2026. Alternatively, the said documents can be uploaded in the online portal of the RTA at https:/
www.linkintime.co.in

I

The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights Entitlements of such Eligible Equity
Shareholders to their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date;

The remaining procedure for Application shall be same as set out in “Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” beginning on
page 95.

In accordance with the SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the resident Eligible Equity
Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date shall be required to provide their demat account details to our
Company or the Registrar to the Issue for credit of REs not later than two working days prior to issue closing date, such that credit of
REs in their demat account takes place at least one day before issue closing date, thereby enabling them to renounce their Rights
Entitlements through Off Market Renunciation.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, WHO HOLD EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL
FORM AS ON RECORD DATE AND WHO HAVE NOT FURNISHED THE DETAILS OF THEIR RESPECTIVE DEMAT
ACCOUNTS TO THE REGISTRAR OR OUR COMPANY AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE
CLOSING DATE, SHALL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO MAKE AN APPLICATION FOR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES AGAINST
THEIR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE EQUITY SHARES HELD IN PHYSICAL FORM.

Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN BE ALLOTTED ONLY IN
DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE
HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE.

FOR DETAILS, SEE “ALLOTMENT ADVICES/ REFUND ORDERS” ON PAGE 104
General instructions for Investors

Please read this Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer and Application Form carefully to understand the Application process and applicable
settlement process.

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form
as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working
Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall not be eligible to make an Application for Rights Equity Shares against their Rights
Entitlements with respect to the equity shares held in physical form.

Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you.

The Application Form can be used by both the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Renouncees.

Application should be made only through the ASBA facility.

Application should be complete in all respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to any of the particulars required to

be given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with the terms of this Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form are liable to be rejected.
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In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning all necessary details as mentioned under
the section “Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 95

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in
this Issue are mandatorily required to use the ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such
Applications before making their Application through ASBA.

An Investor, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA enabled bank account with an
SCSB, prior to making the Application.

Applications should be submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made online/electronic through the website of the SCSBs
(if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective
ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m.
(Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

Applications should not be submitted to the Bankers to the Issue or Escrow Collection Bank (assuming that such Escrow Collection
Bank is not an SCSB), our Company and the Registrar.

In case of Application through ASBA facility, Investors are required to provide necessary details, including details of the ASBA
Account, authorization to the SCSB to block an amount equal to the Application Money in the ASBA Account mentioned in the
Application Form.

All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants, should mention their PAN allotted under the
Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the Application. Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or the State Government,
the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, Applications without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable
to be rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the demat accounts for Investors for which PAN details have not been verified shall
be “suspended for credit” and no Allotment and credit of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue shall be made into the accounts of
such Investors.

In case of Application through ASBA facility, all payments will be made only by blocking the amount in the ASBA Account. Cash
payment or payment by cheque or demand or pay order or NEFT or RTGS or through any other mode is not acceptable for application
through ASBA process. In case payment is made in contravention of this, the Application will be deemed invalid and the Application
Money will be refunded and no interest will be paid thereon.

For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should be either in English or Hindi or in any
other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution of India. Signatures other than in any such language or thumb
impression must be attested by a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The Investors must sign
the Application as per the specimen signature recorded with the SCSB.

In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must sign the relevant part of the Application
Form in the same order and as per the specimen signature(s) recorded with the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will
be made in the first Applicant’s name and all communication will be addressed to the first Applicant.

All communication in connection with Application for the Rights Equity Shares, including any change in address of the Eligible Equity
Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior to the date of Allotment in this Issue quoting the name of the first/sole Applicant,
Physical folio number and Application Form number, as applicable. In case of any change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders,
the Eligible Equity Shareholders should send the intimation for such change to the respective depository participant for shares held in
electronic corm, and to our Company or the Registrar in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form.

Only persons outside restricted jurisdictions and who are eligible to subscribe for Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares under
applicable securities laws are eligible to participate.

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25,
2012 within the periods stipulated therein, Applications made through ASBA facility may be submitted at the Designated Branches of
the SCSBs. Application through ASBA facility in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs who provide such facility.

In terms of the SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for making applications by banks on their
own account using ASBA facility, SCSBs should have a separate account in own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such
account shall be used solely for the purpose of making application in public/ rights issues and clear demarcated funds should be available
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in such account for ASBA applications. In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account
must be opened. Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status of the Applicant is liable to be rejected
at the sole discretion of our Company.

Additional general instructions for Investors in relation to making of an application

Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you. Application should be complete in all respects. The Application Form
found incomplete with regard to any of the particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with
the terms of the Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form
are liable to be rejected. The Application Form must be filled in English.

Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account details and occupation (“Demographic
Details”) are updated, true and correct, in all respects. Investors applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the
Investors, DP ID and Client ID provided by them in the Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the case may be, the
Registrar will obtain Demographic Details from the Depository. Therefore, Investors applying under this Issue should carefully fill in
their Depository Account details in the Application. These Demographic Details would be used for all correspondence with such
Investors including mailing of the letters intimating unblocking of bank account of the respective Investor and/or refund. The
Demographic Details given by the Investors in the Application Form would not be used for any other purposes by the Registrar. Hence,
Investors are advised to update their Demographic Details as provided to their Depository Participants. The Allotment Advice and the
e-mail intimating unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be e-mailed to the address of the Investor as per the e-mail
address provided to our Company or the Registrar or Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar will give
instructions to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Equity Shares are not Allotted to such Investor.
Please note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our Company, the SCSBs, Registrar or shall be liable
to compensate the Investor for any losses caused due to any such delay or be liable to pay any interest for such delay. In case no
corresponding record is available with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the Investors (including the order of
names of joint holders), (b) DP ID, and (c) Client ID, then such Application Forms are liable to be rejected.

By signing the Application Forms, Investors would be deemed to have authorized the Depositories to provide, upon request, to the
Registrar, the required Demographic Details as available on its records.

Investors are required to ensure that the number of Equity Shares applied for by them do not exceed the prescribed limits under the
applicable law.

Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to your jurisdiction.
Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this ground.

Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due torisk of delay/ restrictions in making any physical Application.

Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order.

Do not submit multiple Applications.

No investment under the FDI route (i.e any investment which would result in the investor holding 10% or more of the fully diluted paid-
up equity share capital of the Company or any FDI investment for which an approval from the government was taken in the past) will
be allowed in the Issue unless such application is accompanied with necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval from
the government. It will be the sole responsibility of the investors to ensure that the necessary approval or the pre-existing approval from
the government is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue. Our Company will not be responsible for any allotments made by
relying on such approvals.

An Applicant being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of RBI and in order to apply for this issue as a incorporated
non-resident must do so in accordance with the FDI Circular 2020 and Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instrument) Rules,
2019.

Do’s:
Ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in.

Except for Application submitted on behalf of the Central or the State Government, residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by
the courts, each Applicant should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act.

Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account details and occupation (“Demographic
Details”) are updated, true and correct, in all respects.

Investors should provide correct DP ID and client ID/ folio number while submitting the Application. Such DP ID and Client 1D/ folio
number should match the demat account details in the records available with Company and/or Registrar, failing which such Application
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is liable to be rejected. Investor will be solely responsible for any error or inaccurate detail provided in the Application. Our Company,
SCSBs or the Registrar will not be liable for any such rejections.

Don’ts:
Do not applyif you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to your jurisdiction.

Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this ground.

Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any physical Application.

Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order.

Do not submit multiple Applications.

Do’s for Investors applying through ASBA:

Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant and beneficiary account are correct and the beneficiary account is activated as

the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted in the dematerialized form only.

Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details of the correct bank account have been
provided in the Application.

Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Rights Equity Shares (including additional Rights Equity Shares) applied
for} X {Application Money of Rights Equity Shares}) available in ASBA Account mentioned in the Application Form before submitting
the Application to the respective Designated Branch of the SCSB.

Ensure that you have authorized the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount payable on application mentioned in the
Application Form, in the ASBA Account, of which details are provided in the Application and have signed the same.

Ensure that you have a bank account with an SCSB providing ASBA facility in your location and the Application is made through that
SCSB providing ASBA facility in such location.

Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your submission of the Application Form in
physical form or plain paper Application.

Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in which the beneficiary account is held with
the Depository Participant. In case the Application Form is submitted in joint names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in
same joint names and such names are in the same sequence in which they appear in the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement
Letter.

Don’ts for Investors applying through ASBA:

Do not submit the Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper Application to a Designated Branch of the SCSB or vice
versa.

Do not send your physical Application to the Registrar, the Escrow Collection Bank (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not
an SCSB), a branch of the SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company; instead submit the same to a Designated

Branch of the SCSB only.
Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process.

Grounds for Technical Rejection

Applications made in this Issue are liable to be rejected on the following grounds:

DP ID and Client ID mentioned in Application does not match with the DP ID and Client ID records available with the Registrar.
Details of PAN mentioned in the Application does not match with the PAN records available with the Registrar.

Sending an Application to our Company, Registrar, Escrow Collection Bank(s)(assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not a
SCSB), to a branch of a SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB.

Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the Application Money.
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Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Application Form having been frozen
pursuant to regulatory orders.

Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein.
Submission of more than one Application Form for Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account.
Multiple Application Forms, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application.

Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of
Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts).

Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, except Applications by minors having valid
demat accounts as per the Demographic Details provided by the Depositories.

Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own name with any other SCSB.

Application Forms which are not submitted by the Investors within the time periods prescribed in the Application Form and this Letter
of Offer.

Physical Application Forms not duly signed bythe sole or joint Investors, as applicable.
Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated cheques, money order, postal order or outstation demand s.

If an Investor is (a) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any interim relief then failure to attach a
copy of such SEBI order allowing the Investor to subscribe to their Rights
Entitlements.

Applications which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in, electronically transmitted from or dispatched
from the United States (other than from persons in the United States who are U.S. QIBs and QPs) or other jurisdictions where the offer
and sale of the Equity Shares is not permitted under laws of such jurisdictions; (ii) does not include the relevant certifications set out in
the Application Form, including to the effect that the person submitting and/or renouncing the Application Form is (a) both a U.S. QIB
and a QP, if in the United States or a U.S. Person or (b) outside the United States and is a non-U.S. Person, and in each case such person
is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable securities laws and is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to
such person in connection with this Issue; and our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot any Equity Shares in respect of any such
Application Form.

Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of applicable securities laws.

Application from Investors that are residing in U.S. address as per the depository records (other than from persons in the United States
who are U.S. QIBs and QPs).

IT IS MANDATORY FOR ALL THE INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE TO APPLY THROUGH THE ASBA
PROCESS, TO RECEIVE THEIR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM AND TO THE SAME
DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY THE INVESTOR
AS ON THE RECORD DATE. ALL INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE SHOULD MENTION THEIR
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT’S NAME, DP ID AND BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER/ FOLIO NUMBER IN THE
APPLICATION FORM. INVESTORS MUST ENSURE THAT THE NAME GIVEN IN THE APPLICATION FORM IS
EXACTLY THE SAME AS THE NAME IN WHICH THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS HELD. IN CASE THE
APPLICATION FORM IS SUBMITTED IN JOINT NAMES, IT SHOULD BE ENSURED THAT THE DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT IS ALSO HELD IN THE SAME JOINT NAMES AND ARE IN THE SAME SEQUENCE IN WHICH THEY
APPEAR IN THE APPLICATION FORM OR PLAIN PAPER APPLICATIONS, AS THE CASE MAY BE.

Investors applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the Investors, Depository Participant’s name and
identification number and beneficiary account number provided by them in the Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the
case may be, the Registrar will obtain Demographic Details from the Depository. Hence, Investors applying under this Issue should
carefully fill in their Depository Account details in the Application.
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These Demographic Details would be used for all correspondence with such Investors including mailing of the letters intimating
unblocking of bank account of the respective Investor and/or refund. The Demographic Details given by the Investors in the Application
Form would not be used for any other purposes by the Registrar. Hence, Investors are advised to update their Demographic Details as
provided to their Depository Participants. By signing the Application Forms, the Investors would be deemed to have authorized the
Depositories to provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic Details as available on its records.

The Allotment advice and the email intimating unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be emailed to the address of the
Investor as per the email address provided to our Company or the Registrar or Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The
Registrar will give instructions to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Rights Equity Shares are not
Allotted to such Investor. Please note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our Company, the SCSBs,
Registrar shall be liable to compensate the Investor for any losses caused due to any such delay or be liable to pay any interest for such
delay.

In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the Investors (including the
order of names of joint holders), (b) the DP ID, and (c) the beneficiary account number, then such Application Forms s are liable to be
rejected.

Multiple Applications

A separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of a Mutual Fund registered with the SEBI and such Applications shall
not be treated as multiple applications. For details, see “Investment by Mutual Funds” below on page 199.In cases where multiple
Applications are submitted, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application or
multiple plain paper Applications, such Applications shall be treated as multiple applications and are liable to be rejected (other than
multiple applications submitted by any of the Promoters or members of the Promoters Group as described in Capital Structure — Intention
and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoters Group in the Issue ” on page 37.

Underwriting
This Issue is not underwritten and our Company has not entered into any underwriting arrangement.

Withdrawal of Application
An Investor who has applied in this Issue may withdraw their application at any time during Issue Period by approaching the SCSB

where application is submitted. However, no Investor, applying through ASBA facility, may withdraw their application post the Issue
Closing Date.

Issue Schedule

Issue Opening Date* Monday 02" February 2026
Last Date for On Market Renunciation# Thursday 5" February 2026
Issue Closing Date Wednesday 11" February 2026
Finalizing the basis of allotment with the Designated Stock Exchange Thursday 12" February 2026
Date of Allotment (on or about) Friday 13" February, 2026
Initiation of refunds Friday 13" February, 2026
Date of Credit (On or about) Friday 13" February, 2026
Date of Listing (On or about) Friday 13" February, 2026

*QOur Board may, however, decide to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the
Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).

**|nvestors are advised to ensure that the Application Forms are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our Company, and/or
the Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of Application Forms or on before the Issue
Closing Date.

#Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that
the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s)on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.
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Basis of Allotment

Subject to the provisions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the
Rights Entitlement Letter, the Articles of Association of our Company and the approval of the Designated Stock Exchange, our Board
will proceed to allot the Rights Equity Shares in the following order of priority:

Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights Entitlement either in full or in part and also to
the Renouncee(s) who has/have applied for Rights Equity Shares renounced in its/their favor, in full or in part.

As per SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the fractional entitlements are to be ignored, therefore those Equity Shareholders holding less than 1
(One) Equity Shares would be entitled to ‘Zero’ Rights Equity Shares under this Issue, Application Form with ‘Zero’ entitlement will
be sent to such shareholders. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are entitled to apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares and would be
given preference in the allotment of 1 (One) Rights Equity Share if, such Equity Shareholders have applied for the Additional Rights
Equity Shares, subject to availability of Rights Equity shares post allocation towards Rights Entitlement applied for. Allotment under
this head shall be considered if there are any un-subscribed Equity Shares after Allotment under (a) above. If the number of Rights
Equity Shares required for Allotment under this head is more than number of Rights Equity Shares available after Allotment under (2)
above, the Allotment would be made on a fair and equitable basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.

Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for the full extent of their Rights Entitlement and have also applied for
Additional Rights Equity Shares shall be made as far as possible on an equitable basis having due regard to the number of Equity Shares
held by them on the Record Date, provided there are unsubscribed Rights Equity Shares after making full Allotment under (a) and (b)
above. The Allotment of such Equity Shares will be at the sole discretion of our Board in consultation with the Designated Stock
Exchange, as a part of the Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour and also have applied for
Additional Rights Equity Shares provided there is surplus available after making full Allotment under (a), (b) and (c) above. The
Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares shall be made on a proportionate basis as part of the Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

Allotment to any other person that our Board may deem fit provided there is surplus available after making Allotment under (a), (b), (c)
and (d) above, and the decision of our Board in this regard shall be final and binding.

After taking into account Allotment to be made under (a) to (e) above, if there is any unsubscribed portion, the same shall be deemed to
be ‘unsubscribed’ for the purpose of Regulation 3(1)(b) of the SEBI Takeover Regulations.

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send to the Designated Branches, a list
of the ASBA Investors who have been Allotted Rights Equity Shares in the Issue, along with:

The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by our Company for the Issue, for each
successful ASBA Application;

The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; and

The details of rejected ASBA Applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective ASBA Accounts.

In the event of over subscription, Allotment shall be made within the overall size of the Issue.

Allotment Advices/Refund Orders

Our Company will issue and dispatch Allotment advice, refund instructions or demat credit of securities and/or letters of regret, along
with crediting the Allotted Rights Equity Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts (only in dematerialized mode) or unblocking the
funds in the respective ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our
Company shall pay interest at 15% p.a. and such other rate as specified under applicable law from the expiry of such 15 days’ period.

Investors residing at centers where clearing houses are managed by the RBI will get refunds through National Automated Clearing
House (“NACH?”) except where Investors have not provided the details required to send electronic refunds or where the investors are
otherwise disclosed as applicable or eligible to get refunds through direct credit and real-time gross settlement (“RTGS”).

In case of those investors who have opted to receive their Rights Entitlement in dematerialized form using electronic credit under the
depository system, and the Allotment advice regarding their credit of the Rights Equity Shares shall be sent at the address recorded with
the Depository. Investors to whom refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds will be sent a letter through ordinary post or
email intimating them about the mode of credit of refund within 15 days of the Issue Closing Date.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the option to receive the Rights Equity Shares in physical form was available only for
a period of six months from the date of coming into force of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, i.e., until May 10, 2019.
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The letter of allotment or refund order would be sent by registered post, email or speed post to the sole/ first Investor’s address or the
email address provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company. Such refund orders would be payable at par at all places
where the Applications were originally accepted. The same would be marked ‘Account Payee only’ and would be drawn in favor of the
sole/ first Investor. Adequate funds would be made available to the Registrar for this purpose. In the event, our Company fails to obtain
listing or trading permission from the Stock Exchanges, we shall refund the entire proceeds of the Issue within four days of receipt of
intimation from the Stock Exchanges rejecting the application for listing of Equity Shares, and if any such money is not repaid within
four days after our Company becomes liable to repay we shall, on and from the expiry of the fourth day, be liable to repay that money
with interest at the rate of fifteen per cent. per annum.

Payment of Refund

Mode of making refunds

In case of Applicants not eligible to make an application through ASBA process, the payment of refund, if any, including in the event
of oversubscription or failure to list or otherwise would be done through any of the following modes:

Unblocking amounts blocked using ASBA facility;

National Automated Clearing House (“NACH”) — NACH is a consolidated system of electronic clearing service. Payment of refund
would be done through NACH for Applicants having an account at one of the centers specified by the RBI, where such facility has been
made available. This would be subject to availability of complete bank account details including MICR code wherever applicable from
the depository. The payment of refund through NACH is mandatory for Applicants having a bank account at any of the centers where
NACH facility has been made available by the RBI (subject to availability of all information for crediting the refund through NACH
including the MICR code as appearing on a cheque leaf, from the Depositories), except where the Applicant is otherwise disclosed as
eligible to get refunds through NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGS.

National Electronic Fund Transfer (“NEFT”) — Payment of refund shall be undertaken through NEFT wherever the Investors’ bank
has been assigned the Indian Financial System Code (“IFSC Code”), which can be linked to a MICR, allotted to that particular bank
branch. IFSC Code will be obtained from the website of RBI as on a date immediately prior to the date of payment of refund, duly
mapped with MICR numbers. Wherever the Investors have registered their nine-digit MICR number and their bank account number
with the Registrar to our Company or with the Depository Participant while opening and operating the demat account, such MICR
number and the bank account number will be duly mapped with the IFSC Code of that particular bank branch and the payment of refund
will be made to the Investors through this method.

Direct Credit — Investors having bank accounts with the Bankers to the Issue shall be eligible to receive refunds through direct credit.
Charges, if any, levied by the relevant bank(s) for such refund would be borne by our Company.

RTGS — If the refund amount exceeds X 200,000, Investors have the option to receive refund through RTGS. Such eligible Investors
who indicate their preference to receive refund through RTGS are required to provide the IFSC Code in the Application Form. In the
event such IFSC Code is not provided, refund shall be made through NACH or any other eligible mode. Charges, if any, levied by the
refund bank(s) for such refund would be borne by our Company. Charges, if any, levied by the Investor’s bank receiving the credit
would be borne by the Investor.

For all other Investors, the refund orders will be dispatched through speed post or registered post. Such refunds will be made by cheques,
pay orders or demands drawn in favor of the sole/first Investor and payable at par.

Credit of refunds to Investors in any other electronic manner, permissible under the banking laws, which are in force, and is permitted
by SEBI from time to time.

Refund payment to Non-residents
The Application Money will be unblocked in the ASBA Account of the non-resident Applicants, details of which were provided in the
Application Form.

Printing of Bank Particulars on Refund Orders

As a matter of precaution against possible fraudulent encashment of refund orders due to loss or misplacement, the particulars of the
Investor’s bank account are mandatorily required to be given for printing on the refund orders. Bank account particulars, where available,
will be printed on the refund orders or refund warrants which can then be deposited only in the account specified. Our Company will, in
no way, be responsible if any loss occurs through these instruments falling into improper hands either through forgery or fraud.
Allotment advice or Demat Credit

The demat credit of securities to the respective beneficiary accounts or the demat suspense account (pending with IEPF authority/ in
suspense, etc.) will be credited within 15 days from the Issue Closing Date or such other timeline in accordance with applicable laws.

Option to receive Right Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS ISSUE CAN BE ALLOTTED ONLY
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IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO (A) THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH
THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE, OR (B) THE DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT, DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO OUR COMPANY OR THE REGISTRAR AT LEAST TWO
WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE BY THE RESIDENT ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDER
HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS ON THE RECORD DATE, OR (C) DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
WHERE THE CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS RETURNED/REVERSED/FAILED.

Investors shall be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form.

INVESTORS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES OF OUR COMPANY CAN BE TRADED ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGES ONLY IN DEMATERIALISED FORM.

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in the Issue in the electronic form is as under:
Open a beneficiary account with any Depository Participant (care should be taken that the beneficiary account should carry the name
of the holder in the same manner as is registered in the records of our Company. In the case of joint holding, the beneficiary account
should be opened carrying the names of the holders in the same order as registered in the records of our Company). In case of Investors
having various folios in our Company with different joint holders, the Investors will have to open separate accounts for each such
holding. Those Investors who have already opened such beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step.

It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Investors and the names are in the same order as in the records
of our Company or the Depositories.

The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Application Form vis-a-vis such information with the Investor’s depository
participant, would rest with the Investor. Investors should ensure that the names of the Investors and the order in which they appear in
Application Form should be the same as registered with the Investor’s depository participant.

If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Application Form, the Investor will not get any Rights Equity
Shares and the Application Form will be rejected.

The Rights Equity Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form and would be directly credited to the beneficiary
account as given in the Application Form after verification or demat suspense account (pending receipt of demat account details for
resident Eligible Equity Shareholders whose Equity Shares are with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.). Allotment advice, refund order
(if any) would be sent directly to the Applicant by email and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch, by the Registrar but
the Applicant’s depository participant will provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Rights Equity Shares to the Applicant’s
depository account.

Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in the
Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the Application is liable to be rejected.

Non-transferable allotment advice/ refund orders will be sent directly to the Investors by the Registrar to the Issue.

Dividend or other benefits with respect to the Equity Shares held in dematerialized form would be paid to those Equity Shareholders
whose names appear in the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository Participant to our Company as on the date of the book
closure.

Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form and who have not furnished the details of their
demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall not be able to
apply in this Issue for further details, please refer to “Procedure for Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity
Shares in physical form” on page 98.

Investment by FPIs

In terms of the SEBI FPI Regulations, the issue of Equity Shares to a single FPI or an investor group (which means the multiple entities
having common ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% or common control) must be below 10% of our post- Issue Equity
Share capital. Further, in terms of FEMA Rules, the total holding by each FPI shall be below 10% of the total paid-up equity share
capital of a company on a fully-diluted basis and the total holdings of all FPIs put together shall not exceed 24% of the paid-up equity
share capital of a company on a fully diluted basis.

Further, pursuant to the FEMA Rules the investments made by a SEBI registered FPI in a listed Indian company will be reclassified as
FDI if the total shareholding of such FPI increases to more than 10% of the total paid-up equity share capital on a fully diluted basis or
10% or more of the paid up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or warrants.
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FPIs are permitted to participate in the Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which may be specified by the
Government from time to time. The FPIs who wish to participate in the Issue are advised to use the ASBA Form for non-residents.
Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals in terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI
FPI Regulations, only Category | FPIs, may issue, subscribe to or otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under
the SEBI FPI Regulations as any instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI against securities held by it
that are listed or proposed to be listed on any recognised stock exchange in India, as its underlying) directly or indirectly, only in the
event (i) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons eligible to be registered as Category | FPIs; and (ii) such offshore
derivative instruments are issued after compliance with ‘know your client’ norms. An FPI may transfer offshore derivative instruments
to persons compliant with the requirements of Regulation 21(1) of the SEBI FPI Regulations and subject to receipt of consent, except
where pre-approval is provided.

All non-resident investors should note that refunds, dividends and other distributions, if any, will be payable in Indian Rupees only and
net of bank charges and commission.

Investment by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFC - SI)

In case of an application made by Systemically Important NBFCs registered with the RBI, (a) the certificate of registration issued by
the RBI under Section 45 —IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (b) net worth certificate from its statutory auditors or any independent chartered
accountant based on the last audited financial statements is required to be attached to the application.

Investment by AlFs, FVClsand VCFs

The SEBI (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended (“SEBI VCF Regulations”) and the SEBI (Foreign Venture Capital
Investor) Regulations, 2000, as amended (“SEBI FVCI Regulations™) prescribe, among other things, the investment restrictions on
VCFs and FVCIs registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI (Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012 (“SEBI AlF
Regulations”) prescribe, among other things, the investment restrictions on AIFs.

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVClIs are not permitted to invest in listed companies
pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVVCls will not be accepted in this Issue.

Venture capital funds registered as Category | AlFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, are not permitted to invest in listed
companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by venture capital funds registered as category | AlFs, as defined in the
SEBI AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue. Other categories of AlFs are permitted to apply in this Issue subject to
compliance with the SEBI AlIF Regulations. Such AlFs having bank accounts with SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities / centers
where such AlFs are located are mandatorily required to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AlFs are liable
for rejection

Applications will not be accepted from FPIs in restricted jurisdictions.

FPIs which are QIBs, Non-Institutional Investors or whose application amount exceeds % 2 lacs can participate in the Rights Issue only
through the ASBA process. Further, FPIs which are QIB applicants and Non-Institutional Investors are mandatorily required to use
ASBA, even if application amount does not exceed % 2 lacs.

Investment by NRIs

Investments by NRIs are governed by Rule 12 of FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs in Restricted Jurisdictions.
NRIs may please note that only such Applications as are accompanied by payment in free foreign exchange shall be considered for
Allotment under the reserved category. The NRIs who intend to make payment through NRO accounts shall use the Application form
meant for resident Indians and shall not use the Application forms meant for reserved category.

As per Rule 12 of the FEMA Rules read with Schedule 111 of the FEMA Rules, an NRI or OCI may purchase or sell capital instruments
of a listed Indian company on repatriation basis, on a recognized stock exchange in India, subject to the conditions, inter alia, that the
total holding by any individual NRI or OCI will not exceed 5% of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or should not
exceed 5% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian company and the
total holdings of all NRIs and OCls put together will not exceed 10% of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or shall
not exceed 10% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants. The aggregate ceiling of 10%
may be raised to 24%, if a special resolution to that effect is passed by the general body of the Indian company.

Investment by Mutual Funds

Applications made by asset management companies or custodians of Mutual Funds should clearly and specifically state names of the
concerned schemes for which such Applications are made.

In case of a Mutual Fund, a separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of the Mutual Fund registered with SEBI and
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such Applications in respect of more than one scheme of the Mutual Fund will not be treated as multiple Applications provided that the
Applications clearly indicate the scheme concerned for which the Application has been made.

No Mutual Fund scheme shall invest more than 10% of its net asset value in equity shares or equity related instruments of any single
company provided that the limit of 10% shall not be applicable for investments in case of index funds or sector or industry specific
schemes. No Mutual Fund under all its schemes should own more than 10% of any company’s paid-up share capital carrying voting
rights.

Procedure for applications by Systemically Important NBFCs

In case of application made by Systemically Important NBFCs registered with the RBI, (i) the certificate of registration issued by the
RBI under Section 45 —IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (ii) Net-worth certificate from its statutory auditors or any independent chartered
accountant based on the last audited financial statements is required to be attached to the application.

Payment by stock invest
In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock invest Scheme has been
withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this Issue.

Impersonation

As a matter of abundant caution, attention of the Investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of Section 38 of

the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below:

“Any person who:

makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing for, its securities; or

makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different combinations of his name or surname
for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of,
securities to him, or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under Section 447.”

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 for fraud involving an amount of at least

% 10 lacs or 1% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than six
months extending up to ten years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest, such term shall not be less than three years)
and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud, extending up to three times of such amount. Where such fraud (i)
involves an amount which is less than T 10 lacs or 1% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower, and (ii) does not involve
public interest, then such fraud is punishable with imprisonment for a term extending up to five years or fine of an amount extending up
to X 50 lacs or with both.

Dematerialized Dealing
Our Company has entered into tripartite agreements with NSDL and CDSL respectivelyand our equity shares bear the ISIN:
INE803L01016.

Disposal of Applications and Application Money
No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company. However, the Designated Branch of the SCSBs
receiving the Application Form will acknowledge its receipt by stamping and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of each
Application Form. Our Board reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any Application, in whole or in part, and
in either case without assigning any reason thereto.

In case an application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked in the respective ASBA Accounts, in
case of Applications through ASBA. Wherever an application is rejected in part, the balance of Application Money;, if any, after adjusting any
money due on Rights Equity Shares Allotted, will be unblocked in the respective ASBA Accounts of the Investor within a period of 15
days from the Issue Closing Date.

For further instructions, please read the Application Form carefully.
Utilization of 1ssue Proceeds

Our Board of Directors declares that:

e  All moniesreceived out of the Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account;

o Details of all monies utilized out of the Issue shall be disclosed, and shall continue to be disclosed until the time any part of the
Issue Proceeds remains unutilized, under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the
purpose for which such monies have been utilized;

o Details of all unutilized monies out of the Issue, if any, shall be disclosed under an appropriate separate head in the balance
sheet of our Company indicating the form in which such unutilized monies have been invested; and
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e  Our Company may utilize the funds collected in the Issue only after final listing and trading approvals for the Rights Equity
Shares Allotted in the Issue is received.

Undertakings by our Company:
e  Our Company undertakes the following:
e  The complaints received in respect of the Issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously and satisfactorily.

o  All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all Stock Exchanges where
the Rights Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken within the time prescribed by the SEBI.

e The funds required for making refunds to unsuccessful Applicants as per the mode(s) disclosed shall be made available to the
Registrar by our Company.

e  Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent to the Investor within 15
days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks where refunds shall be credited along with amount and expected
date of electronic credit of refund.

e No further issue of securities affecting our Company’s Equity Share capital shall be made until the Rights Equity Shares are
listed or until the Application Money is refunded on account of non-listing, under subscription etc.

e In case of unblocking of the application amount for unsuccessful Applicants or part of the application amount in case of
proportionate Allotment, a suitable communication shall be sent to the Applicants.

e Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA Applications and to consider them similar to non- ASBA
Applications while finalizing the Basis of Allotment.

e Atanygiven time, there shall be only one denomination for the Rights Equity Shares of our Company.
e Our Company shall comply with all disclosure and accounting norms specified by the SEBI from time to time.

e Our Company accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of information given in this Letter of Offer and confirms that to the
best of its knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission of which makes any statement made in this Letter of
Offer misleading and further confirms that it has made all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts.

Minimum subscription
In accordance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90% of
the Issue Size, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue Closing Date in
accordance with SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021, read with
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-1/P/CIR/2024/0154 dated November 11, 2024. If there is any delay in the refund of the subscription amount beyond
such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company and Directors who are “officers in defaults” shall pay interest for the delayed
period, at such rates as prescribed under the applicable laws.

Withdrawal of the Issue

Subject to provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act and other applicable laws, our Company reserves the right not

to proceed with the Issue at any time before the Issue Opening Date without assigning any reason thereof.

If our Company withdraws the Issue any time after the Issue Opening Date, a public notice within two (2) Working Days of the Issue
Closing Date or such other time as may be prescribed by SEBI, providing reasons for not proceeding with the Issue shall be issued by
our Company. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same newspapers where the pre-Issue advertisement has appeared and the
Stock Exchanges will also be informed promptly.
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The Company through the Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts within one (1) working Day
from the day of receipt of such instruction. Our Company shall also inform the same to the Stock Exchanges.

If our Company withdraws the Issue at any stage including after the Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to proceed with an
Issue of the Equity Shares, our Company will file a fresh offer document with the stock exchange where the Equity Shares may be
proposed to be listed.

Important

Please read this Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the Application Form, Abridged Letter
of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an integral part of the conditions of the Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed;
otherwise the Application is liable to be rejected. It is to be specifically noted that this Issue of Rights Equity Shares is subject to the risk
factors mentioned in “Risk Factors” on page 24.

All enquiries in connection with this Letter of Offer or Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter must be addressed (quoting
the Registered Folio Number or the DP and Client ID number, the Application Form number and the name of the first Eligible Equity
Shareholder as mentioned on the Application Form and super scribed “Galaxy Agrico Exports Limited — Rights Issue” on the envelope
to the Registrar at the following address:

Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd.

9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J.R.Boricha Marg Lower Parel (East), Mumbai-400011
Telephone: +91 022-3199 8810/ 4961 4132 / 4970 0138

Email: support@purvashare.com

Investor Grievance Email:support@purvashare.com

Website: www.purvashare.com

Contact Person: Deepali Dhuri

SEBI Registration No.: INR000001112

The Issue will remain open for a minimum period of 7 (seven) days. However, our Board will have the right to extend the Issue Period

as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Closing
Date).
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RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of India and FEMA. While
the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of India, prescribes the limits and the conditions subject to which foreign investment can
be made in different sectors of the Indian economy, FEMA regulates the precise manner in which such investment may be made. The
Union Cabinet, as provided in the Cabinet Press Release dated May 24, 2017, has given its approval for phasing out the FIPB. Under
the Industrial Policy, 1991, unless specifically restricted, foreign investment is freely permitted in all sectors of the Indian economy up
to any extent and without any prior approvals, but the foreign investor is required to follow certain prescribed procedures for making
such investment. Accordingly, the process for foreign direct investment (“FDI”) and approval from the Government of India will now
be handled by the concerned ministries or departments, in consultation with the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal
Trade, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India (formerly knows as the Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion)
(“DPIIT”), Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs, FIPB section, through a memorandum dated June 5, 2017, has notified
the specific ministries handling relevant sectors.

The Government has, from time to time, made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press releases. The DPIIT issued
the Consolidated FDI Policy Circular of 2017 (“FDI Circular 2017”), which, with effect from August 28, 2017, consolidated and
superseded all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI issued by the DPIIT that were in force and effect as on
August 28, 2017. The Government proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI policy once every year and therefore, FDI
Circular 2017 will be valid until the DPIIT issues an updated circular.

The Government of India has from time to time made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press releases which are
notified by RBI as amendments to FEMA. In case of any conflict between FEMA and such policy pronouncements, FEMA prevails.
The Consolidated FDI Policy, issued by the DIPP, consolidates the policy framework in place as on August 27, 2017, and supersedes
all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI issued by the DIPP that were in force and effect as on August 27, 2017.
The Government proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI Policy once every year and therefore the Consolidated FDI Policy
will be valid until the DIPP issues an updated circular.

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not require the prior approval of the RBI, provided that (i) the
activities of the investee company falls under the automatic route as provided in the FDI Policy and FEMA and transfer does not attract
the provisions of the SEBI Takeover Regulations; (ii) the non- resident shareholding is within the sectoral limits under the FDI Policy;
and (iii) the pricing is in accordance with the guidelines prescribed by SEBI and RBI.

As per the existing policy of the Government of India, erstwhile OCBs cannot participate in this Issue.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company is not liable for any amendments or
modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised
to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits
under laws or regulations.
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SECTIONVIII-STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Please note that the Rights Equity Shares applied for under this Issue can be allotted only in dematerialized form and to (a) the same
depository account/ corresponding pan in which the Equity Shares are held by such Investor on the Record Date, or (b) the depository
account, details of which have been provided to our Company or the Registrar at least two working days prior to the Issue Closing Date
by the Eligible Equity Shareholder holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date.
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SECTION VIII
MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The copies of the following contracts which have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company (not being
contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or contracts entered into more
than two years before the date of this Letter of Offer) which are or may be deemed material have been entered or are
to be entered into by our Company. Copies of the documents for inspection referred to hereunder, would be available
on the website of the Company at www.galaxyagrico.com from the date of this Letter of Offer until the Issue Closing

Date.

1,
@
(i)

(iii)
(iv)
2.

@

(ii)
(i)
(iv)
v)
(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

*)

(xi)

Material Contracts for the Issue

Registrar Agreement dated 23 December, 2025 entered into amongst our Company and the Registrar to the Issue.

Escrow Agreement dated 24™ December, 2025 amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue and
the Bankers to the Issue.

Tripartite Agreement dated 10/01/20211 between our Company, NSDL and the Registrar to the Issue.

Tripartite Agreement dated 24/06/2011 between our Company, CSDL and the Registrar to the Issue.

Material Documents

Certified copies of the updated Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of our Company
as amended from time to time.

Annual Reports of the Company for the years 2024 and 2023.

Certificate of incorporation dated 23/02/1994.

Resolution of the Board of Directors dated Monday, September 16, 2024 in relation to the Issue.
Resolution of the Rights Issue Committee dated 19" January, 2026 approving and adopting Letter of Offer.
Resolution of the Board of Directors dated 19" January, 2026 approving and adopting the Letter of Offer.

Resolution of our Board dated 19" January, 2026, finalizing the terms of the Issue including Issue Price,
Record Date and the Rights Entitlement Ratio.

Consent of our Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Statutory
Auditor, the Registrar to the Issue for inclusion of their names in the Letter of Offer in their respective
capacities.

The examination reports September 23, 2024 of the Statutory Auditor, on our Company’s Audited Financial
Statements, included in this Letter of Offer.

Statement of Tax Benefits dated September 23, 2024 from the Statutory Auditor included in this
Letter of Offer.

In principle listing approval dated 04" December, 2025 issued by BSE Limited.

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any time if so
required in the interest of our Company or ifrequired by the other parties, without reference to the shareholders subject
to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.
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SECTION VIII - DECLARATION

We hereby certify that no statement made in this Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies Act and
the rules made thereunder. We further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue as also the regulations,
guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, the Government of India and any other competent authority in this behalf, have
been duly complied with. We further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true and correct.

Signed by the Directors of our Company

Sr. No. Name of Director Category Designation Signature
1 Nathabhai J. Sadaria Executive Director Managing Director Sd/-
2. Manoj H. Shah Executive Director Whole Time Director Sd/-
3. Sanjay J. Patel Executive Director Whole Time Director Sd/-
4. Kirankumar Govani Non - Executive Independent Director Sd/-
Director

5. Ajay Patel Non - Executive Independent Director Sd/-
Director

6. Jagdish Shah Non - Executive Independent Director Sd/-
Director

7 Mausami Sadaria Non - Executive Women Director Sd/-
Director

8. Prashant Sudhir Khairnar Additional Director Sd/-

9. Abhay Vasantrao Galgate Additional Director Sd/-

10. Ms. Richa Kachhawaha Additional Director Sd/-

Signed by the Key Managerial Personnel of our Company

Sr. No. Name of Director Categ Designation Signature
ory
Jayantilal Panchanbhai Kansagara Chief Financial ]
1. KMP Officer Sd/
S . Company Secretary
2. Utsavi Lalit Bhatia KMP and Compliance Sd/-
Officer

Date: 19" January, 2026

Place: Rajkot
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